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Financial Highlights

A 5 ik

Statement of Profit or Loss and BERMkEMEEBRAR Year ended 31 December
Other Comprehensive Income HE+-HA=+—HLHEFE
RMB million
AREBEET
2020 2019 Changes
Continuing &N —E_EHF —E—NEF =L
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHERE T
Revenue W& 361.9 306.5 18.07%
Gross profit EH] 112.4 102.5 9.66%
Profit before tax from FERE B 2 BRRADEF]
continuing operations 88.6 68.6 29.15%
Profit for the year from continuing FEFEREER 2w
operations 711 51.0 39.41%
Profit for the year FEHF 71.1 135.0 (47.33%)
Profit attributable to shareholders of NN B R ELEF)
the Company 72.7 113.9
Basic H
— For profit for the year —FEHH RMBAR M99 centsh  RVBARH164 cents?)
— For profit from continuing operations ~ — IS &K E 2 5 RMBAEH99centsh  RMBARHT7.3contsh
Dividend per shar (HK cents) RS B
—interim — A 1.5 2.0
— final —KHA 2.0 3.0
— combined —&58 3.5 5.0
31 December
Statement of financial position PR +ZA=+—H
RMB million
ARBEEET
2020 2019 Changes
—EZEHF —_E—NF p=F)
Non-current assets EREEE 1,017.4 920.6 10.51%
Current assets MBEE 764.6 740.7 3.23%
Current liabilities mENEE (205.0) (132.8) 54.37%
Net current assets RENEEFRE 559.6 607.9 (7.95%)
Non-current liabilities JERTEME (146.8) (91.5) 60.44%
Net assets BEE 1,430.2 1,437.0 (0.47%)
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Profit Attributable to Shareholders
of the Company
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Chairman's Statement
F S

Li Cheng =3
Chairman and Executive Director

TERATEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “Yongsheng Advanced Materials”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s annual results report for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “Year under Review”).

During the Year under Review, the Group maintained its strategy of
diversified development with its textile business and RMAA business
running on parallel tracks, which continued to generate revenue for the
Group. The Group’s RMAA business grew steadily and balanced its
business risks despite the rampant outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(“COVID-19"). The Group’s robust business performance during the Year
under Review was also recognized by external institutions. The Company
was selected as a constituent stock of the MSCI Hong Kong Micro Cap
Index in November 2020, showing great potential for future growth.
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In the first half of 2020, affected by the global spread of the COVID-19
epidemic and the economic downturn in various countries, China’s textile
industry faced a severe internal and external situation. In the second
half of 2020, as COVID-19 was brought under control, China’s textile
industry continued to promote the resumption of production, supply and
demand both improved steadily, and the industry’s prosperity rebounded
significantly. In 2021, the Group expects that the foundation of China’s
long-term macroeconomic improvement will not change, domestic
macroeconomic policies will focus more on stabilizing growth and the
textile industry will adhere to the general keynote of seeking progress
while maintaining stability. As a model leader in the industry, the Group is
competitive by owning the relevant dyeing technology and environmental
protection equipment. Under the severe business environment, the
Group will focus on internal optimisation and active research and
development to enhance its overall competitiveness, thus maintaining
the order size at a satisfactory level. As COVID-19 intensifies industry
integration, the Group will take this opportunity to identify acquisition
opportunities in upstream and downstream of the industry chain to further
expand its industrial presence.

In 2021, the Group will also continue to develop its RMAA project in Hong
Kong in a stable manner. As various mandatory inspection requirements
for aged buildings (such as the Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme)
and the renewal and redevelopment of aged buildings continue to drive
the demand for RMAA project, the market size of RMAA project in Hong
Kong has been growing steadily and is expected to grow further at a
CAGR of 3.5% from 2020 to 2024 to reach approximately HK$90.1
billion by 2024. In view of the huge demand for upgrading obsolete
properties and government urban redevelopment plans in Hong Kong,
these are a vast market for RMAA business and capital demand for the
project will be high, the Group is expecting the RMAA segment will grow
steadlily.
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Chairman's Statement
BNt

Yongsheng Plaza, a building under construction of the Group located at
Xiaoshan Economic and Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou
City, is undergoing interior decoration and successive investment
promotion and pre-sale. With the advent of the commencement of
operation of all sections of the rail transportation through Yongsheng
Plaza on 30 December 2020 and the 2022 Hangzhou Asian Games,
Yongsheng Plaza is expected to become one of the symbolic buildings
of Xiaoshan and Hangzhou. The Group will relocate its headquarter to
Yongsheng Plaza. With the significant improvement of the surrounding
environment and facilities, the rents of the Group’s commercial
and financial office units in Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City will be significantly increased in the
coming year. The management is of the view that the urbanization and
development process in the PRC will continue to ascend in the future,
and it believes that there will be a positive outlook and development
of Hangzhou, which in turn will drive the residential or commercial
demand in such region. The investment properties held by the Group
will diversify the Group’s income sources and bring potential future
capital appreciation, which is beneficial to the long-term investment and
sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

As an enterprise which highly values social responsibility, the Group
is also actively expanding its environmental business while strictly
controlling its main dyeing and finishing business to meet environmental
standards, so as to diversify its revenue sources and create substantial
returns for the shareholders of the Company. In early 2020, the Group
established a joint venture with Began Investment Limited (“Began”)
to actively develop the water market in Southeast Asia by taking
advantage of the strong demand for improved municipal infrastructure
in Southeast Asia brought by the Belt and Road Initiative. In 2021, the
Group will explore the expansion of its business into various areas of
environmental protection related industries other than water related
industries. In January 2021, the Group partnered with Zhejiang Lingrong
Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited* Gif ;T 2 &g
IRFRIEARRAT) (“Zhejiang Lingrong”) to explore the development
prospects of solid waste treatment and environmental protection
industry in China. In the future, based on the national strategic policy
and the Group’s strong financial resources, the Group will achieve a
“two-pronged approach” in its domestic and overseas environmental
protection businesses, specifically speaking, domestically, the Group
will actively explore the solid waste treatment industry, green energy
development and circular economy development model; overseas,
the Group will focus on the municipal infrastructure industry with rigid
demand and sound cash flow to develop the water market in Southeast
Asian with centering on water supply and wastewater treatment.
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As the new year has ushered in a new journey, Yongsheng Advanced
Materials will stay true to the mission, adhere to the enterprise spirit of
“Honesty, Cooperation, Reciprocity, Learning and Innovation”, insist
on the management tenet of “providing quality products and services
for customers, seeking more returns for employees and shareholders
and creating greater value for the society” and stick to the “high-tech,
advanced tech, differentiated and international” development direction.
Meanwhile, we will respect individual development, advocate fairness and
harmony, establish an efficient and standardized operation mechanism,
build up the corporate image externally, cultivate professional spirit
internally while sincerely serving customers, employees, society and
shareholders of the Company. At the same time, we will also actively seize
opportunities in the industry and continue to identify high-return projects,
s0 as to diversify the business portfolio and maximize asset value. Finally,
on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
the management, all employees, Shareholders and business partners for
their continuous support and trust.

Li Cheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

*

For identification purposes
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Business Review

SE5 ] A

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back to the first half of 2020, the demand for textile in domestic
downstream market was suppressed under the impact of the COVID-19
epidemic, and overseas export markets also came to a standstill due
to the epidemic. Therefore, global conventional demand in textiles and
garment had decreased significantly. However, since the second quarter
of 2020, with domestic economic activities gradually resuming in an
orderly manner due to China’s effective prevention and control on the
epidemic, the demand in textile has improved and commodity prices in
the textile industry has also recovered rapidly. According to the survey
of China National Textile and Apparel Council, since the second quarter
of 2020, the climate index of the textile industry rebounded to above 50,
above average level over recent years. Demand in the European market
and United States market also gradually recovered, which resulted in the
exports of the household textile products recovered rapidly in the second
half of 2020. In addition, the renovation, maintenance, alteration and
addition projects in Hong Kong have not been affected by the epidemic
due to its nature of rigid demand. With its own technological advantages,
rich product portfolio and diversified development of business segments,
the Group can maintain sound operation in any market environment.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Group is principally engaged in: (1) dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabric; (2) provision of renovation,
maintenance, alteration and addition services (‘RMAA Service”); (3)
properties investment; and (4) resources recycling and environmental
protection project. In 2019, the Group restructured its business by
disposing of the business segments of production of differentiated
polyester filament yarn (‘PFY”) and trading of PFY in order to enhance
technical capacities in dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric in an all-round manner, grasp the market trend and move
towards the high-added value market for grasping growth opportunities
and satisfying customers’ demand on products, thereby creating greater
value for the shareholders.
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a turnover from
continuing operations of approximately RMB361.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 18.1%, as compared to approximately
RMB306.5 million in 2019. The gross profit was approximately
RMB112.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.7% as
compared to approximately RMB102.5 million in 2019. The gross profit
margin decreased to approximately 31.0% from approximately 33.4%,
which was mainly due to the significant growth of RMAA Service which
has lower gross profit margin (approximately 26% for the year ended
31 December 2020) despite the epidemic, effectively offsetted the
slight decline of textile business which has relatively higher gross profit
margin (approximately 36% for the ended 31 December 2020) under
the COVID-19 epidemic. The profit attributable to shareholders from
continuing operations was approximately RMB72.7 million, representing
an increase of approximately 42.6% as compared to approximately
RMB51.0 million in 2019, and the relevant basic earnings per share from
continuing operations was RMB0.099 (2019: RMB0.073).

During the Year under Review, the revenue derived from dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric, provision of RMAA
Service, property investment and environmental protection accounted
for approximately 48.5%, 51.1%, 0.4% and 0.0% of the turnover from
continuing operations of the Group, respectively; while the operating
profit of such four business segments accounted for approximately
58.7%, 46.8%, -0.3% and -5.2% of the aggregate operating profit of the
Group, respectively.

DYEING AND PROCESSING

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited
(“Yongsheng Dyeing”), a subsidiary of the Company, located in
Hangzhou, is principally engaged in polyester filament fabric dyeing
and processing and has been certified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government and
is further recognised as a Provincial Level Research and Development
Center.

Business Review
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Business Review
SEHDIER

In the first half of 2020, affected by the epidemic, demand and supply
from domestic and foreign market for polyester filament fabric dyeing
and processing were both stricken to a certain extent. In the second
half of the year, with the successful prevention and control measures
taken in China, the outbreak of epidemic was obtained, and therefore the
Group’s resumption of production and work progressed well, while the
supply and domestic orders both gradually recovered. In addition, due
to the normalisation of the anti-epidemic and the implementation of the
home isolation order, the development of the Stay-at-Home economy in
overseas markets has driven the growth of the Group’s textile and home
furnishing business in the next half year of 2020, offsetting the short-
term negative impact in the first half of the year. Gross profit margins for
the year remained solid as compared to last year, despite the industry-
wide impact of the epidemic. During the Year under Review, segment
revenue was approximately RMB175.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 11.5% as compared to approximately RMB198.5 million
in 2019, while gross profit margin decreased by 0.4 percentage points to
36.0%. The Group launched a new variety of dyeing products in 2020,
which have met the quality requirements of customers. Going forward,
the Group will actively conduct promotion in the market, so as to increase
sales and diversify its product portfolio as well as cope with the impact of
market changes.

PROVISION OF RMAA SERVICE

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of two categories of
RMAA Service in Hong Kong, namely (1) renovation and maintenance
works; and (2) alteration and additional works and fitting-out works.
The Group has obtained ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certifications in
quality and environment management and has extensive experience in
building maintenance, renovation, waterproofing, additions, alterations
and building improvement in the sector of RMAA and fitting-out works
in Hong Kong. On 30 June 2020, the Urban Renewal Authority of Hong
Kong (“URA”) announced “Operation Building Bright 2.0” (“OBB 2.0")
and “Fire Safety Improvement Works Subsidy Scheme” (‘FSW Scheme”)
to increase efforts to subsidize the rehabilitation of buildings (including
buildings aged 40 or above), so as to improve buildings safety and living
conditions. During the Year under Review, we obtained 16 new projects
which were not affected by COVID-19. The Group recorded the segment
revenue of approximately RMB185.1 million, with a gross profit margin of
approximately 26.0% and had approximately 44 projects on hand with a
total contract sum of over HK$389 million.
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In February 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% issued
share capital of Summer Power International Inc. (“Summer Power”).
Widely Construction & Engineering Limited (“Widely”) is wholly owned
by Summer Power. Pursuant to the relevant agreement in relation to
the acquisition, the vendor provided a profit guarantee that the audited
consolidated net profit after tax of Widely as shown in the audited
consolidated accounts of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2019 shall not be less than HK$23,000,000. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019, such profit
guarantee has been fulfiled.

PROPERTIES INVESTMENT

The property assets held by the Group include:

(1) Yongsheng Plaza, a building under construction located at
Xiaoshan Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with an aggregate
gross floor area of approximately 64,547.20 square meters with 24
storeys above the ground and 3 storeys under the ground. Due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 and unstable weather conditions, the
schedule for roofing was affected. During the Year under Review,
construction of the main building was completed. The interior
decoration will commence soon and is expected to be completed
in the first half year of 2021. The Group has been proactively
attracting tenants and have successfully entered into several
tenancy agreements up to the date of this report. Yongsheng
Plaza, positioned as a high-end commercial office building and
apartment, is expected to solicit long-term tenancies. With the
advent of connection of the rail transportation and the 2022 Asian
Games, Yongsheng Plaza is expected to become one of the
symbolic buildings in Xiaoshan District or even Hangzhou; and

(2)  eight office units on two floors for commercial uses in a building
located at Zhejiang Private Enterprise Development Building* GHf
SIRERESEAE), Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 2,648.78
square meters. All the office units have been leased out and will
bring a stable and sustainable income for the Group, generating
a rental income of approximately RMB1.2 million during the Year
under Review.

Business Review
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The property investment is a stable and resilient business of the Group
with limited exposure to the epidemic and uncertainties. Xiaoshan
District is a key development region with promising prospects in Zhejiang
Province. The investment properties of the Group have the potential
to increase in value, which is beneficial to the asset structure and
sustainable development of the Group in the long run.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Driven by the “Belt and Road Initiative”, the urbanisation and
industrialisation of Southeast Asian countries have been improved.
However, water supply and wastewater treatment infrastructure in certain
Southeast Asia countries, including Vietnam, Cambodia, Myanmar and
Indonesia, are in short supply and relatively backward. Under such
situation, numerous potential investment and development opportunities
are expected. During the Year, the Group cooperated with Bagan
Investment Limited (“Bagan”) to form a subsidiary company, which is
owned as to 60% and 40% by the Group and Bagan, respectively.
The subsidiary company is an investment holding company, the
subsidiaries of which are principally engaged in the development,
investment, operation and management of hydra-related projects, in
particular regarding water supply and wastewater treatment, in China
and Southeast Asia. Considering the fact that the outbreak of epidemic
dragged down businesses in the Southeast Asia, the Group explored
the domestic wastewater treatment market simultaneously and actively
seek to build small-scale wastewater treatment project in Binjiang District,
Hangzhou to perform the work of community wastewater treatment for
purpose of being the demonstration base of the local region.

PROSPECTS

In 2021, the domestic new development pattern of “dual circulation”
will give space for development and abundant drive force for innovation
to the textile industry, and become the core engine for the continuous
recovery of the textile industry. The dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester fabrics remain to be the development priority of
the Group. As the global vaccination campaign begins, the overseas
economy is expected to recover gradually. Thus, it is also expected that
global demand for China’s textile will remain stable. It is expected that the
demand for household textile will maintain and the export of apparel will
improve step by step. The Group plans to expand its dying production
capacity, increase business volume and focus on developing high
value orders with high gross profit at home and abroad, while retain the
possibility of increasing its market share by acquisition and merger during
the market consolidation period.
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and
gross profit by the Group’s continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2020:

Financial Review

455 I

W am B2 EF)
TREFSEERE_S-_BET-A=+—AL
F o A S B S AT TS B ) B U R T B
@

Revenue
change between

2020 2019 2020 and 2019

—E_E “EFE-NE —E_EFH

RMB’000 RMB’000 “E—hEME

Revenue = ARETFT ABETFIT W&
1. Dyeing and processing 13RERMT 175,647 198,545 (11.53%)
2. RMAA Service 2. RMAARR T 185,115 107,570 72.09%
3. Property investment SMERKRE 1,174 424 176.89%
361,936 306,539 18.07%

Revenue of the Group in 2020 was approximately RMB361.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 18.08% from approximately
RMB306.5 million as compared with last year. The increase in revenue of
the Group was mainly due to the increase in the revenue derived from the
RMAA Service and property investment.

AEBR_ZS_ZTENRENABAREI6E1.9
BET REENHARKEI06.58E TEMA
18.08% o AN & F B ULz 18 10 = B2 AN ZE ERMAA
BRFS R M 2% E B YR E5 18 10 o

Gross profit
change between

2020 2019 2020 and 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000 —E-hEH

Gross profit EF ARETFT AREFT EFEH
1. Dyeing and processing 1R2EKRINT 63,257 72,359 (12.58%)
2. RMAA Service 2. RMAARRFS 48,080 29,700 61.89%
3. Property investment SYIERE 1,036 394 162.94%
112,373 102,453 9.68%
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Gross profit of the Group in 2020 was approximately RMB112.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.7% as compared with the
same last year. The increase in gross profit of the Group was mainly due
to increase in revenue from property investment and RMAA services,
resulting an increase in their contribution to the Group’s overall revenue,
offsetted by the significant decrease of the Group’s unit price of dyeing
and processing service resulted from the outbreak of COVID-19 and
increasing industry competition.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by
approximately RMB2.45 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 63.21% for the Year under Review. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in marketing activities and staff costs resulted
from the outbreak of COVID-19.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses (including impairment losses on financial and
contract assets) is around RMB45.9 million, which is similar as 2019.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately 77.61% to RMB1.8 million,
primarily due to the increase of bank borrowings during the Year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders from the continuing operations
in 2019 and 2020 was about RMB51.0 million and RMB72.7 million
respectively, with an increase of about 42.55%.
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Financial Review
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CASH FLOWS HERE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AERTFT
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBPIRIREREF4E 2,047 163,426
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREGTHFARESREFEE (66,130) (237,787)
Net cash flows from financing activities ME RS EREREFE 11,801 78,045
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRRERIAEEEY 89,718 148,679

For the year under Review, net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB2.0 million, representing a significant decrease as
compared with 2019, mainly due to the decrease in operating profit as a
result of the disposal of the PFY business in 2019.

Compared with 2019, the cash flow used in investing activities was
approximately RMB66.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly due to Yongsheng Plaza towards completion stage in
2020.

Net cash generated from financing activities was approximately RMB11.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to the increase
of bank borrowings during the Year.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances,
including pledged deposits amounted to approximately RMB89.7 million
(81 December 2019: approximately RMB148.7 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB168.3 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB95.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s key financial ratio
reflecting its liquidity and gearing level, were as follows:

REEFE KEEPATREFES/VARE
20BBT BT AFABAL HEEEHN
TE-AFHERGBRAEFTERUEENERL

BR_Z-NF-a=E_F_THF+_HA=+—AHL
FE O RETFMAREESRE/VARTEC6.1B8E
T hEBREARKBRRER ST F7%T -

HE_Z_EZF+_B=+—HLEEE BEEH
8RS FEAOAARESEET HEEEH
RERIRITEREM

RBEERMBER

R EF+ A=+ B AEENRER
RTHER (BREBERER OB ARK.TEET
(ZE-NE+ZRB=+—H HWARK148.78
B e

ACECEEFE+_A=+—H AEBRNIRITER
WA ANRIE168.3BB T (ZE—NE+ A
=+—H: Y ARKIBSEETT) °

N_ETEFERCE-NAFE+T_RB=+—H &&
ExmETHESREBEKTHREABMBLEN
B

2020 2019

—TTHF —E-hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AREF T

Current ratio TRBLEE 3.73 5.58
Debt to equity ratio BEMEERIEE 0.12 0.07
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Exposure to fluctuations in exc-hange rates and
related hedge

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi (“RMB”), except for the business of
provision of RMAA service as it is conducted in Hong Kong with the
transaction settled in Hong Kong Dollars (HKS$). The reporting currency of
the Group is RMB.

The Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are predominantly in RMB. The
Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if any dividends are
declared.

Employee benefits and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total workforce of 308
employees (31 December 2019: 325 employees). The employees of the
Group were remunerated based on their experience, qualifications, the
Group’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Year under Review, staff costs (including Directors’
remunerations and the salary of the employees) amounted to
approximately RMB38.0 million (31 December 2019: RMB89.3 million).

The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible staff
based on individual’s and the Group’s performance.

The Group participated in the social insurance schemes operated by the
relevant local government authorities, which include retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries insurance
and maternity insurance.

The Group emphasizes on team building and the Group’s success is
dependent on the contribution of all employees.
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Significant investments held as at 31 December

Financial Review
YA 5 Il JgR

RIE_EF+_H=1+—HEFEWNE

2020 AEE
Investment Fair value at Type of
Assets Manager Custodian amount Agreement date Year end investment
BEBEA FEA KE#E HEAS RERATE REHY
2020 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E_F ARBFR ARETT
Minsheng Wealth Management ~ China Merchants Securities 30,000 24 Jun 20 31,120 2
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
REMEREEEERAT  BEESRHBRAHE TECEE
AAZTIEH
Liangke Investment China Merchants Securities 30,000 14 Dec 20 32,213 2
Management Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
EXREEE R ARAE BEIEFRHBERAD TECEE
+ZA+mA
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. 20,000 4 Sep 20 20,223 2
PEESROBRAF REBRSROBRAE TERIREF
NBIEH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 15,000 24 Dec 20 15,000 1
HEIRERT PR R ERIT TERTRE
+ZAZ+mH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 50,000 25 Dec 20 50,000 1
HEIRERTT PRI R ERTT “ECEE
+ZAZ+AH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000 28 Dec 20 20,000 1
REEERT B RERIT ZECE
+ZAZ+/\H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000 30 Dec 20 20,000 1
B R R IRTT PEIRERIT TERCRE
+-A=+H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 4,000 30 Dec 20 4,000 1
REIRERTT PRI RERIT TEIEE
+ZA=+H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 5,500 31 Dec 20 5,500 1
HEREIRT B RERIT ZEIZE
+ZA=+—H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 1,000 31 Dec 20 1,000 1
B R R IRTT PEIRERIT TERTRE
+ZA=+—-8
195,500 199,056
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Note:

Type 1 investment refers to (i) money market funds; (i) bank deposits; (iii)
money market wealth management products; (iv) money market trust plan;
and (v) money market asset management products, etc..

Type 2 investment refers to (i) money market trusts; (i) private investment
funds; (i) money market asset management products; (iv) bond repurchase;
(v) money market funds; and (vi) bank deposits, etc..

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investments held by
the Group as at 31 December 2020.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”)

aged 58, is an executive Director and the chairman (the “Chairman”) of
the Board. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the nomination committee under
the Board and one of the authorised representatives of the Company.
Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in textile and trading industry,
and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy and management
of the Group. From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li had been engaged
in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship. He worked as the
general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company from March
1993 to November 1997, and from November 1997 to June 1999, he
assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (currently known as Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served as the general manager of
Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited (“Yongsheng Weaving”) from
June 1999 to April 2003. Since 2003, Mr. Li has been appointed as a
chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Li has been
a senior economist since October 2013. Since August 2014, Mr. Li has
been a director of LN/t R = 4R f2 15 B BR A Bl (Hangzhou Shining
3D Tech Co. Ltd., NEEQ stock code: 830978), the shares of which were
quoted on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (‘“NEEQ”) of the
PRC.

Mr. Li completed his professional study majoring in dyeing and
processing engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (how known as
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University) in July 1985. In March 2004, he completed
a course on corporate director advanced business administration
which was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Li had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth—Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002. Mr. Li
has completed the CEO Finance Program for China Enterprise in 2016,
which was held by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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Mr. Li has been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC from December 2016.
Mr. Li has been elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since May 2005 to December 2016. In November 2018,
Mr. Li was elected as the vice president of first session of Hong Kong
Hangzhou Chamber of Commerce. He was also elected as the chairman
of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce
in July 2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District
General Chamber of Commerce in December 2012, the standing council
member and vice-chairman of the China Chemical Fiber Association
in April 2012 and April 2015 respectively. In October 2008, Mr. Li was
named the “Staff Caring Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City
jointly awarded by the Federation of Trade Union of Hangzhou City
and the Industry and Commerce Joint Committee of Hangzhou City. In
February 2013, Mr. Li was awarded the “Outstanding Socialist Builder”
for the years 2010—2012 by the Office of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District and The People’s Government Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan
District. Mr. Li is the uncle of Mr. Li Conghua, an executive Director.

Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”)

aged 46, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
manufacturing division of Yongsheng Dyeing. Mr. Ma has more
than twenty years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of ordinary operation of
the Group’s dyeing business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and
workshop officer of Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing
Branch Company from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the
position of domestic trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January
2002 to July 2005 and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group.
Mr. Ma served as the vice factory director, factory director and deputy
general manager of Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February
2008, and has held the general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing
since February 2008.
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In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of
Zhejiang University in April 2007. He completed the course of Business
Management from Donghua University in July 2015 and obtained his
professional Diploma. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation
Work” by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou
City in October 2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding
Contract Manager of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou
Administration for Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Enterprise Contract Management
Association in 2010.

Mr. Li Conghua (“Mr. Li CH”)

aged 47, is an executive Director. Mr. Li CH has more than 15 years
of experience in the textile industry, and was mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s
trading business before the disposal of the trading business of textile-
related products by the Group in May 2015. Mr. Li CH is currently
responsible for conducting product market trend analysis. He worked as
a chemical fiber materials salesperson in the chemical fiber department
in Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company Limited from June 1997 to
December 2000, and worked as a department manager in chemical
fiber department of Yongsheng Group from January 2000 to December
2004. Mr. Li CH has also completed the Senior Training Course for Chief
Executive Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang University in
January 2008. Mr. Li CH is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu”)

aged 54, is an executive Director, has over 30 years of experience in the
construction industry. He has joined the Group since 2016 and was the
vice general manager of the construction project of Yongsheng Plaza,
a building which is located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the general manager of each of Jiangsu
Zhongkai Properties Development Limited* CLEx P HEMEZLEE
FR ‘A E]) and Dalian Xinkongjian Properties Development Limited* (K&
HEBEMERMZEARAE), which were companies established in
the PRC and were principally engaged in property development. Mr. Xu
obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Nanjing Institute of Architectural
Engineering* (R SR T 12 2 %) (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University (R T#AZ))in 1992.

Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (“Ms. Wong”)

aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairlady of the audit committee and the remuneration committee under
the Board. Ms. Wong has more than thirty-three years of experience in
accounting and auditing, and mainly provides her independent judgment
on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects
of the Company. She had worked in major international accounting firms
and local accounting firms before she set up her own accounting firm in
Hong Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and chairperson of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 3366). Ms. Wong
is a non-executive director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co.
Limited (Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange with stock
code: 161 and had been voluntarily withdrawn from listing with effect
from 17 April 2020). She was an independent non-executive director of
China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (Main Board stock
code: 527) between 16 May 2006 and 31 January 2019, an executive
director of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously
known as JC Group Holdings Limited) (GEM stock code: 8326) between
21 June 2013 and 18 October 2016, and an independent non-executive
director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (GEM stock code: 8059)
between 2 August 2014 and 22 March 2016.

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 1983 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has
been registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
June 1991 and an associate of The Association of Chartered Public
Accountants in April 1990. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”) and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘FCPA”)
since May 1995 and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 7 November
2013.
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Mr. Shiping James Wang (“Mr. Wang”)
(Resigned on 1 April 2021)

aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee and the nomination committee under the Board.
Mr. Wang mainly provides his independent judgment on strategy,
performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects of the
Company. Mr. Wang was the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Zhongxin
Law Firm Shanghai Branch from July 2009 to March 2013 and has been
the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Shanghai Hanyuan Law Firm since
June 2013.

Mr. Wang obtained a master degree of science in biochemical
engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in May 1988.
He completed his Juris Doctor in Seton Hall Law School in June 1994,
Mr. Wang was admitted as an attorney at law in the Supreme Court of
New Jersey and the US District Court for the District of New Jersey in
December 1994. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 7 November 2013.

Mr. He Chengying (“Mr. He”)
(Appointed on 1 April 2021)

aged 58, is currently the dean of the Business School of Guangxi
University and the executive head of the Institute of ChinaASEAN Open-
door Finance (FEl— B ERAMKPI A A REHITERE) . Mr. He
graduated from the Department of Accountancy of South Western
University of Finance and Economics, holds a Master Degree of
Economics from Zhejiang University, a Doctoral Degree of Economics
from Xiamen University. He previously worked for Shenzhen Investment
Holding Corporation, China Eagle Securities, Guosen Securities and
United Securities. He is a professor, senior economist and a special
research fellow of the China Management Science Research Institute and
Researcher (Professor) of Zhejiang University of Finance and Economy.
Mr. He had previously engaged in state enterprise, state-owned asset
management, as well as directly participated in drafting and formulating
policies for state enterprise and state-owned asset management
reforms. Subsequently, Mr. He has engaged in stock market innovation,
asset reorganisation, as well as capital market operation and research.
He has accumulated extensive experience in corporate reform, asset
reorganisation and capital management planning. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Automobile
New Retail (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00526), since September 20086.
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Dr. Wang Huaping (“Dr. Wang”)

aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly provides his independent
judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and
other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research in nanomaterials for
fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite fibers, spinning forming
theory and processing technology, systems of new clean production:
ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has published a number of papers
on those topics.

Dr. Wang is an independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan High Polymer
Fiber Co. Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) and Yiwu Huading Polyamide Fibre Co.
Limited, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601113). Dr. Wang was an independent director of Zhejiang
Unifull Industrial Fiber Co., Ltd, a company which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002427), and resigned on 4
January 2017.
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Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher from March 1992 to September 1995, Dr. Wang worked
at Donghua University as an officer of the Technology Laboratory of
Chemical Fiber Engineering Research Centre. Dr. Wang served as
an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an officer, and an associate
researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering from
March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was appointed as the
associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering
from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008, Dr. Wang
has been a director of the Institute for Engineering Research Center of
Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.

Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, the deputy director
of Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, the deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, a committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, a committee member of Technical Committee of
the Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of China
Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 August 2014.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for details
of interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations held
by the Directors and chief executive of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Feng Hao (“Mr. Feng”)

aged 38, is the head of finance department of the Group, and is mainly
responsible for financial reporting and treasury management for the
Group. Mr. Feng has more than 10 years of experience in accounting
and financial reporting. Mr. Feng joined Yongsheng Group in September
2018. He was the financial director of Raffles Resources (Shanghai)
Limited from October 2010 to August 2018. He also had been the vice
general manager in Raffles Resources (Shanghai) Limited from March
2016 to August 2018.

Mr. Feng completed his bachelor degree majoring in Communication
Engineering from East China Normal University in June 2006. He further
obtained a master degree of professional accounting and a master
degree of commerce from Deakin University in June 2010.

Mr. Liu Chun Kwok (“Mr. Liu”)

aged 44, is a director and general manager of Widely Construction
& Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He is mainly
responsible for supervising the overall business strategies and major
business decisions of the Widely Construction & Engineering Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a science bachelor degree in
construction engineering and management from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2013. Mr. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the building
maintenance engineering industry. He served as a project manager
in several construction engineering companies. Mr. Liu has extensive
experience in planning, operation and management of maintenance
projects with different sizes and natures. He found Widely Construction &
Engineering Limited in March 2009.
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Mr. Chung, Kwok Mo John (“Mr. Chung”)

aged 52, holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie
University, Australia in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, with over 20 years
of experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. Chung was an auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international accounting
firm) from 1992 to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held several senior
management positions, including chief financial officer, executive director
and independent non-executive director, in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung has joined the Group as a vice president of the Company
since February 2018. Currently, he is also an independent non-executive

director of each of the following listed companies on the Stock Exchange:

- B & S International Holdings Ltd. (Main Board stock code: 1705)

- YTO Express (International) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock
code: 6123)

- BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (Main Board stock
code: 285)

- Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (Main Board
stock code: 3363)

- Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code:
1939)
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Mr. Li Wenhua

Aged 49, is the director and the general manager of Yongsheng
construction project. Mr. Li Wenhua has more than 15 years of
experience in the commercial properties investment development
industry, and is mainly responsible for managing the Company’s daily
operations, supervising project engineering and investment promotion.
From 1996 to 2005, Mr. Li Wenhua was responsible for the Company’s
sales work in Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited. He worked as the
vice general manager of Zhejiang Yongsha Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2011. He assumed the role of general manager of
Tongxiang Yonghua Commercial Operation Management Co., Ltd. from
2012 to 2019. And since 2019, he served as the general manager of
Yonghao Investment Management Co., Ltd..

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”)

Aged 39, is the Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung is
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She obtained a bachelor degree in commerce
from The University of Sydney and a master degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over
10 years of company secretarial experience in listed companies in Hong
Kong. Ms. Yeung was the company secretary of China Daye Non-Ferrous
Metals Mining Limited (stock code: 661), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2012 to August 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavour to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). During the Period under Review, the Board considered that the
Company had complied with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and maximise
the interests of the Shareholders, investors, employees, business
partners and the public as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Period under Review.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

During the Period under Review and as at the date of this annual report,
the Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

EXYg
EXRGNER
EEHARSEREBFENBE FHN RS

R-EFRTURANTEFRBUIFNTESRNSGY
4B BY > BI B A AT 18 3L H

REEAARAFHRE EEEHUATHLHIT
EER=2BIUFRTESHEM :

Name of Director EEHH
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) WL (FE)
Mr. Li Conghua FHOEESS

Mr. Ma Qinghai E5EtE

Mr. Xu Wensheng G e
Independent non-executive Director BIIERITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BHERLT

Mr. He Chengying (Appointed on 1 April 2021)
Mr. Shiping James Wang (Resigned on 1 April 2021)
Dr. Wang Huaping

The brief biographical details of and relationships among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 21 to 30. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the
CEO.

During the Period under Review, the Board maintained a high level
of independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the requirement of
independence under the Listing Rules.

Board meetings and general meetings

Board meetings are held regularly. In addition to regular meetings,
meetings are held as and when necessary under particular
circumstances. During the Period under Review, the Board meetings
were held. The Directors attended the meetings in person or by telephone
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meetings held during the Period under Review is set out as
follows:

Corporate Governance Report

ARBEWHRBIUFATESTRBELTRAE
SIBRFTEAYIBIL M55 B LN FEEIB I MRS
Lo RBEFMEMNERE A RARAHERBIUIF
HITEEHARELHRIABBILENRE -

ERTEERRRKE

EFEEHERER -AABRAGHN TRER
ENREBRTARER ROEHARN BR1TE
FEER -REARTDZEBEZEMA ((EARER
MR BEERENEBEBFSMEE-

EFHFEREBRARTHNEST TR MRERE
BURCER BT ¢

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board
meetings held

HERE HERE
FRB1TESRE FRBITIRERARE
EERY RE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Cheng Fh e 4/4 1/1
Mr. Li Conghua e 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ma Qinghai E5EtE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Xu Wensheng G e 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUEPITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BHERLZT 4/4 1/1
Mr. He Chengying EE b 0/0 0/0
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R —FE - —FIH—HEZ)
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFLE 4/4 1/1
(Resigned on 1 April 2021) (P —F - —F9 5 —HFHE)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 4/4 1/

Mr. He Chengying was appointed on 1 April 2021. Therefore he is not
entitled to attend any meeting and general meeting of the Company held
in 2020.
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The annual general mesting (“AGM”) of the Company were held on 29
May 2020. Our forthcoming AGM will be held on 27 May 2021. Our
Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and other senior
executives of the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the Shareholders. All Directors
treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the Shareholders at the
AGM held annually.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (i) any material conflict of interest
of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii) approval
of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of policies
and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors and
management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues relating
to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior managers; develops, reviews and
monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee under
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 7 November
2013. The Nomination Committee has from time to time identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in selecting
candidates for directorships is whether their characters, qualifications and
experience are appropriate for the businesses of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. All such retiring Directors, being eligible,
may offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Ma
Qinghai and Mr. Xu Wensheng will retire from office as Directors, being
eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold office until the
next annual general meeting and shall there be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. He Chengying, being appointed on 1 April 2021 as an
addition to the Board, shall retired as a Director by rotation at the AGM
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Save as Mr. He Chengying, there are no
Directors who shall retire from office at the AGM, and being eligible, offer
himself/herself for re-election.
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Insurance of the directors and officers

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors and
officers of the Group in respect of legal action against them which is in
compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
in any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Period under Review is set out
below:

EFRERAENFRE

FABBETTRTRIMEXEAA 8K St HE
ERFTERSBAERNERFARBEFRSHBA
SEERE-

ARBHRRIFEEEER

MERESRELRESIRZEEM LEERH LT
EEEFEFEREFERR -ARABNIR/EREE
ENFETXLROREZHRESNBEREI-
RESTREBNKEMEMER UBRFRETD
MEER EHRAKRBREIREERE U R K E
HEARRETNEE 2BEZTHAFEEE
ZRNBZM URN2EEAEEOEI UE
RREHRENMFELE - REFRMNTE
EFNOBEAAMEZEISEEST

Types of continuous
professional development

programmes
HEEXRRIERR

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Cheng Wit 1
Mr. Li Conghua FHEESYE 1
Mr. Ma Qinghai EEBLE 1
Mr. Xu Wensheng BB E 1
Independent non-executive Directors BIIEHITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BTt 1
Mr. He Chengying EEEEbes

(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R =T - —F U —HEZT) 0
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFLEE

(Resigned on 1 April 2021) (R ZEZ—F95 —HEHTE) 1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 1
Note: Wi
1. Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the 1. BB ISR AR E TR R EM

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations.

BRERERER -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,

details of which are as follows:
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
committee committee committee
Name of Director E5lSH BZEEE REZEEY HNEEE
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) ZESE (EH) Chairman Member
S [pg=|
Mr. Li Conghua FHRESE
Mr. Ma Qinghai EEEtE
Mr. Xu Wensheng R E Member
&
Independent Non-Executive Director HIiIIEHITESE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling =% $=Xegun Chairlady Chairlady
FFE FE
Mr. He Chengying EEEbes Member Member
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R —E_——1F [Bg=] RE
795 —H EZAE)
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFLEE Member Member
(Resigned on 1 April 2021) (R —&E_——1F & [53=1
795 —HF#E)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT Member Member Member
ng=| RE Ing=|
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee under the Board (the “Audit Committee”) currently
consists of three independent non-executive Directors. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s financial
information, review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal control procedures, nominate and monitor external
auditors and provide advice and comments to the Board. The Audit
Committee is established with specific terms of references which deal
clearly with the committee’s authority and duties and are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

There were three meetings held during the Period under Review and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

BZZEE

EFEgETHNEREZES (BREET ) RA=U
BUFATEFEN BEREZEENIENERE
REABNYHER B REERABNYMHBHH
BRERAMBEZERER BB RERINSZEEN N
RREFEREER kIR BEREZEGIHAR
BEEE FERPEEGNREMNSE LTI
NNl

EZEEENIEREEREFEMERNEREL
REAMBRENTELE - BELARTRMBEE (B
BERARM -ARAEH RMBREMEAERN
EERER URBEENEIIFERARRASE &
BEREEFENERE - URMEERERREMHRE
ZRIFBRRBOINE BN ETGRERSZ
EREZERERHENER USHIBTHE-

REEHRAN BT T=g% SUEZETNEN
HEERETMT

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Audit Committee BEREZEERE HERY GERE

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEBRYT (FE) 3/3

Mr. He Chengying EEt=es 0/0
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R =T - —F U —HEZT)

Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 3/3

(Resigned on 1 April 2021) (Ff = F - —F U5 —HEFFHE)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 3/3

During the Period under Review, the Audit Committee discussed and
reviewed the interim and final results of the Group and certain other
businesses. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control was also
discussed at the meetings. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters including a review of the interim report, annual report
and the final result of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2020. The Group’s final results for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to
the Board for approval.
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Auditors’ remuneration

The Group’s external auditors is Ernst & Young. The remuneration paid
or payable to the external auditors of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 comprised fees for audit services of approximately
RMB1,250,000 (2019: RMB1,250,000). During the year ended 31
December 2020, there was no non-audit service provided by the Group’s
external auditors.

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for
financial statements

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in
the auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The statement by the auditors of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
in the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements on a going-concern basis.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors. The roles and functions
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established with
specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and are available on the website of each of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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During the Period under Review, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the Board’s diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and nomination policy.

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

REEHRRN RLEZEGERITEFTIHRE R
WA BT EBILIFATEENBILL 1R
LEEETERIEFENESTIEERR ((EEE
FMEZTEHER) RiERER-

FREFEHEZ TIEEERN -7 £RERE
TREEFEREZTEANREALTRATNE
R-FMEEFSMENZEIURBAES BRA
WEEBREAFGERAREER - REEAF
B—25ZntBBRHEE FEE (BFRRN) 4
ANFE - XERBEEFR - FEXER RE -AH
RIRBIER REBREEANRERIRBESTE
RHNBEMMERE - RLEEERITRKETIEER
BRRNEFEMESTIEER MERETZA
e

One meeting was held during the Period under Review and the REBHA BT7T—XEF SUZEEREN
attendance by each committee member is set out below: HEBR&HFWT
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Nomination Committee REEZEEEWE HERYGERE
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) =k (F/E) 1/1
Mr. He Chengying Bt 0/0
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R =T —FPI 5 —HEZT)
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHEHELE 11
(Resigned on 1 April 2021) (P —FE - —F9 5 —HEHE)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 11

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size
and structure of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, re-election of Directors and appointment of
Mr. He Chengying as an independent non-executive Director.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will propose
the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will review and make
recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills and experience of
the candidates appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity, in
terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and gender.

40 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RBE_ZE_EF+_A=+—HILEBEFE &%
LZECTONEFE MM REKREB BIIFRT
EFBIM - EEEEREEAMBLERBIIF
HWITEFETERARTR

REBRLMEFR ARERAREVLEZEGHER
B MELEZEGRERBEC A RDEBIRNE
BEABFEENMH  RAERER Ut mESEREM
fe-

ESTHVERERE  MERITERER R KRMH]
HHEBREZRE-



Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee under
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) which comprises one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the Chairlady of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommendation to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and
the performance of the Group. The Remuneration Committee’s authority
and duties are set out in written terms of reference that are posted on the
website of each of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's performance
during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
i) BH FRAM BUREE
Basic salary To reflect the market value of each individual Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually with market trend
TN RBEBEAZDISER FAREMIN BERTISBE LR
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
R wEIRirERE B mHER
Discretionary performance To motivate employees to deliver high levels of performance  Cash payment - Individual performance

bonus of the Company and individual performance goals - Company performance
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One meeting was held during the Period under Review and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REERA 877 —RE% SUEZEENEN
EEIERETMT

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Remuneration Committee HNEEERE HERY SERH
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEBRZT (FE) 1/1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 11
Mr. Xu Wensheng XA E 1/

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2020, the bonus payments to the Directors and senior
management of the Company in 2020.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a
proper and effective system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. On
30 December 2015 and 20 December 2018, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been amended to include risk management
as part of the internal control of the Company. During the Period under
Review, the Board reported the risks associated with the Company and
the Audit Committee was satisfied that the risks have been properly dealt
with by the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal control covering all controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied that the Group had fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the Period
under Review.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group during the
Period under Review falls within the following band:
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REBEARN ZREESREEENHINRENFT
SEEE :

Number of individuals

AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,00078 7T 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 75 £2,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 2 3,000,0007 7T 0
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,00177T 54,000,000/ 7T 0
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,0017%71 25,000,000/ 7T 0
11

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November
2013 (the “Prospectus”), Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive Global Limited
are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential competition,
the Controlling Shareholders has given an irrevocable non-competition
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Company on 7 November 2013. Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Controlling Shareholders has, among other
matters, undertaken with the Company that each of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (other than the Group) shall
not engage in any business which will or may compete with the business
currently and from time to time engaged by the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in paragraph headed
“Relationship with our controlling shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Period under
Review. The independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the
aforementioned annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Period under Review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 31 May 2019.

Ms. Yeung plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board'’s policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of
the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company Secretary
had received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Directors and senior management” on page 28 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of such
dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and future
operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital requirements
of the Group, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability
of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. In addition,
any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman
Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue to
review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify this
Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an extraordinary general meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the registration office no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures for
the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted
on the website of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and investors
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports);
annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held; and all the
information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure, as well as
corporate communications and other publications which shall be posted
on the website (http://www.chinaysgroup.com) of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders and
investors in a timely and effective manner at all times.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1,

Admiralty Centre,

No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699

The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from the
Shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional documents

During the Period under Review, the Company did not make any changes
to the memorandum of association and Articles of Association of the
Company, the current version of which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Number of shares
The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December

2020 was 731,557,090. The Company will periodically announce the
total number of its issued shares in its monthly returns.
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Important schedule for the Shareholders - AGM

An AGM will be held at The Dest Conference Centre, 5/F, United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong on 27 May 2021. A circular
containing, among others, details of the AGM has been despatched to
the Shareholders together with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email:is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of complying
and applying with the Code but also about promoting and developing
a healthy and ethical corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the Shareholders to improve and promote the
transparency are welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

48 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RERNEEZFARE-RREFKE

BRREBFAEHENR _SEZ—FRAAZ+EHREE
BB IBEISTAE — P05 The Dest & & /0 &
To—mEE EPERE RERBFAREFIBFNER
BERAFR-—HTETRR-

BERMBRELDEER

BEREBEERBFHO

EBERAKER18IFE P L5418

BEE RS (852) 2980 1333

BEERE 1(852) 2810 8185

E T is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

#uh Twww.tricoris.com

WARKE . EFAREETFEF=+%
(EH—Z 2R > AR BRI

RAEFERERKFE

RAGCEEAKFUFRBETRERATR 5
EIRERRE2HEABEENEEXE - ART KR
KR REERRIER THBRSANBERNE
RBOER-ARFATRLURRIELEEANZENR
FOUNERESHERE-

REREFE
ZE
&8 T —F=A"+AH



The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 19 April 2012. The registered office of the Company
is at 2/F Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric; (i)
provision of renovation, maintenance, alteration and addition services
(“RMAA services”); and (iii) property investment.

Further discussion and analysis of the business activities of the Group,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Business Review” as set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this report of the directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and each member of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group and the financial conditions of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 94 to 250 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise the Group’s environmental impact by
water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment implementation, energy
saving and wastage reduction, and encouraging recycle of office supplies
and other materials. The Group also requires its factories to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
PRC regulators.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognise that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group. The
Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship with its
employees and business partners and improving the quality of services to
the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
its workers are provided with regular training courses on operation of
different types of machinery, as well as work safety. The Group strives
to motivate its employees with a clear career path and offer them
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. The
Group also rewards its employees for their work performance through
incentives, such as bonuses and options, to motivate their continuous
contribution.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communications with its customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical
meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China while the ordinary shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the financial year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
page 250 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB849,713,000 (2019: approximately
RMB892,932,000) available for distribution to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are set
out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Share option scheme of the Company” below, respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend (the
“Final Dividend”) of HK$0.02 per Share for the financial year ended 31
December 2020. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.015
per Share that was paid in 2020, amounts to an aggregate dividend
payment of HK$0.035 per Share for the full financial year of 2020. The
Final Dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of
major suppliers and customers of the Group of the purchases and sales

for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

The aggregate purchases

Five largest suppliers accounted for 38.0%
The aggregate sales
Five largest customers accounted for 31.9%

So far as known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions” below, none of the Directors, their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or substantial shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the above major suppliers or customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately RMB670,000
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB396,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had bank
borrowings of approximately RMB168.3 million, which was mainly used
for the properties investment.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)

Mr. Li Conghua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Mr. Xu Wensheng

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. He Chengying (Appointed on 1 April 2021)

Mr. Shiping James Wang (Resigned on 1 April 2021)
Dr. Wang Huaping
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Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Ma Qinghai, Mr. Xu Wensheng and Mr. He Chengying
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. None of the retiring Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). Details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular of the Company which had
been despatched to the Shareholders together with this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 7 November
2016 (except for Mr. Xu Wensheng whose service contract commenced
on 29 November 2019 and Mr. He Chengying whose service contract
commerce on 1 April 2021) subject to termination, among others, by
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing. Each of such Directors
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM every
three years. Director’s fees are payable on a pro-rata basis for any non-
full year’s service. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience in the Company,
and the prevailing market conditions. No Directors have waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Period under Review or at any time during the Period
under Review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Period under Review.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
during the Period under Review.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company, its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary of that
ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Period under Review and up to and including the date of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and based on the confirmations received, considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Law of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)
held by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(A) Long position in the Shares and underlying
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Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li") (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 479,132,990 65.50%
sk (TFEEE) W) REEEER
Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 7,075,677 0.97%
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Note 1:  Mr. Li beneficially owns 90% of the issued share capital KizEr: EhREERBEESBRAT0%N
of Astute Horizon Limited which in turn, beneficially holds BETREA MESBRABER
272,661,290. Mr. Li also beneficially owns approximately 5272,661,29002 [ 10 o FHETNER
95.71% of the issued share capital of Ever Thrive Global BREBRRKARATL5.71%HE
Limited which in turn, beneficially holds 206,471,700 BITRA MERRIKERARER
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be F7206,471,7008% B2 15 o AL > 1R %
interested in all the Shares held by Astute Horizon Limited BERBPERG FRERRATE
and Ever Thrive Global Limited for the purposes of the ERESBRABARERIRIKEGREA
SFO. Mr. Li is also the director of Astute Horizon Limited BEENEERNPER T -F
and Ever Thrive Global Limited. ENAESERABDMERIRIKER
NEINESR-
Note 2:  As at 31 December 2020, share options to subscribe Ko RIEZZEHF+"A=+—H5
for 4,400,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Ma. Besides, SEEEIR IR EE4,400,000R B 5
Mr. Ma beneficially owns 2,675,677 Shares. Therefore, MWERE I EXEERHESR
Mr. Ma was interested in 7,075,677 Shares in aggregate. 2,675,677HERRH o HIE > B E S
127,075,677 B B 17 FRHE S #E 1 o
Note 3:  As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued W3 MRIBEIEF+ZRA=+—H B8%
Shares was 731,557,090. TR 4B #A731,557, 0008 B% 1% ©
(B) Long position in shares of associated (B) RiBEEEBERNGTFE
corporation
Number of
Name of Associated Shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
Fr¥%EE#EE gt
EENY HHE AR T g5/ 48 i dLE =] Bt
Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 446 95.71%
oAk ERIRIKERAE BmEAA
Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 100 90.00%
ESBRRA HzE1) EmEEAA
Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2020, BRAXFIIEEEIIN RZZEZZF+TA
none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had —t+—HB EFHEARTNRETHAEL
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying ERAANBRETMAEEZE (EEREH KX
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated RE®RA) NRMD  EEROEESZTES
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be RIEE 5 R E1& B B 352(K B8 AZIKFR
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352 M ESSMANAMERISK R > NIREE
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company ZFRBHEARAT KRB AT AR o

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:
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T ERRREMALRIRD RERME
17 B9 2 B ik

RIZBZZFFTR=+—H BEFMAM T
AL (EFHERENEBITHRAERIN AR
RAWEFERRMIVBRARN T EAREZ SR
BIRAIEXVE 2537 B (VR SRR A A 5] K Bk

RARBAEEENE  NEENBEFTENER
FERERBER TRAEREAEMEE AT RE
ARELERENEAEFRANEES % LB

R
==

Number of Approximate

Shares held/  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

FR¥s A BE49 A 1

RERETE 1t g%/ 4& BHEE BatE

Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 272,661,290 37.27%
BRARRQE BaE1) BmEEAA

Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 206,471,700 28.22%
HERIRIKERAE BamEAA

Ms. Chen Fangajin (Note 1) Interest of spouse 479,132,990 65.50%

MRS Azt (BaT) BRI s

Note 1: Ms. Chen Fangqin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen
Fanggin was deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares
which are interested by Mr. Li for the purposes of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued Shares was
731,557,090.

Mia1: RERRERFHRENERS Bt SMEFK
HEKRAMES > BEFRIREA/AEFERF

FEGEAREN2ERMPHEA -

Mo RIBEZZEFE+"A=+—H > BEBITRDLE
£ 4731,557,0000% ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (j) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered to a participant; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date
of the Company (i.e. 27 November 2013).

The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, no share options
were granted (15,000,000 share options and 16,300,000 share
options were granted on 6 January 2015 and 30 December 2015,
respectively, under the terms of the Scheme (collectively, the “Grants”),
representing approximately 4.28% of the issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2020). Details of the Grants are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 6 January 2015 and 30
December 2015, respectively.

Up to 31 December 2020, the following set forth the summary of the
changes in share options granted, details of which are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements:
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BRERRBEZFEGINESTEEERNRREAME
BTRE AR E RSB B RER D B EES
THF WARZT B IRBMRILGEXPARE -

HE_SE_ZE+_A=+—BHLFHBEE I
mIEHERE (CER _E—RAF—BAHARERCZ
—EE+-AZ+HRBEZAENERRYE
15,000,0001% B B& # 5216,300,00017 BE B& 1 (4%
BB HEEREKABNRIZZZFE+A
=+— EE%ﬁk%ﬁ4%%M&ﬁMﬁ%ﬁ@
RAEARBHERINAZE—HAF—RBAABEZ
—RE+_A=+HMAHmA-

BEECTZEFSAR=+—H ERUEBREDN
@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%3z9D7< HBEHN A HMBRERMEES2 :

Number of unlisted share options
FFEmERESE

Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grantof ~ Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2020 the year the year the year price 2020 share options share options period options
HRZRA
ot at- 22 EREE/ - r_§_§$ - REREEH
SABRARER -B-A EREH P ERTR fiffE +ZA=+-B  ERESLAE ERESED fTfEmeRAS HEmER
(HKD, /De/ShaQe/ (HKD, /)e/é’hare)
) SRET)
Directors
8%
Mr. Ma Qinghai 2,200,000 - - - $1.125 2,200,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
. 5 January 2025
EEERE Z3-nf 50% —AENA_HE ZE”RE
—BRE ﬂ&* BRE —B&H
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025
50%: ZE—t EWH E S
Z3_1%-R
2,200,000 - - - $1.025 2,200,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025™
1% 50% “F-tFNA"HE “E2Rf
A=A “ECRE+-R=HA" +ZA=+H

50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025
50% 23— \FME—HE
CEREto A=A
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HHE RS
=
Number of unlisted share options
FLmBRESE
Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and Asat Granted forfeited Exercised Asat as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grantof ~ Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2020 the year the year the year price 0 share options share options period options
, N
KIEZEE Emitl/ . N . Ja- 22 ,_ RERERT
SEERTRER —-RA-A EREH P ER{TE fi%fE +2A=+-A  BREELAH BRESES fiEERAS HEHfER
(HKD /UerSharg} (HKD /Derb’harg
S ET) SRET)
Other employees 4,472,400 - 290,000 593,000 §1.125 3,589,400 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
5 January 2025
HfiES “F-1f 50% _E—"ENA_HE C“Z_IfF
—AiB “BIRE-RER —BEAH
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025
50%: _E—tEMA—-HE
“EZCRE-BRE
9,731,000 - 1,688,000 1,108,000 $1.225 6,935,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025
“E2-1f 50% “E—tENAAE  “ERE
+ZA=1A ZECRETZA=R” TZA=1H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025™
50% “5—\fMA-HE
ZRIRETIRCAY
Total
by 18,603,400 - 1,978,000 1,701,200 14,924,200
Notes: BaE -
. The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on . RIEZEN _E—AF—ABEHZERE

6 January 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2015.

o The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on

30 December 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2015.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has maintained appropriate Directors’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Save as disclosed below, during the Review Period, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities.

During the Review Period, the Company has repurchased a total of
19,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) of the Company
on the Stock Exchange at aggregate consideration (before expenses) of
HK$38,863,850. All the repurchased Shares were cancelled during the
period ended 31 December 2020.

R E - & EO D

BRTIXPIREEN  REBHARN ARBHEEM
MEBARMEREES LENBOERBEMES -

REBEBAR AR ERBXFERSHE
19,800,000k B RO.01B T2 AR ZER (TH
1) > BB GOBRBISZ AT %38,863,8507% 7T © &L
ECECEF+_RB=+—HIHE EBREZ
R EsEEH -

Number of Aggregate
Shares consideration
Date B Repurchased Purchased Price (before expenses)
FrEBEIR (P8 E Bl ARE (NkREE XA
Highest Lowest (HKD)
=) RiE (&)
5 February 2020 “ETZE"ARA 6,000,000 19 19 11,400,000
19 February 2020 “E-TE_A+AH 2,000,000 1.93 1.93 3,860,000
20 February 2020 “E-EE"A"+H 4,000,000 1.94 1.91 7,710,000
14 May 2020 “Z2ZFHF1IH 2,500,000 1.96 1.95 4,884,500
15 May 2020 £ ZTERB+EA 2,500,000 1.97 1.95 4,887,350
13 July 2020 “ECEE+A+=H 1,300,000 1.99 1.98 2,582,000
28 August 2020 ZZIZENBZFNH 1,500,000 2.36 2.36 3,540,000
19,800,000 38,863,350

AUDITORS =S Em

RERNMBRREHRESFAMLZKEAMER

The financial statements now presented have been audited by Ernst &

Young, Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021, both days inclusive, for
the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitiement to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on 27 May 2021, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
AGM, the Shareholders should ensure that all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021.

The Board recommends the payment of the final dividend of HK$0.02
per Share to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 4 June 2021. The payment of the
final dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM. If
the resolution for the final dividend is passed at the AGM, the register of
members will be closed from Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June
2021, both days inclusive, and the final dividend is expected to be paid
on Tuesday, 29 June 2021. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
the Shareholders should ensure that all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 to 252 of this
annual report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB~ 4L & BB TR0

INTRODUCTION
About this report

This is the 5th Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) report
published by the Company for the purpose of disclosing the initiatives of
the Group in relation to its ESG development.

As per the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(the “Reporting Guide”) published by the Stock Exchange, the Board
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the risks in
relation to the ESG of the Group, as well as ensuring the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems by the Group. The management of the Group is responsible for
confirming to the Board of the effectiveness of these systems.

The ESG report aims at improving the stakeholders’ confidence and
understanding of the Group’s environmental and social performance
as well as the sustainable development strategies of the Group. The
Board of the Company has reviewed and confirmed the ESG report has
contained material, complete and balanced contents.

PREPARATION STANDARDS

The report is prepared based on the principles set out in the Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

The ESG report covers the Group’s three main businesses in the PRC: (i)
dyeing and processing of differentiated fabric, (i) RMAA Business, and (iii)
properties investment.

This report covers the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Period Under Review”).

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group’s stakeholders include governments and regulators,
shareholders and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers,
suppliers and community. The Group attaches great importance
to communicating with stakeholders and has established effective
communication channels with stakeholders to learn about their demands
and expectation, to discuss and respond to the corporate social
responsibility concerns of all stakeholders, so as to promote the growth
of both sides.
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Stakeholders
M=HERAA

Expectations and concerns

HAEE K B E

Communication channels
BREE

B AL & R BRI

Communication frequency

BEER

Compliance with laws and

regulations
BFERRER
Governments ar:: regulators Pay taxes
B REEE AT
Epidemic prevention and control
BB

Return on investment
eIk
Corporate govemance
TEEAR
Information disclosure
EERE

Shareholders and investors

IREKRIZREA

Protecting employee’s rights and
interests
HES T HEm
Career development channel
BxEREEE
Healthy and safe working
environment
REZE2NITERIE
Epidemic prevention and control

= IBpE

Employees
8T

Fair and impartial procurement
NN EREE
Win-win cooperation

Suppliers
HFEE

ERofF

Community engagement
HESE
Business compliance
EBER
Environmental awareness
IRIREH

Community
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Compliance management
aREE
Proactive in tax payment
FEHIR
Implementation of national
policies
HAITBIRE R

Announcements and circulars
NERIBK
Annual financial reports
FEMBRS
Shareholders’ meeting

REKRE

Regular meetings and trainings
TE B E % A E
Talent development programme
AT &Rt S
Employee care activities
BT RIEES)
Intranet websites

Business visit
ES 0
Daily meeting
BE&%
Review and performance
evaluation

BRI

Company’s official website
REEH
Public welfare activities

NEEH

Multiple times per year
SELR

Multiple times per year
SESER

Multiple times per month
BAZX

Multiple times per month
SAER

Multiple times per year
(SRR
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B AL & R BT

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT
Build a sustainable ecosystem

In response to the national requirement for accelerating the development
of “conservation-oriented society”, the Group proactively complied with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to emissions and pollutants
control, and implemented the “Quality and Environmental Management
Manual” in association with the management procedure manuals in
relation to waste water treatment, gas emission, waste handling and
resources management process to monitor the treatment and disposal
of waste water, gas emissions and waste disposal. The Group has been
accredited with the ISO 14001 environmental management certification
since February 2015 and has completed the external audit and renewal
related to ISO during the Period under Review.

Application for Global Recycled Standard 4.0 (referred to as GRS 4.0)
was first made in 2020. The certificate was successfully obtained in
February, which is an international, voluntary and comprehensive product
standard that sets out the requirements for third party certification of
recycling content, chain of custody, social and environmental practices
and chemical restrictions. It currently aims at increasing the use of
recycled materials in products and to reduce and eliminate the hazards
caused by their production, to lay the foundations for the international
marketing of products and to carry out annual audits and renewals of
GRS standards.

A1. Emission policies
Gas emission policy

The Group has formulated the “Gas Emission Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage its gas
emission and ensure the Group’s compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations regarding gas emissions in the PRC.

The Group primarily produces the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) due
to energy consumption in the production process. Pursuant to the
GHG Protocol (an international standard for measuring emissions
from private and public operations) in translating the GHG emission
resulted from energy consumption under Scope 2 Guidance
of the GHG Protocol (an international standard regarding how
corporations measuring emissions from purchased or acquired
electricity, steam, heat and cooling), the Group has a total GHG
emission of approximately 33,655.95 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalence during the Period under Review.
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In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested RMB265,000 to
complete the remediation and upgrading of major volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) and invested RMB2.2 million in real-time online
monitoring of VOC management. According to report by Hangzhou
Tongbiao Environmental Monitoring Technology Co. Ltd* (#1138
ZIRIBEEAFE M B RAE), all indicators of VOCs have met the
requirements of this remediation, and have successfully passed
the remediation performance assessment, further standardising
the prevention and control of volatile organic pollutants. For water
consumption, effort was made to improve water recycling; and for
power consumption, air compressors and online transformation
are adopted; electronic transformation has been carried out, and
the annual energy consumption of water, electricity and steam has
dropped by more than 5%, and all pollutants have reached the
emission target, achieving better economic and social benefits.

Waste water treatment policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Water Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage the
treatment and disposal of waste water and comply with the rules
and regulations regarding waste water disposal.

The Group adopted measures to separate waste water produced
during its production from other uses. Waste water segregation is
adopted in the production sites in order to facilitate segregation in
treatments for different types of waste water.

The Group’s waste water is mainly produced in the dyeing facilities.
In order to comply with the local government requirements to
ensure waste water was pre-treated (i.e. reducing the Chemical
Oxygen Demand (“COD”) level of the waste water) before entering
the municipal drainage system, the Group built a waste water
pretreatment facility on the dyeing production site in 2015 with
further enhancement in 2018.
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During the Period under Review, the Group installed the Distributed
Control System (“DCS”) central control system and ammonia
nitrogen automatic monitoring system for wastewater treatment
process in its workshops. The DCS central control system is
designed to monitor the whole process of wastewater treatment
by continuously monitoring sewage inflow, inflow temperature, PH
value, operating condition of circulating water pump, discharge
amount and other real time indexes on a 24-hour basis. With such
system, wastewater treatment was under global monitoring and
steady control, ensuring discharged wastewater after treatment
met environmental requirements, such as COD under 200mg/
L, PH value within the range of 6 to 9, ammonia-nitrogen below
20mg/L and total nitrogen below 30mg/L.

In May 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately RMB0.84
million to upgrade the sewage treatment system, and a set of
shallow dissolving air-floating system (&8 &% % 4%) with a
processing capacity of 100 tons/hour, replacing the inefficient
sewage physicochemical system of the primary settling tank in
the original sewage biochemical system. In addition, another set
of anaerobic sewage circulation system G5/KERRIEIE 2 47)
came into operation and solved occasional blockage in the original
anaerobic sewage distributor pipe, which further ensured the
stable operation of the sewage treatment system.

In August 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMBO0.14 million to upgrade the sewage online monitoring
equipment and installed a detector for total nitrogen to realize real-
time monitor on the total nitrogen in the sewage discharged.

In September 2019, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMB2.24 million to upgrade the waste gas VOC automatic
monitoring system.

In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMBO0.8 million to upgrade all the sewage pipelines in the plant
area to realize “zero liquid discharge”. New oil & water separator,
3-pool septic tank and initial rainwater collection pool were built,
and 18 rain-sewage joints were dug and repaired and 66 damaged
points in pipelines were repaired without excavation, and signs for
rain and sewage and flowing direction of about 300 manholes were
set, thus the goal of “full collection of sewage, complete diversion
of rainwater and sewage, standardized discharge from sewage
pipe” was achieved.
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Waste management policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Management Procedure”
in order to effectively and efficiently manage the treatment and
disposal of solid waste.

Hazardous waste produced by the Group during its production
process mainly includes dyeing sludge and waste oil from stenter.
The Group stores such hazardous waste separately by their
classification and adds labels on each depositary to specify the
type, quantity and deposited time before they were transferred to
professional third party for disposal.

In June 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMB218,000 to purchase a high-pressure diaphragm filter press
to upgrade the sludge treatment part of the sewage system, which
not only significantly improved the printing and dyeing sludge
treatment efficiency, but also made the treated sludge have a
very low water content, thus significantly reducing the cost of
subsequent sludge disposal.

Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group mainly derived
from packaging materials in production and domestic wastes
from staff dormitory and office. The Group strives to reduce the
packaging materials of the products. The Group maintains optimal
design for packaging materials in accordance with environmental
protection requirements, for example: to reduce product size,
minimise packaging and save storage space. Given the needs to
meet customer expectations and logistics requirements, the Group
strives to cut down the usage of packaging materials. The main
packaging materials for the Group’s PFY products include carton
boxes, paper cones, foam boards, plastic bags and plastic fims,
while the packaging materials for dyed fabric products include
paper cones and plastic films. Wooden supports are used for
product storage and auxiliary transportation and will be disposed of
as general industrial waste only when damaged. The new wooden
supports are those recyclable old wooden supports. On the other
hand, domestic wastes are handled by municipal cleaning service.
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2020 A1

Emissions KPI

The following table sets out the gas emission and waste disposal
data of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020:

KPI
KPI

Specific indicator
HEg1ER

Emission

PrE

2020 ATHEI ) RS2 AE 0I5 1R

TRIIWEAERHEE_Z _ZTF+_4
T+ —BLEEENERIIMEREEYREH
5

Intensity

B

A1

A1.2

A1.3

A14

A2. Use of

Waste water

[BE 7K

GHG

mERE
Hazardous waste
BEEEEY
Non-Hazardous
mEREY

resources

579,158 tons
579,153
33,655.9 tons
33,655.0M8
506 tons
506M

N/A

~EA

The following table sets out the consumption rate of electricity,

water and packaging materials for the year ended 31 December

2020:

KPI
KPI

Specific Indicator

BRRiEiR

1,600.15 tons/RMB million sales
1,600.1508, B &t AR IEHEEE
92.99 tons/RMB million sales
92.99ME, EHE T ARIEIHELE
1.4 tons/RMB million sales

1,408 " BBTARIBIHERE
N/A

TER

A2, ER{EFER

FRIMBE-_S-_SE+-A=+—AIF
EEIEN KRR

Resource

BRHER

A2.1

A2.2

A2.5

Energy

AER

Water

K

Packing Materials
2k

75.5427 million kwh
7554 27TH B T ELFF
585,920 tons
585,920MF

456.74 tons
456.740

Please refer to paragraph A3 below for description of energy

use efficiency initiatives adopted by the Group and the results

achieved.
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As the Group’s Yongsheng Plaza project is under construction, we
take all reasonable measures to minimize the environmental impact
during the construction process.

In terms of waste disposal, we set aside a dedicated temporary
space for waste storage at the construction site. Waste is stored
by category, with safety precautions and visible signs for waste that
may cause secondary pollution. Waste shall not be scattered or
mixed during transportation, and will be sent to the units or sites
approved by government departments for treatment and disposal.

In terms of construction waste and material dumping, the Group
takes the following measures:

)

The construction waste shall be dumped by category in
a centralized way and cleaned in a timely manner. Closed
containers shall be used for temporary domestic waste
and water can be sprinkled before removing waste,
if appropriate, to avoid dust. Qualified transportation
companies will be engaged to remove waste, so as not to
dump waste indiscriminately.

The construction waste in the building structure will be
transported through closed special waste channel or closed
containers, and is strictly prohibited to be thrown in the air.
The construction site is equipped with an enclosed waste
collection facility, with construction waste and domestic
waste stored separately. The construction waste will
be removed in time according to regulations with water
sprinkled in advance to reduce the air pollution of dust.
Vacuum cleaner shall be used as much as possible and
dust-generating equipment, such as wind blower, shall
be avoided when cleaning dust and waste before pouring
concrete. Protective measures, such as local shielding,
covering and water showering, may be adopted when
conducting mechanical chiseling.

The waste on the upper level will be transported to the
ground by tower crane, material hoist or pulley, and no
arbitrary piling and throwing of waste is allowed. On-site
waste shall be transported outward in time, and no overnight
waste shall be stored on site. During the construction of
earthwork, a dedicated person will sprinkle and sweep the
floating soil stored at the site every day to prevent dust when
wind is blowing. The lime powder and all kinds of adulterated
bulk materials must be stored in the warehouse or tightly
covered. Anti-dust measures shall be taken for sand, stone
and other bulk construction materials and earthwork, such
as surface cure, covering and others.
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B AL & R BT

A3.

The Group’s RMAA services fall under the construction industry
which may generate some hazardous waste due to the business
nature. Widely Construction endeavors to take all reasonable
measures to minimize the impact on the environment during
its operations and has been seeking ways less harmful to the
environment. The control measures include: (i) spraying water
when dusty construction activities (such as demolition, drilling or
excavation) are carried out; (i) transferring waste to other sites for
reusing; and (jii) sorting waste for recycling.

FEFEHNRMAARG BN R RETENEBIE
BREeEE—LEAZEY BAEERN
EIRR—U)aEEN TEEEEREER D
HERENFZER —BESRKEREEERIOH
F e BRI AL (()ET S KB TS
(47D ~ SEERSUIZIR) B - AT (i) BE
MEREEMITMETHNA ; Ki)EYD
AR By o

Widely Construction R

GHG Emissions

BE M RE R B HEK
Direct Emission (Scope 1) (tonnes) BHiEgem (EE1) () 25.85
Direct Emission (Scope 2) (tonnes) B (EE?2) (M) 18.70
Direct Emission (Scope 3) (tonnes) BiEH (EES) (W) 3.85
Construction and Demolition Waste BEKRIHFIZEY 1,117.90
Non-hazardous waste disposal (tonnes) BEEEYRE (W) 503.00
Non-hazardous waste intensity EEBEYEE W,/ BEER) 45.73

(tonnes/construction project)

Environment and natural resources

Environmental protection measures

The main types of energy which the Group used in production are
electricity and steam; all were supplied by the municipal facilities.

The Group aims at increasing energy efficiency through proper
equipment maintenance and replacement of factory equipment.
The Group has reduced electricity consumption from production
by upgrading and replacing air compression systems. The Group
adopted the “coal-to-steam” system which uses steam as driving
force of stenter machines. Such system significantly reduces gas
emission.
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During the Period under Review, Yongsheng Dyeing successfully
passed the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance
conducted by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. The test mainly focused on the following two
major parts of the enterprise: i) electricity consumption and power
balance test, including power load, daily load rate, main electricity
consumption per day, high and low voltage output line three-
phase current and other parameters; and ii) the actual operating
conditions test on on-site electrical equipment to understand
whether electrical equipment operates smoothly and whether there
is power-saving potential.

Based on the above test data in two aspects and combined with
the comprehensive analysis of the current status of equipment
operation, the Group proposed a related rectification plan for the
production process. Through rectification, Yongsheng Dyeing
finally saved energy by over 7%.

In July 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing engaged CCTEG Hangzhou
Research Institute (R £ B HIMNIRRAZEFEEBRAE) to
make a comprehensive electric energy balance test report on
the company. By December, a total of RMB3.28 million has been
invested to carry out technical renovation of related equipment and
lines, and the rectification plan has been basically completed. At
present, it is estimated that Yongsheng Dyeing can save 950,000
kwh of electricity and RMB750,000 of electricity charges annually,
basically reaching the expected goal of reconstruction and passing
the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance conducted
by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province.

The Group has a circulating cooling water system in place to
reduce the consumption of water for cooling down during this
Period. Furthermore, Yongsheng Dyeing has installed a water
recycling system to recycle dyed water generated from its
production and reduce water consumption.

During the Period under Review, Widely Construction advocated
to reduce the consumption of fuel, electricity, and improve the
resources efficiency by: (i) encouraging its employees to switch off
the lights and electronic appliances before they leave the office; (i)
encouraging its employees to set the temperature of the office’s air
conditioner to 25.5 Degree Celsius; (i) encouraging its employees
to use double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing; and
(iv) arranging the surplus materials on the construction sites to be
re-used in other construction sites instead of dumping. During the
Period under Review, the electricity consumption and total water
consumption of Widely Construction were 24,011.00 kwh and
10.00 m?® respectively.
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Environmentally friendly products application

During the Period under Review, the Group continued to use
environmentally friendly products that were granted with two
national invention patents. The “Nylon Ultrafine Fabric Filament
and Leather-Feel Velvet Fabric” are manufactured with lower
temperature printing and dyeing methods, which significantly
reduced energy consumption and emissions, as compared with
the manufacturing of regular polyester ultrafine fiber. Meanwhile,

IRREmER

REEMEA AEEEETRERWER
REPFNNIRRER  [EREBAM M R
KRR A THE R RENR T EEE &%
T3 R A B AR A B AR A A RE R IR RV BE

TR FE R B o BBy > B AR A R AR R S
B &Y BB ERmEEETRERD
HABELRK Lﬁ'ﬁvi}éLfrfqﬂﬁFﬂUE/'\

the microfiber filaments of “Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Naked HABHEK ZEMBEEFERRRER
Shammy Fabric” require less or no dyestuff in production resulting TENRE MIRMR o
in less or no sewage being discharged during the production
process. These two patented products achieve energy-saving and
environmental protection at the same time.
Evaluation of the environmental performance: IR -
Yongsheng Dyeing
2020 2019 Changes
—E2TEH —E2-AF p=E)|
Million Million
Production volume metres metres
ES 44,62 B K 48.81HEK (8.58%)
Water
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.01313 0.01395 (5.88%)
EXKBKEME
Electricity
usage-kwh/per meter 0.35 0.36 (2.78%)
SXBBE TRF
Steam
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.00161 0.00192 (16.15%)
BARARARE
Water treatment
usage-tonnes/per meter 0.01298 0.01234 5.19%
SARKEES
2018 Initiatives e \Water recycle initiatives
=2 N\FZiEH KIBIRET &)
e Sewage pre-treatment facility
XS E AL
e Shift from coal-to-gas to reduce exhaust emission
AR U MR EE R
e Increased the overall efficiency in
electricity usage
EE B BREME
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Care for the employees

B1.

Employment

The management of the Group believes that “cooperation” and
“reciprocity” are the key success elements in a harmonious
employment relationship. Hence, the Group strictly complies
with labour laws, regulations and industry practices in relation to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare. The Group participates in the
social insurance schemes estalished by the relevant local PRC
government authorities which include: retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries
insurance and maternity insurance as required by the relevant PRC
regulations. Apart from competitive salaries and incentives such as
bonus and share options which is based on the evaluation of their
contributions to the Group, the Group also provides promotion
prospects and training opportunities to staff.

The Group also provides a series of facilities and benefits for its
staff and their families. The Group is committed to equipping its
staff with all-rounded skills and developing the full potential of its
staff. Most of the senior management worked over five years for the
Group.

Gender equality and diversity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and advocates diversity.
All recruitment and promotions are based on meritocracy and all
candidates will be considered during the recruitment procedures.
Selection of candidates will be based on a diverse range of
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience, skills and knowledge.
Necessary procedures are also exercised to ensure fair and non-
discriminatory recruitment.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 308 employees
and all of them are full-time employees. During the Period under
Review, the Group’s overall average employee turnover rate is
approximately 52%.
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The Group’s employee profile by gender is illustrated as below:

AEBESRMRDHUT :

Male
B

Female

g3

0 50 100 150 200 250

The Group’s employee profile by age is illustrated as below:
rEEEERFREDTAOT !
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Staff activities

The Group has organised various leisure activities and festival
celebrations for its staff. During the Period under Review, the Group
organised a series of activities to celebrate festivals like Chinese
New Year, Women’s Day, etc.. The Group also organised staff
travel and other sports activities, in order to encourage work-life
balance among its staff. The Group arranged thanks giving gifts to
its staff during Chinese New Year, Mid-Autumn Festival, etc.. As a
caring company, senior management of the Group regularly visit
staff under inferior living conditions and assist them with sincere
gratitude.

The Group applied for subsidies of staying in Hangzhou and held
the Chinese New Year’s Eve activities for its staff that were unable
to return home during the Spring Festival due to the epidemic.

Health and Safety
Emphasis on Production Safety

The Group strictly abides by the local laws and regulations related
to employee health and safety, such as the Production Safety Law
of People’ Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance. The Group regulates the work
regarding production safety and prevention of occupational
diseases in a standardised way and strengthens the protection
of female employees through a series of internal rules and
regulations.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of systems
such as the Safety Production Management System, the Group
enhances accident and non-compliance management, supervises
production safety, and carefully analyses and reflects on the
lessons learned from non-compliance or production accidents to
prevent further non-compliance. The principal of “four prohibition”
on incomplete cause investigation, incomplete disciplinary action
for responsible staff member, incomplete rectification measures
and incomplete training for relevant staff member is upheld to
improve safety education and implement rectifying measures.

B2.
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B3.

The Group has installed comprehensive fire alarm systems and
fire-fighting equipment at each workplace to reduce potential fire
risk. All of the Group’s new staff has to attend the safety trainings.
Apart from the basic safety training, the Group also has focused
on implementing the “6S” lean management system in daily works.
The Group also requires proper safety training to be conducted
before new equipment or techniques being employed or being
operated.

Emphasis on occupational disease prevention

In accordance with the relevant local laws and regulations, the
Group offers health and safety education to employees and
provides induction safety training and arranges safety retraining for
senior employees.

To promote a safe working environment and protect employees
from occupational hazards, the Group has formulated
“Management Procedures on Chemical Products” and
“Management Procedures on Production Machinery”.

The Group posts notices and warning signals at workplaces where
occupational hazards may occur in order to raise employees’ self-
protection awareness.

In 2020, there was no working day lost due to work injury and there
were no employee casualties due to work.

Development and training

Communications are keys to the success of the Group. Internal
management meetings of the Group were held regularly, such as
management monthly meetings, periodic meetings for ad-hoc
projects, functional meetings and daily team briefings. Also, in
order to promote a safe production environment, efficiency and
enhance the quality of the Group’s products, systematic trainings
were provided to staff, such as new staff induction program, fire
prevention seminars, work safety seminars, seminars on technical
topics, managerial skills, rules and regulations updates, etc..
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Objective setting
BERE

Establishing clear performance
targets to create value for
achieving the Company’s
business objectives
HREBWMNESEIE AAF
EBERERAEBE

e Communicating with the
responsible personnel to
confirm the short-term and
long-term performance
output objectives
undertakings
HeENER TAARIEH
Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬁ%&

e Setting development targets
to ensure the growth of
organisational capability
SRALEREBAETIRERN
FERER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Efficient process for talent development

SIS ERRIE

Competency Development

BENEE

Conducting in depth analysis
and formulating a targeted plan
for performance development,
s0 as to ensure performance
optimization

RADHT > IR #HE AR
zﬁgﬁu ERREEENR

e Clarifying the content
and direction of our
trainings and ensuring their
implementation
BRI R B 1A AR
HEHIEH

e Carrying out training and
capability improvement
work with a focus on core
competence development
BESEZOBENERE FREE
S pE IR A T1E

* |mproving the management
skills to support the
achievement of a high
performance process
EeEEERE UXFS
BRURIERNEER

HEZETE

Performance Appraisal

HETE

Conducting systematic

assessment and evaluation
on the results of performance
targets

SHNEMERTRERNR

e Establishing performance
assessing standards for
performance targets
HEEM B REZEET
BRE

e FEvaluating the effectiveness
of the employees’ learning
and development program
HEEISLRREREIER
BHRAYE

e Careers development and
guidance for employees
BTHERERS

¢ Design and implementation
of performance incentive
system

MERURRNAE R R st LB I

Proposing a clear plan that
provides a path to career
success for employees
BRREAY St & > 7 B TIRME—{F
BERHENE

B AL & R BRI

Vocational Development
BERE

A flexible career
development system that
allows inter-departmental
transfer, vertical promotion
and cross-grade promotion
BENBEERER O
R EEEF BRSA

In-house mentor program
PBRAEBM 51 &I

Task training program
EFIEIIE

Intemal job rotation
ErlsE

Internal project program
SEREEE

B4. Labour standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation of the prohibition of child and forced labour. The Group
strictly prohibited employment of any staff under the age of 16.
The human resources department of the Group strictly implements
measures to prevent any violations thereof, for example, identity
cards, certificates of skills and graduation certificates of each staff
member are verified before signing formal employment agreements
with the candidates. The Group also has measures in place to
reconfirm whether the newly recruited staff meets the recruitment
criteria. The Group will pay minimum salary on a monthly basis
which is no less than those required by local government in
accordance with the government regulations during the probation
period. It will determine staff salary in accordance with the skills and
technical requirements of the position.

B4. HT A
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

Supply chain management

Corporate certifications, qualifications and awards

The Group promotes the concept of “innovation” with strong
research and development capabilities. The Group has obtained
certifications in quality and environment management aspects
(ISO9001 and I1ISO14001). In addition, the Group has obtained
a series of corporate certifications, qualifications and awards as
listed out in the “Certifications and Qualifications” section above in
recognition of its effort in promoting “innovation”.

Procurermnent reliability and relationships with suppliers

The Group monitors its procurement procedures closely as raw
materials directly affect the quality of products. During the Period
under Review, the major suppliers of the Group were mainly located
in Zhejiang province, Jiangsu province and other regions of the PRC
and had over 5 years of relationship with the Group on average.
When liaising with new suppliers, the sourcing department of the
Group is responsible for evaluating the potential suppliers with
reference to the criteria set out in the “Stakeholders Environmental
Management Procedures”, for example the compliance of relevant
statutory requirements, product quality, production stability,
compliance with safety and environmental protection rules and
regulations and pricing. The Group only engages the suppliers
which have passed the evaluation. Subsequent to the engagement
of the suppliers, the Group performs regular evaluation of its
suppliers in order to monitor product quality.

Emergencies management

The Group formulated the “Emergency Management
Procedures” and “Fire Prevention Management Procedures”
and other production safety management systems to cope with
emergencies. In addition, the Group has designated personnel to
conduct safety inspections on production facilities and conduct
instant follow-up when any exceptional situation was found.

In order to minimise the environmental and social impact due to
emergencies, the Company will set up a central team to manage
emergencies and designate relevant personnel to formulate
evacuation plans, conduct post-incidental repair and investigations
in order to avoid the re-occurrence of similar incidents in
accordance with the “Ratification and Prevention Measures
Management Procedures”.
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B6. Product responsibility B6. EmEF
Product quality EmEE
The Group is committed to offer quality products to customers AERNNAZRFREBEER BETEH
and comply with the requirements of relevant standards in relation ERRBREREZE2 - EBEE BERREEEZME
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters of RARERTE AEBEEHIE E MW EER AR
its products. The Group has formulated the “Product Monitoring EEEER TR LEERERI KTER
and Measurement Management Procedures”, the “Defective DMEFHRER  UBRKREEEREEZ . TH
Product Management Procedures” and the “Data Analysis FIRAERNEERRIZEEIERANIER !

Monitoring Procedures” in order to strictly manage product quality.
The following chart illustrates the quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group:

The quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group

FTEHZEERIREEERRAER

Customer
requirements
e Environmental factors
e Laws and regulations

Management
duties
EEHE

requirements
e EEEX
o RIFAX Measurement, Customer

o ERARER Resources analysis and satisfaction
mana gement improvement e Environmental
BREE IS S performance

FesE o BEWE

IRIBEE

Product realisation

(Manufacturing) Products
u url [=]
ESBR (£ A b

2

Information flow
BERER

Value-added activities

BEES)
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Patents

As one of the leading manufacturers of differentiated PFY and
dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabrics
in the PRC, product quality is the top priority of the Group. The
Group owned 11 utility model patents and 2 invention patents. The
number of patents owned by of the Group is as follows:

=7

TE# B RST B Z RIME IR R Ak e Z RIME IR
MEHNRBRNINEEDZ —EREER
FERCEEFE-AEEERI1EEAM
BB REEAEN - AEEEAR T U
o

Total number

Invention Utility model of patents

patents patents being owned

EIAET ERAWREEN BEEFEH

Yongsheng Dyeing KR GREE 2 11 13

The Group sets “innovation” as the top priority for its business
growth. The Group pays great attention to the protection of
intellectual property rights and product secrecy in order to
safeguard the results of its innovation. The product information
department is responsible for managing the patents and projects
of the Group. The Group will cooperate with intellectual property
service companies to improve the quantity and quality of future
patents applications. The Group will continue to develop a
sustainable innovation model through internal research and
development, industry-university-research cooperation and others
research and development efforts.

The Group will also perform periodic customer satisfaction surveys
in order to understand customer demand.
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Anti-corruption

The Group emphasises on transparency and responsibility in
order to fulfill the corporate motto of “integrity”. The Group strives
to achieve zero occurrence of incidents that are detrimental to
the interests of shareholders, investors, customers and other
stakeholders of the Group. The Group had formulated a set of anti-
corruption policies to ensure compliance with all applicable anti-
corruption laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extorting,
fraud and money laundering. All directors, staff, agents and
representatives and any individuals acting on behalf of the Group
are prohibited from directly or indirectly offering, giving, soliciting or
receiving any form of bribe, kickback or other corruptive payment
or anything of value, to or from any person or organisation,
including government agencies, individual government officials,
private companies and employees of those private companies
under any circumstances. During the Period under Review, the
Group did not have any non-compliance with laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, including but not limited to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Criminal Law of the PRC.

Moreover, the Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to
increase employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman,
chief executive officer and the audit committee of the Company
will receive report of the whistle-blowing incidents and have
the discretion to initiate independent investigations according
to the nature of the incidents or refer the incidents to relevant
regulatory authorities. The Group communicated with investors
and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly financial and
business updates, organising visits to its factories and arranging
focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in
relation to its major development in accordance with the seven
“Principles of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”).

In December 2020, the board of directors of the Company and
departments, of the Group improve employees’ comprehensive
understanding of fraud concept, fraud behavior, and methods to
prevent and defuse fraud and enhance their awareness through
providing various anti-franchluant study materials and off-line
trainings.

Whistle-blowing policies are published on the homepage of the
Group’s official website (www.chinaysgroup.com). Customers,
suppliers, business partners and employees can report any
suspicious event by means of e-mail, telephone and mailing:

o Phone No.: +852-2776 5229

° Fax: +852-2994 9699
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B8. Community investment
Community service

Management of the Group actively participates in the public
positions in community service. The chairman of the Group
has been elected as the Vice Chairman of the 11th Executive
Committee of Xiaoshan District Federation of Industry and
Commerce, the 4th Council Member of the China National Textile
and Apparel Council and a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC since September
2016. The chief executive officer of the Group has been elected
as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since
December 2016.

The Group is keen on contributing to the society. During the Period
under Review, the Group donated approximately RMB670,000 to
surrounding communities and social organisations.

Community care

During the year of 2020, the Group was once again listed as one of
the “Top Ten Enterprises (+381&2£) " and won the honorary title of
“Advanced Taxpaying Enterprise (4375 43 1B %) ” released by the
government of Jingjiang Street of Hangzhou. The Group has been
ranked first in the taxation of emission rights for printing and dyeing
enterprises in Xiaoshan District for many consecutive years.

During the year of 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing was awarded as
“Outstanding Enterprise” in Hangzhou Airport Economic Zone
2018. “Outstanding Enterprise” refers to enterprises that meet
the following criterias: whose annual sales output value (operating
revenue) in 2018 was RMB100 million or above and the income
tax was RMB10 million or above; tax revenue of RMB400,000 or
above per mu; whose founders or entrepreneurial team members
meet the district’s “5213” talents (projects) or above recognition
standards; and other enterprises that have a significant role in
promoting or have a great influence on the transformation and
upgrading of the airport, the clustering of the airport industry and
the development of the digital economy.

Apart from paying high attention to corporate developments, the
Group also cares about the development of the communities
where its factories and offices locate. The Group has not only
provided financial support to those who are in need in the
surrounding communities, but also organised community events
and encouraged its staff to participate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e

Je N A S

Ernst & Young K & &t Bl 55 75 PR Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
§ i 22/F, CITIC Tower BEREDIRAEEIR Fax {8 E: +852 2868 4432
2 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiEAE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 252 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

REEZEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
T NS R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBEZPNAEREMREREIE

Construction contracts revenue recognition

BELHIBATER

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has recognised
revenue from construction contracting and the related businesses of
RMB185,115,000. The Group applied an input method which recognised
revenue based on the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. The input method
involves the use of management’s significant judgement and estimates,
including estimates of the progress towards completion, the scope of
deliveries and services required, total contract costs, and the remaining costs
to completion.

RBE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE> EEEEIRKREEESH
REREBHIBAARYE185,115,000t BEMVEAENREERS
HAR BB AP 5 B A PG 484 51 AR A B9 EE 1B 52 U 2 B9 8 A A ABR ©
BAETRERAEEENEARFE RS BEGT T TEE -FIEX
AT M ARFEEE ~ SR A K Se TAIER TS o

Because of the significant judgement and estimates adopted in recognising
construction contract revenue, this is considered as a key audit matter.

AN ESERSNRARRBERAES R MR ERARERE
1ZEIg

The accounting policies and related disclosures for revenue recognition of
construction contracts are included in notes 2, 3 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRARRSOWBARIEN G ST BER REMEES N S M BHRRM T
2 3K50

We performed the following procedures in relation to
revenue recognition of construction contracts:
EPRITEERSNONGED BB TIER

1) We evaluated and tested controls over
the accounting process of contract costs,
contract revenues and the calculation of the
stage of completion.

1) BGOSR ERTIEEN
FFENE SRR EGIEE T AR

2) We reviewed significant construction
contracts on a sampling basis to check the
total contract revenues and other key contract
terms.

2 BMHERBRERBRRSLH UZBHES
W e I = E SRR

3) We checked the contract costs incurred on a
sampling basis to check against supporting
documents, such as delivery and acceptance
notes and invoices.

3) EMERZEMELENREMA MBI
NEBBEEREEET XK

4) We evaluated management’s judgement and
estimates in the determination of estimated
total contract costs on a sampling basis by
discussing the progress of the construction
contracts with those in charge of the projects
and by comparing actual contract costs
incurred with budgeted contract costs; and

4 HMBELHREBEEAFANRBRRESONE
B URMELANERSORSTEEES
MR AETHEE METHEIEENETE
EEt AR PR A B R b5t 5 &

5) We re-calculated the revenue recognised
under the input method on a sampling basis
and performed analytical review procedures
according to different construction contract
types.

5 BMHEREMTERE A KR
TiRHBEAERRESNELRNITDINTEZE
o
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Key audit matter

REEZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBEZPNAEREMREREIE

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade receivables
and contract assets

EZBKHIBER G EENRHIEEER (TR EER)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets of RMB42,425,000 and RMB33,883,000, respectively before
provisions for impairment of RMB5,722,000 and RMB3,609,000,
respectively.

RIZZZF+"A=+—H> EBEXECESRWRBERENEESD
A A AR #42,425,0007T K A R 633,883,000t (fE IR ERE ARKE
5,722,00070 52 A & #3,609,0007TAl) ©

The determination as to estimated credit losses involves management
judgement and estimates. Management considers specific factors to decide
the ECLs such as the age of the balances, location of customers, existence
of disputes, recent historical payment patterns and any other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of counterparties. Management
uses this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is
required.
REEMHEEHERBEEB LA LG - EEENETTRHRE
EBEBELEENAERAZOREEHRNRED T - TRMAEME - ESFHE
W vhRECEREARERAST R EENEAEMPIEER - E1RfE
ERZEENEE SR AFLRERE-

Because of the significant management judgement involved and estimates
adopted in determining the ECLs and the materiality of the amounts involved,
this is considered as a key audit matter.
AR EERACEERERREEBFHERFE L IRAB st BT £
B MEMEEARAREZEE

The accounting policies and related disclosures for trade receivables and
contract assets are included in notes 2, 3, 21 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BB ZERNFIERGNEEN G STEE MBI ES N &MY BRE
MizE2~3~21R%23°
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
the provision assessment for trade receivables and
contract assets:

BN EZERBRIBRENEENEHTGENT
UTER:

1)

We evaluated the design and implementation
of management’s controls over the
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and contract assets.

BT EEBHEZRRIREBERENE
EMNPEWRM T EEF NS RE
Ji ©

We sent trade receivable confirmations and
checked bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the year end on a
sampling basis; and

B EEE B RGRIER R E kLR
REA BB ROIBITHERE | &

We also assessed the assumptions used
to determine the ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets by checking the ageing
of the receivables and the historical payment
patterns as well as evaluating the impact of
the macroeconomic factors that management
considered or the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables by checking the
correlation between such macroeconomic
factors and the historical observed default
rates.
BOTHEETBZRRIERENERE
FEREEBEMANRS HEAEKE
WHRENRERBTERRRAUARBES
ZEE R AN ENNER M T
BEEEMERNTESERENTZERE
P4 B EWGRIBAES]



Key audit matter

REEZEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
T NS R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBEZPNAEREMREREIE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

BB FI 1 5 4 PR 7~ 1 JE 3 2 B A i 1t

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives of approximately RMB99,514,000 and
RMB54,817,000, respectively, which represented 5.6% and 3.1% of the total
assets of the Group, respectively.

NZIZ2ZZ2FE+"_A=+—H> BEEDHEIEENEHERTE
EETLEEN AREE99,5614,0007t 2 AR #554,817,00070 D AlE &
E & EAEERS.6%%3.1%-°

Under International Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
is required to perform annual impairment test for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. Management performed impairment tests on
these assets by using discounted cash flow models as at 31 December
2020. The assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgements
and assumptions such as long-term growth rate and discount rate.
RIEEFE S ERFIFEE RG> SEREHEHENMERERTHE
EEFEEETEEREBINR RIZEF+"A=+—H0 BEE
FALRRERAEABZEEEETRENR ST HERAEME P
MEIIE RERALIRRAE B A R fhste

Because of the significant management judgement involved and
assumptions adopted in performing the impairment test, this is considered as
a key audit matter.
ARETRENERREIEEBELERFIE R ERB KRR B ESR
REREZEER.

The accounting policies and related disclosures for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives are included in notes 2, 3, 17 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.
AREENERFERIRERTLEERBEN SR RERARERN S
HEAFBHRMIEE2 3~ 17218°

We performed the following procedures in relation
to the impairment assessment for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives:
BPHEHEENERERTRERTEERE
SHEEREAMRERNT !

1) We reviewed the appraisal reports prepared
by the external valuation specialists.

1) HAESERINESBEEFEREGFTFER

= °

2) We evaluated the competency and objectivity
of the external appraisers engaged by the
Group.

2) EHMETh BEEZENIMBEEMD
AR R EERIE

3) We reviewed the basis of preparation of the
forecasts used for the impairment test of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
lives.

3 RBMEERBENEAFERIEERLE
ERRER AR RREE

4) We reviewed management’s estimation about
future cash flows by comparing with orders
on hand, framework agreements signed and
external market research.

4) BMBEEEFEIS -ZENERHER
SEHHSAEETHEER EREEERHE
FAREMEN G

5) We involved our internal valuation specialist
to assist us in reviewing the methodology
and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives; and

5 HMEXRANIEEEXBERFIEREMT
BB R ERTEE R EERERR
HANAERETRE &

6) We reviewed management’s assessment
of the sensitivity of the Group’s impairment
model to reasonably possible changes and
considered the adequacy of disclosures
for impairment testing in the consolidated
financial statements.

6) HMEEREBEEN SEEREEAH
BRSEAEEHNERETGL L E &
BHUYBRJAENRIRENTE S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T NS R v

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
T NS R

ZHEMMEZ S HMBRRAREN
51

BANEREHSHMBERRBEERS A FEAR
HEFEl R R M S N E A TR R ES S I1EREE > I
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BHMMEZ S HMBRRAREN
851 (@)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BHMMEZ S HMBRRAREN
851 (@)

st (AR ERE) EZ TN EENRERE
REFHIR > QEESERBIEDH A AR EBERIRY
ERERNRRBELEZEGETER

PO EZZEEFLER BRRMEETERM
BIUMNEEER UHMAARSESSAEZER
MBIMNEENEMSEER (HER) A EREE
MHREBYITEN R E AR RIEHE I REZEETET
B

RMERNEERZESER MEMER ARG HY
BREBRIFHNREESEE IAREZER IR
FERNERT B LAARBELFTFRNEBE
BERT RARAMELFFESERMNTR
BRRBEBARNBLEETENN M ABERS
PFLUREE > BRIRMISERBENRE PHILUILEFS
Igo

EERBUZBENRENEZBE B AREEE-

LA ESHENERFR
BEE D

BB

T —FZRZ+ANA

MEBIARIARAT 202068 93



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
B PR b A A AR

Year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE

TECERFS+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
N2 ARBTT AREFT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRREER
REVENUE W ek 5 361,936 306,539
Cost of sales HE AR (249,563) (204,085)
Gross profit EH 112,373 102,454
Other income and gains, net HEUR AR U558 5 25,288 15,382
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDHEAX (1,428) (3,881)
Administrative expenses THREX (35,508) (41,150)
Impairment losses on financial and SRR ENEERE
contract assets, net B3 58 (10,366) (3,190)
Finance costs =N 7 (1,785) (1,005)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM FREEEFZFRANET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 88,574 68,610
Income tax expense Fri8Mx 10 (17,431) (17,597)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM RCEEBFERT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 71,143 51,013
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RIERE R
Profit for the year from BIEREEREE R
discontinued operations 11 - 84,035
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ Py A 71,143 135,048
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hitt2mE (§H) IRA
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that FERIAEAERETEEBRN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hihzm (5B18) UA -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of ME BN EBHER ERE
foreign operations (19,363) 9,187
Net other comprehensive income that FERIAEAERETEBRN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hh 2@ A EER
in subsequent periods (19,363) 9,187
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AR b HAth A%

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZE " TF+_F=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —Z—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
N2 ARBTT AREFT
Other comprehensive income that FERBEBEIEEINEER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss HEMEEBA -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of ME BN EBNER ERE
foreign operations (368) -
Net other comprehensive income FRIPEErEEIIEER
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss B E M2 E WA FEE
in subsequent periods (368) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FEREMPE B8 WA
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (€in]535785)) (19,731) 9,187
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEIBARE
FOR THE YEAR 51,412 144,235
Profit attributable to: DU RS EF]
Shareholders of the Company KRB RE 72,685 113,895
Non-controlling interests JEIERG R (1,542) 21,153
71,143 135,048
Total comprehensive income attributable to: WA FRE(S 2 EUR A ARZE !
Shareholders of the Company KRBPGER 53,978 123,082
Non-controlling interests JEFERE R (2,566) 21,153
51,412 144,235
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 7Z&ATIREEGESRET
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
Basic EHoR
— For profit for the year —FEEF AR¥RMBY.9 cents?? A RMERMB16.4 cents?

— For profit from continuing operations

—FREREXEBET

AEBRMB.9 cents’? AR HERMB7.3 cents?

Diluted
— For profit for the year

3
—FEEH

AR¥RMB9.8 cents?? A RERMB16.2 centsy

— For profit from continuing operations

—FEEEERZ mR

AE¥RMBO.8 cents? A RERVB7.2 cents?
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LR LRGN

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _ZTF+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EZEF —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bo5E AR®BTT ARBEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN Y 14 82,526 81,615
Prepayments for property, Y BB R R EN
plant and equipment SEANESOE] 330 208
Investment properties REME 15 755,323 654,698
Right-of-use assets CRESE 16 11,518 11,408
Goodwiill mE 17 99,514 105,923
Other intangible assets HMERLEE 18 57,061 66,261
Loan receivables FEWE R 22(b) 9,501 -
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIAE E 32 1,597 536
Total non-current assets ERENE ELBEE 1,017,370 920,649
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 19 4,793 3,796
Properties under development BRI E 20 223,025 198,524
Trade and bills receivables B2 R IE R B R R 21 74,819 66,094
Contract assets BHEE 23 30,274 17,467
Prepayments, deposits and SEINEIOERE sy
other receivables H iU IE 22(a) 18,781 16,365
Loan receivables FEURE R 22(b) 107,040 145,832
Bills receivable at fair value through BATEE AHEM
other comprehensive income 2EWABEKREE 24 16,363 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 2 AF{E5t ABEH
loss TREE 25 199,056 100,696
Amounts due from related parties FE WK BE 32 /5 =R 40 759 43,259
Cash and cash equivalents BEMRIREEEY 26 89,718 148,679
Total current assets TMENE EARER 764,628 740,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaRE
Trade payables B EAmIE 27 123,913 53,861
Other payables and accruals HMETRIB R ERIE 28 21,682 28,475
Derivative financial instruments TEESMITA 29 1,981 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R1T R ELfthfE=x 30 41,062 25,840
Government grants B &EED 31 387 387
Income tax payable FETFR1SIR 15,972 24,209
Total current liabilities BB EAERE 204,997 132,772
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERLE 559,631 607,940
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT wEERRSAE
LIABILITIES 1,577,001 1,528,589
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZE " TF+_F=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT AEEF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R1T R ELfthf&=x 30 128,311 70,355
Government grants IgSE=4:l] 31 6,902 7,290
Deferred tax liabilities R IBE(E 32 11,556 13,904
Total non-current liabilities JEREN B (BAERE 146,769 91,549
Net assets FEE 1,430,232 1,437,040
EQUITY Hm
Equity attributable to shareholders of RN RREEE R
the Company
Share capital [N 33 6,054 6,217
Share premium =] 33 826,670 886,872
Other reserves HAh s 35 595,560 543,951
1,428,284 1,437,040
Non-controlling interests JEERR TR 1,948 -
Total equity 4B EB 1,430,232 1,437,040
Li Cheng Ma Qinghai
3571 EEE
Director Director
- =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
B iR 2 ) R

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _ZTF+_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FARRRES
Foreign Equity-
currency  Statutory settled Non-
Share Share  Retained translation surplus arrangement Other controlling Total
capital  premium earnings* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves* Total interests equity
SMERE AERE  EahE
kEx  RfMEE RERA 1 e RHEE EftEE B ERRER  BGEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
(note 33) (note 33) (note 35) (note 35) (note 34)
(M3k33)  (H3ss) (Ms35)  (Wakss)  (W&s4)
AT January 2020 RoEzBE-F-A 6217 88872 498937 700 7193 11840 (45759 1,437,040 - 1437040
Profit for the year ERiEF - - 72,685 - - - - 72,685 (1,542) 71,143
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZESE:
Exchange differences on translation of BENBRRNERER
financial statements - - - (18,707) - - - (18,707) (1,024) (19,731)
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year ~ ERZEMA/ (B8) 5 - - 72,685 (18,707) - - - 53,978 (2,566) 51,412
Dividends pald to sharefolders of the Company ~ FIAATREX RS - (29,609) - - - - - (29,609) - (29,609)
Appropriation to statutory reserve NREATRE - - (5,064) - 5,064 - - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controling FrRRETE
shareholders - - - - - - - - 4514 4514
Shares repurchased BRI (178) (34,791) - - - - - (34,969) - (34,969)
Exercise of share options e 15 2910 - - - (1,081) - 1,844 - 1,844
Transfer of share option reserve upon the ERER QSR
forfeiture of share options BIRERE - 1,288 - - - (1,288) - - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBIBE+ZAZ+- 6054 826670 566558 (11698 76,987 9411 (45758 1428284 1948 1430232
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-E-H 3,121 130,657 388,794 [2,178) 68,171 13,391 (45,758) 556,198 43716 599,914
Proft for the year A - - 11385 - - - - 138% 21183 135048
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZERA
Exchange differences on translation of BENBRRNEREE
financial statements - - - 9,187 - - - 9,187 - 9,187
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2ENALE - - 113,895 9,187 - - - 123,082 21,153 144,235
Acqisition of assets and fiabiltes through BRNENBLEAEER
acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 37) &1 (f587) 2,390 609,451 - - - - - 611,841 - 611,841
Acquisiion of subsidiaries not under common KB ZAFEFIREAT
control note 36) (¥i£36) 684 170456 - - - - R TARTY VAT
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (FEH1) - - 13,656 - (13,656) - - - (61,611) (61611)
Liquidation of a subsidlary AE-HNEAG - - - - - - - - (3258) (3.258)
Diviclends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ FIRARRER RS - (27,951) - - - - - (27951) - (27,951)
Appropriation to statutory reserve PEELTHE - - (17 408) - 17,408 - - - - -
Exercise of share options e 2 4,259 - - - (1,551) - 2730 - 2730
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NETZAZH-H 6217 886872 49897 7008 TI3 1180 (46758 1437040 - KT

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves

of RMB596,009,000 (2019: RMB543,951,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AUB S R

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z _ZTF+_F=+—HIEE

2020 2019
—ECZF —E—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥T T AREEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMRETRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: PRIGATEF)
From continuing operations RBFESEET 88,574 68,610
From discontinued operations RERIEEER - 107,283
Adjustments for: U TIEBEFHIEE
Finance costs RRE B A 7&11 1,785 2,889
Interest income FEWA 5 (10,765) (4,245)
Investment Income KEUA 5 (8,414) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZEKE &
plant and equipment ®EEIE 6 - 172
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAB 2 Wm 11 - (24,432)
Fair value (gains)/loss, net: NFE W) EEPEE
Financial assets at fair value through BATEF ABERD
profit or loss EHMEE 5 (3,556) (2,737)
Derivative instruments — transaction not METBE-X ST EmE
qualifying as hedge i 5 1,981 -
Changes in fair value of investment properties & B #) 2 /A T (E &4 8 5 (369) (6,905)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERREBITE
equipment 14 4,850 20,227
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (EREEENE 16 1,309 1,874
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihmp & E 18 5,629 5,395
Impairment of trade receivables and B RENFIE R
contract assets BHEERE 21823 6,538 3,190
Write-off of amounts due from a £ e U — 4% RA B 5 =B
related party 6 2,877 -
Impairment of loan receivables FEWERURE 22(b) 951 -
Release of deferred income PR PR3 SE UL (388) -
Provision for write-down of inventories WREEE Hrn 837
to their net realisable value FEZEBE - 3,223
91,002 174,544
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (g R (997) 2,399
Increase in properties under development B3k ESS i (12,690) (10,825)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts [FE Ui BEf 38 5 =R I
due from related parties g (607) 3,482
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 EWERIE
FEUT R R IE N (16,573) (78,210)
Increase in contract assets BHRIEEEN (14,640) (15,135)
Increase in bills receivable at fair value BAFESAEMEEmBA
through other comprehensive income B FE WL ZE #5450 (16,363) -
Increase in deposits and other receivables & R B FE IR RIEIE N (931) (1,793)
Increase in trade payables =Rz INE =Rl 9,099 85,799
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HitEM B EE B
accruals Crizl) /1 (6,713) 20,285
Cash generated from operations KBRS 30,587 180,546
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
APl RE
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZF+_HF=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b 5F ARETT AREFT
Interest received BUFE 128 2,770
Interest paid BEHE (45) -
Income taxes paid [=ENIRIEED (28,623) (30,715)
Net cash flows from operating activities ST BIF RIS B S4E 2,047 152,601
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KEESRSHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BWFE 9,048 4,850
Investment income received BYIRE WA 9,110 -
Purchases of items of property, BEYE -BERXEER
plant and equipment (3,591) (16,389)
Purchases of an investment property RE—BREYE (51,924) (44,296)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME BERREER
property, plant and equipment BIFr1SFIA - 1,563
Proceeds from disposal of a prepaid HEE ﬁ:tiﬁl FERIBRIFT
land lease payment BRIE - 2,250
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through HIEBNBABWEEE
acquisition of subsidiaries 4=k 37 - (179,948)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under WEEIEHEEZEFIT 2B R
common control B 36 - (1,138)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets 41118 AT EsT AIBEH
at fair value through profit or loss THMEENMEHRE 601,328 126,150
Increase in loan receivables FE Y ERIE M (232,127) (152,241)
Settlement of loan receivables ETERER 258,654 57,040
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAB 11 - 139,314
Liquidation of a subsidiary HiE— BB AR - (458)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BERATEFAERD
through profit or loss THEE (696,828) (160,000)
Decrease in amounts due from a related party F& Wt —4 i B 75 =28 D 40,200 -
Release of pledged deposits HRIRBEIRIFTER - 45,461
Additions to pledged deposits MG EIREER - (49,120)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREGRHFARESREFEE (66,130) (226,962)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
APl imE
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE_E_-_EF+_HA=+—HILEFE

2020 2019
ZECEHF —E—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBTT AREBEF T
CASH FLOWS FROM RMETHRERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRADFR1ERIE 1,844 2,730
New bank loans MSIRITER 44(b) 98,023 154,600
Repayment of bank loans ERIBTTEM 44(p) (25,261) (47,907)
Capital injection of non-controlling interests ~ JEIERR TR T E 4,514 -
Repurchase of shares bl Ik (34,969) -
Principal portion of a lease payment HENRAEZHD 44(b) (956) (1,046)
Dividend paid BENKRE (29,609) (27,951)
Interest paid BAFE (1,785) (2,381)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEEFEIRE 235 11,801 78,045
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH R&RBESZEY GAL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N HEE (52,282) 3,684
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERIFEEEY
at beginning of year 148,679 144,573
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  JMNiE FE R B 5 2B 48 (6,679) 422
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAERFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 26 89,718 148,679
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BERIBSEB/WEGDT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RERMIRITHER 88,870 55,679
Non-pledged time deposits with original RUEERREIBEA DR =@
maturity of less than three months when BZIFERTEHRER
acquired 848 93,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe ~ REIBHRRRETIZRERK
statement of financial position REEEY 89,718 148,679
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe  RIRSHERZSZ
statement of cash flows ReRREEEY 89,718 148,679
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R R 7R s

31 December 2020

1.

“ETZF+-R=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company'’s registered office is P.O. Box 1008,
Willow House, Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY1-1101, Cayman
Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

° Provision of dyeing services of differentiated polyester
filament fabric

. Properties investment

o Renovation, maintenance, alteration and additional services
(“RMAA Service”); and

o Investment, development, construction, operation and
management of renewable energy businesses, water
treatment businesses and environmental protection
businesses

In the opinion of directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Ever Thrive Global Limited
(“Ever Thrive”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

1.

31 December 2020

APPSR E

“ETEF+"A=+—H

REREBEHN (B

fit /8 A BRI E

KABWBABRFHEBNT

Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETR
i SHRARIL HE R R AT R SRS SRR EE AL FEEH
Direct Indirect
=t it

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (BVI)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng BVI") in the BVI

KEIIE BVI) BRAE REBELHSHMRINERAR 1E7 100 - REER

(KEE(BVI 1)

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng HK’) in Hong Kong

KEIME (BB BRAR REAZIRHUNERAT E3 - 100 REER

(TKEE#)

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company established RMB200,000,000 - 100 Provision of dyeing services in
Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited in the PRC the PRC
(*Yongsheng Dyeing’)

MNEELXRFEBRAT RAERINERAT AE# - 100 RAERERERY

(TR ) 200,000,0007¢

First Intelligence International Limited  Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(‘First Intelligence”) in Hong Kong

#FnERERAT () REAZMAUNERAT 50,000% 7T 100 - REER

Chang Sheng investment Holding Limited liability company incorporated HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited in Hong Kong
(‘Chang Sheng investment”)

WEREERERAT REBERREIOERAT 1A - 100 REER

(eEKE)

Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Limited liability company established RMB200,000,000 - 100 Property services in the PRC
Company Limited in the PRC
(“Changsheng Property”)

A (M) BIRAR RARERINERAF AR - 100 RARERENERS

(Tekm)) 200,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

“E2CEF+"A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

1.

REREBEH (B

B ATKER ()
AABMBADNHBOT © @)

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETR
g FHRARIL R RS SR AEE FAFREMEEEE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=t i
Hangzhou Yonghao Investment Limited liability company established RMB50,500,000 - 100 Properties investment in the
Management Company Limited in the PRC PRC
(*Hangzhou Yonghao Investment”)
MK EREBEERAR RAERINERAT AE# - 100 RAERENERE
(MNACERE ) 50,500,007
Philosojoy Investment Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Philoscjoy Investment”) in Hong Kong
BRREERAR ((EERE) KREBEMMUNERAD 1AL - 100 REER
Summer Power International Inc. Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(“Summer Power”) in Hong Kong
ENERERAR (EHER)  NREEIMRINERAT 50,0007t 100 - REER
Widely Construction & Engineering Limited liability company incorporated HK$10,000 - 100 RMAA Service in Hong Kong
Limited (“Widely Construction & in Hong Kong
Engineering”)
BRREIRERAT REBFMRINERAR 10,0008 7T - 100 REBRHERMAARE
(MeRIEET)
Inya Water Group Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$150,000,000 60 - Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Group”) in the Cayman Islands management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water Group Limited REEHEZMRUNAERAT 150,000,000 7% BB R BB KHRREE
(Tinya Group ) B
WZ Environment Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$10,000 - 60 Investment holding
(*WZ Environment”) in Hong Kong
HIKBBERAR REAERRIOERAT 10,000%7T BEIR
(TR A H%))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATKREBEZE (@)
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MiEBABIRER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: EATINBATNFHEBUT | ()
(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETK
s SHRARIL R RS SR AEE FAFREMEEEE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=t i
Inya Water Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd  Limited liability company incorporated RM10 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya MY”) in Malaysia management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water Engineering (M) SdnBhd ~ R ERATHMAULNERAT 1095 ¥ EEREEKEERE
(‘Inya MY") H
Inya Water (Myanmar) Limited Limited liability company incorporated US$100,000 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Myanmar”) in Myanmar management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water (Myanmar) Limited RaaERRINERAR 100,000% 7T FE BB R EEKEAREE
(‘Inya Myanmar”) =l
WZ Inya Water Company Limited Limited liability company incorporated US$5,000 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
("WZ Inya") in Cambodia management of hydro-
related projects
WZ Inya Water Company Limited RRBRAMAINERAR 5,000% 7T R EBREEKKIEEE
("WZ Inya) B
Inya (Zhejiang) Environment Limited liability company established RMB12,000,000 - 60  Consultancy services and sale
Consulting Limited in the PRC of environmental protection
(‘Inya Zhejiang”) machineries
HiE (D) RRHBHAERAT RAEEMREINERAR A %12,000,0007 EHRBREERREN
(= :37 )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 FREE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bills
receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income,
derivative financial assets and investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H
REEE (48)
n‘7|'\ | gﬁ (I%E)

BukHEME2EWRAZERE DT BER AR
EEZREHE N RIFER D > BIE IS
SIBGFEREEEREMER -ERAER
MERBRHRZHAMAEENRBBEEER
BE-BE WA -AXRREREANEKS
RER 2L

HEEEREMER LM =ZBEHNEARTE
— B EHRES BIAEE K EHNTE

ERMENRKES - MERABRNERER
mEE (WHERAEHE WERREZZ A
ke

HAEBAREHWE AT BIER R Q&I

BiZMBEBLABNEE (BREBE) K&’
(i) {7 S 22 ) 8 2 BY BR T (B Fe (i) 7S #E 2 PO AT
BHNRFHREEER ; KEDNISWRENAF
B (R EERRENAFER[NVERE
oR{E fa (] UE 7 A BY & BR S A o S5 AT S E M
EEWRARNERNEAERBERDEHRDLE
ERTRREBEN WEE) FIRENEE
BRAEEEREHERFEENAGRBHK
BEMER -

XEFMRARAR 2020EE 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material
IAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(@  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BEME MR E M2 BB 75 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 22

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts* ©

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of accounting Estimates*

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 413
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

6 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in

June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to
refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 Levies if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3
should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BENEME M RE M 2 BEE B 75 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The
relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments
and risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 Pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BB M R E M 2 BB 75 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those
items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfiling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETHBENE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

24 FEZHBEBRE (B

EBEHREE (B)

HMENTRAAFE NEHERE BR
RBFEREDHBAREERTAF AR
BB RIERY A T EHRER - 8 1 P UL s BT 3 B
BEEFEMRMAKEAENER - HEXBRRE
REMEBEEZMBERABBEEFENQT
B REGRAZENREBEZARISRER

Bl o

R TSR BmERRERERNRFRE
BEGTE - BEASSFRENS HAES
HEERBRANEBETIREERIRERE"
AlgEREtETRS AERR+TZA
S+t—RETHEBREFERENS - BET
RMEAS REBSHMBANEEFWE
HERDEERMAINKSHELEZBR N
TEGNAEESEARSELBUNFESE
FEMARN MERTCEREMEENER
EEENEREZEFEMNEUMER -

MED BB EEME RN ELEQ
FHEEEEBMUAR) O] RETEEEE
REELEU REEEBMAMAR) AT E
TRBNIRESRE EEDAEHRE B
FHEEDIREBENSRERABER -

HEHEERIREREELEU FEREESL
BUAER)  MZBEARBLDEFRHE A
HEEBEANBEREELE RaslFE
ROIAEGZHNREE EHEERRTHERN
HERBEHEEBNENEERARER
TEEEUNBOFTE-

XEFMRARAR 2020EE 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.52% t0 20%
Plant and machinery 5% to 33%
Vehicles 10% to 33%
Office equipment, leasehold

improvement and others 8% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

122 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

ME BB RREUARITE (@)

ME-BEARRBEEBRABFEMELEN
MERFREER BERELERBEER
IR H AT S REERE AIARAREBRERN
AXBRZEENREEES CREEEE -
HYE -BERRBNEIELDANREER
AXERRZEB ORI/ BUEE TR
ERBNAERFERRETHRITE

TERBEREERENE BEARBEE
B9 Al A 5 Bk 51 7 168 A 4F B8 P i 88 = ERI &R
BESE -BILPARANEZERMT

BF 2.52%%E20%

5 B 1 8% 5%Z%E33%

RE 10%%E33%

WMAERE - HEYE 8%%E33%
R EM

HWHE -BEARBEESHBONIEAE
HMAMAE ZEENMAREEEER
TRREER 2 D B > =80 20 1§ (E 185 3T E8 o R &%
BE -AIERFHRFTERERDNEHT R
FEAFABRSUFHAR WMEHE) -

ME-BMERRHBEE (BEND ERNERN
EABY) NEERHBMACAIHEZFE
BAGELERREEN R KIS K&
LEIBEENFEERGEREMEEKRAR
TRENLENERAREEMELENEMR
WS AR RHEREENLEMSREF
REHIREENER

ERIREBRASREMRESIESRET
ERENTERBT A BREENBMNE
BRAMNSKMBREERTERANEER
K- FRIBNRBEIRAIHEERARENR DR
EBENYE -BBERRERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with IAS16. For a transfer from inventories to
investment properties, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Technical know-how

Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing processes is
shown at historical cost. Acquired technical know-how are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the know-
how and are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software is shown at historical cost and is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Sewage pipe usage right

Acquired sewage pipe usage right is shown at historical cost and
is capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the usage
right. The costs are amortised over the contractual lives of 20
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

Contract backlog

Contract backlog acquired as part of business combinations was
valued of fair value based on present value technique. Contract
backlog was amortised over the period up to the completion of
each of the contracts.

Brand

Brand acquired as part of business combinations was valued
at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Brand
was considered as the main attributes to the revenue and future
growth of the Group’s RMAA Service in Hong Kong, and thus
are recognised as intangible assets with indefinite useful lines and
tested for impairment annually.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 years
2 to 3 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTETHHEERE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(©)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or
loss.

130 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RERHMhEREE (&)

VL EE R E (B)

THEENMERRBERHNERRZZAH B
AERAEBENLEZEEZR) BR-F
RBERNHERREET —REBZERITIHE
PIINBEABREENTRMEEREN

THEENRESERFHETIOEME !

R A BN EMEE (BF LA

BB A ENSHNEELBRERHERA
REFE VOIS BREZE - EEERIERE
R EETHRER W RBEREE R D
2,

B AFEFFABMPERALEEE (BF
=)

MIBAFEFAEMEEBANEHEREM
= AB WA SNEE RO E R RSB O
BuRPED TIZERZEENAAENE
MEERBNA RN -HBATELEHN
Hith 2 E WA PRESD R IEFERE » REME
HWARERYRFRAFEEZSHRERTA
Bmke



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGHBERHE (B
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets REREMEREE (@)
(Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued) BB E (1B)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss O FEFAB D EHEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes assets BATESABGENEMNEECEEESE
management debt investment are carried in the statement BHERE HIORBHERARPEATET
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value ROMATFENEEFENBRmRMES -

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets RILTESIEREE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or THEE(TMER SHREEN D —
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised HEEEMEEN—32) TERTIBERT
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial RIS A BAEEEHE B REKRBR) !

position) when:

. he rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; . REEWRBIRESRENEFEE® ;
or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows . AEBECREBENAF THEENEEW
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the RIRERENEN  HEXKERE=F
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third BEBALEREELIAABIRERENS
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the F; RQAEBCHEESENBRIBD
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards BB Rz [B1 %R > o¥ (o) 4 £ [ & SR 8 2B o 1R
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor BEENEBABDREKLEH BEHE
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, REEMNEGE

but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless they will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
31 December 2020 —E_ZEE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amount of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a)  Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Processing services

Revenue from the provision of processing services is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
processed products.

(c)  Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an

index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 34 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

24 FEZHBEBRE (B

R in BB R ()

R _EZ T F+—RBLtHBRREMEEN
HESHREGERZNNA2ZERHEH
ANTEFE-RTEBRIIBHEMERZ2A
ANEEBRUEE  AME—DHFBHNYH
AR MIEES4 0

REGEXSHNREAEI~EERAMZ
W RIR R, IR F A EA BB E R
EABIEE N - £ 5 B B AT AR SRS HIR 7R
IR RS B2 5 Rt F S IR ER B A HR
BERFERHNFERBEBENRATARR
ENREGLF -BRETRNGRFABRE
B9 88 = R AR BA HA 81 40 S BRI R FE BB B9 R 51
&8

EERBRROBHNAQATER  TEER
BRIEFTHREGFS  EEFAERHRERE
BEORATAHREFHREGSHFEHE
B AR R 1% 1F B BT BE M F H AT fih o T 3B R IRAF
TR B RRTET KR RZEFTIAYE
R E M (EARRFER) RRBIFFRE
M JFRB IR N BN AT ERRIR A
HHRBRAET R CGRIFTFERS R
HRIRRM) o

KEIFMRIARAT 20208 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEEHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A DA B R

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
revenue from construction contracting and the related businesses
amounting to RMB185,115,000 (2019: RMB107,570,000). The
Group has recognised revenue from the provision of construction
services over time, using an input method to measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of
the construction services. This involves the use of management
judgements and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of deliveries
and services required, total contract costs incurred and forecasts
in relation to costs to complete and profit margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

Measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation

The Group recognises contract revenue and relevant direct
costs according to management’s estimation of the progress
and outcome of a project. Estimated revenue is determined
in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts
or, in the case of variation orders, based on contract terms or
other forms of agreements. Estimated direct costs, which mainly
comprise direct labour cost, subcontracting charges and costs
of materials, are variable and estimated by the directors of the
Company according to the amount of direct labour, subcontracting
charges and costs of materials incurred from time to time based
on quotations provided by the major subcontractors/suppliers/
vendors involved and the experience of the directors of the
Company. Notwithstanding that the directors of the Company
frequently review and revise the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in
estimates or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts
of contract assets/contract liabilities with the corresponding
adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns by geographical region.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

“E2CEF+"A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
21 and note 23 to the financial statements, respectively.

Provision for expected credit losses on loan receivables

The Group calculate ECLs for loan receivables by considering the
probability of default and the loss given default. The probability
of default based on average cumulative issuer-weighted global
default rates and the loss given default based on average debt
recovery rates issued by Moody’s Investors Service. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
inputs to the ECLs calculations, based on the credit rating of the
debtor which is accessed by the Group using Moody’s Rating
Methodology.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2020 was RMB99,514,000 (2019: RMB105,923,000).
Further details are given in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives. Estimating the recoverable amount
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2020
was RMB54,817,000 (2019: RMB58,347,000). Further details are
given in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties under construction carried at fair value
based on the appraised market value provided by independent
professional valuers. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
from actual results. In making the estimation, the Group considers
information from current rental prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the year.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value of the completed investment properties include those related
to estimated rental values with reference to the current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of investment
properties was RMB755,323,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB654,698,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has four reportable
operating segments as follows:

— Processing: Dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament fabric
— Properties Investment, development and sale of properties
investment:

- RMAA Service: Provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, renovation and decoration
works

— Environmental  Consultancy services and sale of machineries

water project  related to environmental protection, including
operation: operation and maintenance services (new in
2020)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit before tax without
allocation of interest income/costs and other expenses which are
not incurred directly for operating segments.

Segment assets exclude corporate cash and deferred tax assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate accruals, payroll payable,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to

the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020

“ETEF+"A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEHER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments KESER
Continuing operations
FEIREER
Environmental
RMAA Properties water project
Processing Service investment operation Total
Bk
MI  RMAARRH MERE HEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tx ARETrn AR¥ETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z—-ZTE
+ZB=+—Hit&E
Segment revenue (note 5) Sz (iEE5)
Sales to external customers HETFHARER 175,647 185,115 1,174 - 361,936
Revenue e 361,936
Segment results DEEE 43,380 34,536 (208) (3,848) 73,860
Reconciliations: ik
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ ABREMADERZ (2,680)
Interest income FIEWA 10,765
Investment income BEWRA 8,414
Finance costs RMEMA (1,785)
Profit before tax FRIR AT &R 88,574
Segment assets NMEE 434,348 215,476 1,018,803 63,126 1,731,753
Reconciliations: /3
Elimination of intersegment receivables K R RIE (25,250)
Corporate and other unallocated assets REAREMADEEE 75,495
Total assets nEE 1,781,998
Segment liabilities A 88,308 33,043 202,881 24,278 348,510
Reconciliations: Eo// 3
Elimination of intersegment payables B SR TIE (25,250)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities NEREMANREE 28,506
Total liabilities Bar 351,766
Other segment information HitpBER
Depreciation and amortisation WEKEH 6,265 5,427 9 - 11,788
Impairment of trade receivables, BRENEE EHNEER
contract assets and other receivables HittE Wz B8R E - 9,415 - - 9,415
Capital expenditure* BARY" 1,063 10 104,957 - 106,030

*

equipment and investment properties.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

EL/ESS

ERMXBEREYE BERRHURRK
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RBEDEEE (B)
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued) KEDE ()

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FRERELR RIEBEEE
RMAA  Properties
Processing Service  investment  Sub-totel  Production Trading Total
MI RMAARE  M%%E N bE g5 fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-—NE
+ZR=t-HLEE
Segment revenue (note 5) SEiE (MEE5)
Sales to external customers HETHRRER 108,545 107,570 424 306539 593,132 82505 982,176
Revenue g 306,539 982,176
Segment results DEEE 43,100 23,067 6,287 72,454 96,186 12,904 181,544
Reconcilations: R
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AEREMKDERES (7,007)
Interest income FISWA 4,245
Finance costs HERE (2,889)
Proft before tax FRiRan & 175,893
Segment assets NHEE 480,048 216,939 897,322 1,594,309 478,627 - 2,072,936
Reconcilations: E:/
Corporate and other unallocated assets RAREMENEEE 67,052 67,052
Total assets BEE 1,661,361 2,139,988
Segment liabilities AH&ERE 72,133 26,067 81,091 179,291 267,532 - 446,823
Reconcilations: ki
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties AEAREMKARARE 45,030 45,030
Totalliabiiies BEE 224,321 491,853
Other segment information HitpEHEN
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 6,339 230 57 6,626 20,870 - 27,49
Impairment of trade receivables and ERENTIBRANEERR
contract assets - 3,190 - 3,190 - - 3,190
Capital expenditure* BREY 3,512 65,105 685,735 754,352 11,349 - 765,701

subsidiaries.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties
and other intangible assets including assets from acquisition of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued)

No revenue from continuing operations with a single external
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group'’s revenue.

Geographical information

(@  Revenue from external customers

4.

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

REDBER (B

REEDER (48)

BMERE - IIRERETHECEEBHRE
EZWRAERERBAZI0%IL E -

IEE

(@ ZREMEBERZHEA

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BRREREH RIERERE
2020 2019 2020 2019

—E_FEE T ZEBIZE _"TI-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT ARETR ARET:

Hong Kong BB 185,115 107,570 - -
Mainland China SHElAyH 155,870 176,078 - 625,877
Other Hith 20,951 22,891 - 49,760

361,936 306,539 = 675,637

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

FHREAERTIRBEZRAEMEZS] -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFEWEE (@
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) KEDE ()
Geographical information (Continued) HEBE ) (4B)
(o)  Non-current assets (b) JERBEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BECEEE RIS
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEISRE TENF ZBIBE TEAA
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBT:T

Hong Kong &5 56,001 63,949 - -

Mainland China HEIR i 860,258 750,241 - 184,373
916,259 814,190 - 184,373

The non-current asset information above is based on the LERBEEENUNEEMT M AEE

locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and BARBEREREBEEEREGE -

goodwill.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ HthgA B z=

An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as follows: FHRECEEBNIA DU T :
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers BERFFIEHNZIA 360,762 306,115

Revenue from other sources HAUW AR
Gross rental income from investment KREHEBETNREYE

properties under operating leases MREEUWA 1,174 424
361,936 306,539
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WAEHMWARKZE (@)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers ZEBREHBA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a DINKAEK
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hE&E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥EFT
Continuing operations: FHEREET .
Types of goods or services M mE RS AR
Processing mT 175,647 198,545
RMAA Service RMAARR %5 185,115 107,570
Total revenue from contracts with customers EiZ B FRs] &4 2 W A 48%E 360,762 306,115
Geographical markets B i
Hong Kong 548 185,115 107,570
Mainland China FREE Py 3t 154,696 175,654
Other Hh 20,951 22,891
Total revenue from contracts with customers B2 EFrs] &4 2 WA 4B%E 360,762 306,115
Timing of revenue recognition LT A e 220 B il
Goods or services transferred at RE—RFRERE
a point in time 2 Sh AR 175,647 198,545
Services transferred over time B B R e AR IR 7% 185,115 107,570
Total revenue from contracts with customers EAZ EFrs] &4 2 WA 4858 360,762 306,115
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WAEHMWARKZE (@)

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHIRA (@

(Continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) SIRAER ()
The following table shows the amount of revenue from TR AR S AR A RS HA
continuing operations recognised in the current reporting ENEBENFELSEXB NG &5 .

period that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

2020 2019
ZEIEE —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBFTT
Revenue recognised that was included in BT ARG HA)
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BHBaEN NS -
reporting period:
Processing mT 13 210
RMAA Service RMAARR 7% 5,277 -
5,290 210
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Processing

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
processed products and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.

RMAA Service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 14 days
to 90 days from the date of billing. A certain percentage
of payment is retained by customers until the end of the
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to the final
payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the service
quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated
in the contracts.

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

5. WA ~Eft ARz (48)

EREHWA (8

(b) BEXEME

AAEEBOSENERMRMNT :

Y/

BABEDRRINENTEMRETNK
A 78 B R 30E90H A T
MEER— AR

RMAABR %

BHETR IR MRS EREZES > ™
ITRBEENIREQHE14HE90H
REF o IRz —CELAHFTRAREE
REBER AAXREBKRRRELTR
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A DA B R

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA ~HMEA RS (4B)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEREHRA (@)
(Continued)
(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b) BHEE #B)
RMAA Service (Continued) RMAARR (#2)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining R+ZE=+—HoREFFENET
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) (REMEI D KRER URZEERE
as at 31 December are as follows: ZEUOR -
2020 2019
—ECERF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEF T
Amounts expected to be TEHRR SR A I a5
recognised as revenue:
Within one year —FER 44,857 54,168
After one year —F% 67,285 81,251
112,142 135,419

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to construction
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.
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B B R b

31 December 2020 —E_-_ZTHF+_H=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA ~HMKA RS ()
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of other income and gains from continuing operations FECEEFNEMBARKE 2T !
is as follows:

2020 2019
—EEH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEFTT
Other income and gains, net HMA Kz F 58
Bank and other interest income IR1T R E A B WA 10,765 4,168
Investment income KREKRA 8,414 -
Fair value gains on financial assets AT EFABED
at fair value through profit or loss B ENATFERT 3,556 2,737
Fair value gains on investment properties REVEZ NFERE
(note 15) (F35E15) 369 6,905
Fair value changes on derivative TEEMI A AT EEE)
financial instruments (1,981) -
Gross rental income from plants MBS A 4228 772 628
Government grants BNER 3,403 708
Foreign exchange differences, net PE R ERRFRE (892) (159)
Others Hith 882 395
25,288 15,382
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRIRATEF]
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived AEBFESCEEBNBRR AR &R,
at after charging/(crediting): GtA) UTRERE
2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 AR®BTT AR¥TT
Cost of services provided BERERFE AR 249,563 204,085
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BEMREITE 14
equipment* 4,850 4,490
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 16(a) 1,309 1,379
Amortisation of other intangible assets* HE & FE# 4~ 18 5,629 757
Lease payments not included in the WARStAHEBESEZ 16(c)
measurement of lease liabilities MHEM 172 156
Auditors’ remuneration 12 B EM B 1,250 1,250
Employee benefit expense (including  REBHMHS (BEEEK
directors’ and chief executive’s BETEA S~
remuneration) *:
Wages and salaries TEKE 34,874 38,433
Pension scheme contributions BREEHEIHR 3,169 4,958
Foreign exchange differences, net PE R ERE R B 892 159
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWRIERE 21 3,708 2,218
Impairment of contract assets BHNEERE 23 2,830 972
Write-off of amounts due from a related i F& U — & BE Bt 75 =B
party 2,877 —
Impairment of loan receivables EWRERRE 22(b) 951 —
Research and development costs HEE R AR 4,046 5,254
Fair value loss/(gains), net: NFEEE () $%8
Financial assets at fair value BATESTA
through profit or loss BENEMEE (3,556) (2,737)
Fair value gains on investment KREMEZ A TFERE 15
properties (369) (6,905)
Fair value changes on derivative TTEEMIAY
financial instruments N {EES) 1,981 -
Bank and other interest income SRAT R EAF) B UCA (10,765) (4,168)
Investment income HEWA (8,414) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYXE -FERKREER
plant and equipment, net Z E51E/32%E = 172
* Part of the depreciation, amortisation of other intangible assets * NEEITE - EMEBEEESN AL
and prepaid land lease payments and employee benefit expense HEFESGENEERNHEIN —BLE
for the year are included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated FAGHEBEGRREMEEBARRN HEE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. A ©
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FINANCE COSTS 7. RBERAF
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as BFECEEBERERANINUWT -
follows:
2020 2019
ZEZEF —EF—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANREFIT
Interest on bank loans IRITEFFIE 9,455 2,515
Interest on lease liabilities %H SEENE 45 65
Total interest expense MR B 9,500 2,580
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI B (7,715) (1,575)
1,785 1,005

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFERESITHAEXM
REMUNERATION

Directors and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed EERESTHAERFERNFBIEER L™
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the FRE~ FE(REERNZE383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ () Fz(f)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BRAAE HBESNAER) RO FE28#HE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, BUWT
is as follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Fee ok 649 642
Other emoluments: HNE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYEN 1,384 2,272
Performance related bonuses BEERATEAL 1,260 6,279
Pension scheme contributions BRREETEIHRR 100 181
3,393 9,374
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERRBEITHAELRIN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BILIERITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRAEIERTESZONEEN
the year were as follows: T
2020 2019
ZECEREF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEEE 89 88
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEBLT 116 114
Mr. Wang Huaping FEFLE 89 88
294 290
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRUEENBILIIENTEEZHM
independent non-executive directors during the year (2019: e (CT2E—hF: 8| o
Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
2020 —E-THF
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
B 2RR B3R Bik&3tE
EEit4 ik BMET Tt e it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ARETFR ARETR AEBTR AEH®TR

Executive directors: HWTES !

Mr. Li Cheng FHRE 89 907 420 17 1433
Mr. Li Conghua FTRELLE 89 - - - 89
Mr. Ma Qinghai EEBLE 89 301 420 75 885
Mr. Xu Wensheng? BB 88 176 420 8 692

355 1,384 1,260 100 3,099
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERRBEITHAELRIN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BMITEE @B
2019 —E-NF
Salaries,

allowances Performance Pension

and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total

H =B R AR Rikgata
S ik BB TE4L #% gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ARETFR ARETR ARETR AEHBTR

Executive directors: HIESE!

Mr. Li Cheng THEE 88 915 2,050 17 3,070

Mr. Zhao Jidong'" HERLL 88 876 2,650 84 3,698

Mr. Li Conghua FRELE 88 - - - 88

Mr. Ma Qinghai EEBELE 88 301 1,579 68 2,036

Mr. Xu Wensheng? i3 Gped - 180 - 12 192

352 2,212 6,279 181 9,084

There was no arrangement under which a director or the ER - TEANESIESTEHAEREDR

chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration B EREE AN L HE -

during the year.

n Mr. Zhao Jidong resigned on 29 November 2019. Q) HERCENR _SE—NAF+—BZ+NH
BT o

@ Mr. Xu Wensheng was appointed on 29 November 2019. @ BXBRERZZE—NFE+—BZ+NH
EHEo
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IxEaHNES

FR Lt EeHFNERSR=-LHNTES
(ZEB-NF ZRATEF) > REHFHH
HBHEN EXWES HFTIME (CTE—NF
W) & E SR ERBFB BT -

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included 3
executive directors (2019: 3 executive directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining 2 (2019: 2) highest paid
employees are as follows:

2020 2019

—EEHE —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMEFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYIET 792 1,540
Performance related bonuses BEARRETEAL 320 4,530
Pension scheme contributions BIAREEHEIHR 88 113
1,200 6,183

HMNF TIEERFERTIFRSTHA
ENRSHMNEEARUT

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

2020 2019

—E-%E —m—nE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %2,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,00078 75 £5,000,0007 70 = 1
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2019:16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Malaysia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 24%.No provision for taxation in Malaysia
has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Cambodia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 20%. No provision for taxation in Cambodia
has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Cambodia for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Myanmar is subject to
profits tax at a rate 25%. No provision for taxation in Myanmar has
been made, as the subsidiary did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Myanmar for the year ended 31 December 2020.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC having
operations only in Mainland China are subject to the PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in their
PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC
income tax laws. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduced
a wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with the approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, Yongsheng Dyeing, qualified as a High and
New Technology Enterprise, is entitled to the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for three years from 2018 to 2020.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

10. ISR

REREEEREBEYEESHNERRI R
ERAEEBERNRENBREBR LB
EBMIERPTISIR-

AEERMEESEZMAILNKBATEAE
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Ams EEAEEN—RBRBABRIN ZA
BANEMBHFERNMEGNENSIE &
M & A Bl B 22,000,000 7T (Z2—NF
2,000,000/ 7t) M FER IR A F]1%8.25% (&
— N 1 8.25%) MINEHIN » HerfERR A
FEIZ16.5% (ZE—NFE 1 16.5%) WY

o
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BT FRE24%HMMEBE - BN ZME R
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BRBIRNER20%HMIRE - HRNZME QT
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. FRIEIR A (48)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to 5% withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of their earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB96,720,000 at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB96,720,000). In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 are:

RIEPEEEMERE EPEMRILIE
TERBINGEEERNEEBHNI0%TE
iR -BRERETH_EENEFE—HB—HEE
BoBARZEELFE+ZA=1+—HEWN
B oMPEMEIREENT ERETE
MEGL A EBERARENTEINRE ARE
ERMAREBARZSEETFERILINEEA
BEZEENFE—FB —HERNNEBFFTIK
EHREBANSRTBEINM - R T EF+Z
B=+—H EBEERBEGHAHEIEARN
FRAPBERMKE AR ENGRERESH
# A NR1596,720,0007t (ZE—HE: AR
#%96,720,0007T) cEERABZEMBRE N
A RRRERGDIKZERT

HE_S_SER-S—AFT-A=+—
AL SN EBAMBAMT :

2020 2019

—_ECEF “E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREFT

Current tax BRARTRIE 16,143 37,632
Deferred tax (note 32) IRIETRIE (Ff5E32) 1,288 3,213
Total tax charge for the year FRRIBS HAREE 17,431 40,845
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. FRISMAX (@)
Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit MERTESHEFRUERRDREAZSH
multiplied by the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the M B AR FIEERIAERENEIRAOT ©

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled:

2020 2019

—E£ZF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARFT

Profit before tax from continuing operations RHEREXH 2 BERANRT] 88,574 68,610
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 4% IF 48 & 255 2 bR IR AE A - 107,283
Profit before tax PRI AT AT 88,574 175,893

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25%

Effect of difference for

HEEREQRE%) 5 EN
HI1E 22,143 43,973
MEBFBREEZENEE

Hong Kong profits tax rate (2,870) (3,394)
Effect of preferential enterprise income tax rate BE > HFFEMENSE (6,216) (14,110
Income not subject to tax BIEMBRUA (153) -
Expenses not deductible for tax EEIEE o 873 10,042
Tax losses not recognized RIEBRFEEIE 1,914 2,246
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B BT EEERIERSR (191) (15)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the BAEETEBRATZ

distributable profits of the Group’s PRC A IkaEF5%EE

subsidiaries BINR 2,387 5,624
Additional deduction of research and BFF 25 AR AR BY BB SN0 R

development cost (456) (8,521)
Tax charge at the effective income BERMSINE19.7%

tax rate 19.7% (2019: 23.2%) (ZZ—NF 1 23.2%)

STEMNIRIES N 17,431 40,845
Tax charge from continuing operations BRERREFENFELSE

at the effective rate EBIRIELZE 17,431 17,597
Tax charge from discontinued operations BEEREHENRIERE

at the effective rate EHBNRIBEZ H - 23,248
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 18 October 2019, the Company announced the decision to
dispose of the entire interests in the subsidiaries engaged in the
development and manufacture of polyester filament yarns and
the research of high polymer advanced materials. The Group has
decided to cease its polyester filament yarn business because it
plans to focus its resources on its dyeing services segment and
strengthen its liquidity for future investment opportunities. The
disposal of the three companies had been completed in November
2019 and the liquidation of one company had been completed
in August 2019 with Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Chemical Fiber
Company Limited (“Hangzhou Fiber”), Nantong Yongsheng Fiber
Advanced Materials Company Limited (“Nantong Fiber”), Jiangsu
Yongsheng High Polymer Advanced Materials (“Yongsheng High
Polymer”) and Research Institute Company Limited being classified
as discontinued operations.

The results of the three companies for the year are presented

11, R IEREEF

R _E-NAFTA+NB A REEMHEE
FEERE HERFREREERGRMS
WRREE D FRM BB RS 2 280 #
moARNAEEFIETHERNRBRS
DE R MR ERB MU R AR E RS
FEFABEREFLEKRBRMEST HE=
BMRABERZZT—NF+—RBxm FE—
BRABER T —F/N\B TR MM E
MEAOKBIEEBERAR (ThNEM) B8
MEEMETHEETMEARAS (EHREM
) BOLER X BB D FRM KRR A R A S
(MkBEDFI) WMOBRERIELEEF-

—BABFENNEEZIUT

below:
2019
—EF—hF
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Revenue g 675,637
Expenses Bz (590,902)
Finance costs =17 %: (1,884)
Profit from the discontinued operations B AR S S E R 82,851
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations ~ HEA&R IFEEEFE N 24,432
Income tax FT1SHR (23,248)
Profit for the year from RER IS EEFNRA
the discontinued operations 84,035
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from the RERIEREXHBE 2 SREAREERFIN
discontinued operations are based on: FEBER
2019
—EF—hF
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Profit attributable to shareholders of the AT PG R FEIL IR B LA R
Company from the discontinued operations ANEEFT)
(RMB’000) 62,882
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR ESREABFINFEFRNEETZERN
in issue during the year used in the basic % (YEE13)
earnings per share calculation (note 13) 696,415,013
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARt ES#ERA N ZE ERH
used in the diluted earnings per share % (iEE13)
calculation (note 13) 704,725,618

Earnings per share: GEF)

Basic from the discontinued operations
Diluted, from the discontinued operations

BEA CRERILEEER
B CRERILEEES

RMBA R 9.1 cents7
RVBA R 9.0 cents?

L L
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

11, RIS ETE (18)

The assets and liabilities of the three companies at the disposal “HARRHERENEEREGRENT -

date were as follows:

Hangzhou Nantong Yongsheng
Fiber Fiber High Polymer TOTAL
Lkt EEME  KERAT st
2020 2020 2020 2020
—E25F %% “EI%F ZECI®
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEEFT ARETT ARBTT ARETx
Net assets disposal of; FHENSESE .
Property, plant and equipment ME-BENERE 31,712 134,923 271 166,906
Other intangible assets HittEFEE 495 85 - 580
Prepayments for property, MEBERRENEMTE
plant and equipment - 1,052 - 1,052
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7,343 8,492 - 15,835
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 1,158 3,312 - 4,470
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEED 33,859 490 253 34,602
Pledged deposits BERER 350 6,052 - 6,402
Trade and bills receivable BRRITIEREREE 11,085 143,495 - 154,580
Prepayments, other receivables and FRTFIE EtRKHIER
other assets HtEE 30,610 13,552 8,589 52,751
Inventories =& 33,651 42,136 - 75,787
Interest-bearing bank and ERTREMBER (RE)
other borrowings (current) (10,000) (40,190) - (50,190)
Trade payables EHEATIE (6,938) (116,244) () (123,185)
Other payables and accruals HtE A HRBRESTIE (6,296) (67,126) (3,013 (76,435)
Amount due to a related party FE(I R S 7B (40,000) - - (40,000)
Income tax payable FE(IFTSiR (1,170) (2,394) - (3,564)
Interest bearing bank and FERTREMBR GERE)
other borrowing (non-current) - 32 - (32
Government grants BT &R (1,689) 6,775) - (8,464)
Non-controling interests R ER (23,714) (37,933) 36 (61,611)
60,456 82,895 6,133 149,484
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBE AR R 17,034 4,151 3,247 24,432
77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
Satisfied by: BUTEIAEA
Cash Re 77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

11, RIS ETE (18)

HENRBARZRERREFEMZRAANF
BOMWT

Hangzhou Nantong Yongsheng
Fiber Fiber High Pgl_ymer TOTA
T EEgE KERRT st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARBTT ARBT:R

Cash consideration ReRE 77,490 87,046 9,380 173,916
Cash and bank balances disposed of HENRE MIRTER (33,859) (490) (253) (34,602)
Net inflow of cash and cash HENBARZERER

equivalents in respect of REEEMIRNIE

the disposal of subsidiaries 43,631 86,556 9,127 139,314

The net cash flows incurred by the three companies are as follows:

—HABEENREREFHEOT !

2019

—E-hNEF

RMB’000

ANRETTT

Operating activities W& EH) 24,339

Investing activities KEES (28,045)
Financing activities RMEEE 30,967
Net cash inflow HERAFEE 27,261
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. R
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR¥FT
Interim — HK$0.015 (equivalent to RMB0.0134) S HA—& J& 38 20.01558 7T
(2019: HK$0.02 (equivalent to RMB0.0181)) (HEER AE0.01347T)
per ordinary share (ZZE—HF : 0.025E7T
(HHER AR¥0.01817T)) 9,797 13,530
Proposed final — HK$0.02 (equivalent to BRARE— 8 R &8 20.0278 7T
RMB0.0168) (2019: HK$0.03 (HEEN AR #0.01687T)
(equivalent to RMB0.0274)) (ZZE—1%F 1 0.038T
per ordinary share (HEER AE0.02745T)) 12,330 20,235
22,127 33,765
The board of directors resolved to propose a final dividend of EEEREABRENRNARPRESEREZER
HK$0.02 (2019: HK$0.03) per ordinary share amounting to a 0.0287T (ZE—N% :0.038m) >4t
total of RMB12,330,000 (2019: RMB20,235,000). The proposed AR #12,330,000c (ZE—NF: AR
dividend is based on 732,207,090 (2019: 738,191,890) shares 20,235,0007T) c EZEKREBENR T - —
issued as at 29 March 2021. ZBEZ+NBHZBETRH#HBET732,207,090

B (ZE— R4 : 738,191,80008) 5t & o

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the BRIKAPAREBRANBDREBNEREREE
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general FRGH A
meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. ZAGIRRREGLEREF
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the SREXABMEEIZA QTR EREMNFRN
profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Company mA PR UL EARNBE T EERNMNE TS
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during Bo

the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing R ERFSENRAATERESREF]
the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the PBRAERE B TEEBRIINEFSE WE st
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the BERERBMNMREAE) B ERBIERPR
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, plus the BB S ERTEALTERIIESEITW
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued BRI E -

on the deemed exercise of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. A AFIRRELESRETF (B)
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic MTFRBBRABERERAREERTI U
and diluted earnings per share computations: ARG EE -
2020 2019
ZEIEE —E-hNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBEF T
Earnings: BF
Profit attributable to shareholders of the AT R ELEF
Company — basic and diluted —BEARKREE
From continuing operations REFEKSEERS 72,685 51,013
From discontinued operations KEBRIEEEET - 62,882
72,685 113,895
Number of shares
[ 3nE =]
2020 2019
ZEEF —E—hE&E
Shares: B&1n -
Weighted average number of ordinary M EEREABIIMEZ
shares for basic earnings per share calculation 38 & N F 1584 735,805,931 696,415,013
Effect of dilution — weighted average HWEEE-ERR2
number of ordinary shares: IR E
Share options g 7,029,580 8,310,605
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & IE # 38 52 2849 3 38 A%
adjusted for the effect of dilution INREFHE 742,835,511 704,725,618
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

14. YE -BERRE

Office Construction
Plant and equipment Leasehold in
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements progress Total
WAERER
BF  HEREH RE Hitr HERE ERIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARBTx ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020, RZZZ25-A-F
net of accumulated depreciation BIBRRE 28,243 30,065 219 980 752 21,355 81,614
Additions RE - 1,004 - 17 53 4,700 5,774
Depreciation provided during the year £ /5 REIITE (1,353) (3,382) (19) (90) ) - 4,850)
Exchange realignment ERHEZ - - () (4 () = (12)
At 31 December 2020, RIZZTELCR
net of accumulated depreciation =t+—B BINRRHTE 26,800 27,687 197 903 794 26,055 82,526
At 31 December 2020: RIZZ%F
+-A=+-R:
Cost oS 49,569 69,507 1,945 3,147 3,054 26,055 153,277
Accumulated depreciation FiirE (22,679) (41,820) (1,748) (2,244) (2.260) = (70,751)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,800 27,687 197 903 794 26,055 82,526
At 1 January 2019, RZIZ-h&
net of accumulated depreciation +-A=+-H
BIRRE 72,811 117,851 1,365 1,759 572 39,637 234,055
Additions RE - 5,071 | 66 178 11,935 17,321
Acquisition of assets and liabiities ~ EBUBHEATREEER
through acquisition of subsidiaries &8 (Fi£137)
(note 37) - - - - - 18,980 18,980
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under Wi BE ML IER SRS TAYMHE
common control (note 36) A7 (H3E36) - - 85 kTS - - 119
Disposals HE - (1,656) (53) (26) - - (1,735)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (zH11) (48,054) (113,647) (1,100) (536) - (3,569) (166,906)
Depreciation provided during the year £ REHREITE (3,496) (16,259) (151) (321) - - (20,227)
Transfer i 6,922 38,706 - - - (45,628) -
Exchange realignment EREE - - 2 4 2 - 8
At 31 December 2019, RIZ-h4F
net of accumulated depreciation +ZA=+-R>
BHREHTE 28,243 30,066 219 980 752 21,355 81,615
At 31 December 2019: RIZ-A
+ZB=+-8:
Cost A 49,569 68,505 1,951 3,137 2,767 21,355 147,284
Accumulated depreciation REE (21,326) (38,439) (1,732) (2,157) (2,015) - (65,669)
Net camying amount EESE 28,243 30,066 219 980 752 21,355 81,615

At 31 December 2020, certain of the construction in progress with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB26,055,000 (2019:
RMB21,355,000) was pledged to secure long-term loan facilities
granted to the Group by a bank.

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB21,646,000 (2019:
RMB22,597,000) were pledged to secure short-term loan facilities
granted to the Group by a bank.

AT CEBEF_H=+—H REFEY

A ANE 126,055,000t (ZE—HhF : AR
21,355,0007T) METHEREIREETEAE UL
FE-MRTHAAERRERBERME -

WN_E_EF+_HB=+—H ' KAEEKT
FENAANRKE21,646,0007T (ZE—NE !
AR #22,597,0007T) A TEFEFIKTF
ME—MEiRTaAERBEHEHERRTRE -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REYE

Under
construction Completed Total
#iErh BT “azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019

RZE2E—NF—B—BNEREE - - -
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through ~ E UK B AT NEEE E

acquisiton of subsidiaries (note 37) K&af& (MsE37) 558,320 38,800 597,120
Additions RE 50,673 - 50,673
Increase in fair value recognised in RIEE PSRN AT EEE

profit or loss 5,305 1,600 6,905
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 and R _E—hE+_BA=+—HEK

1 January 2020 —ECEF-A—HMERAEE 614,298 40,400 654,698
Additions nE 100,256 - 100,256
Increase in fair value recognised in P18 m PR A T EIE 0

profit or loss 4,769 (4,400) 369
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RIEZEHF

+TZA=+—HMREE 719,323 36,000 755,323

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Hangzhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on
valuations performed by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”), an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB755,323,000. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s finance manager and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
for financial reporting.

The completed investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 16 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group'’s investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB719,323,000 (2019: RMB614,298,000)
were pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the
Group by a bank.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. KEWME (@)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy ~rFERL
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TRMMBPAEEBREYENAFLEFTEB4R:

of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as
at 31 December 2020 using
ERANTHABENR
ZEIFE+ZRA=+—-HMATEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
iEREmE AREN  FAUBREN
DREE EZHAYUE EZHAYUE
(E—4) (EZR) (B=4) fact
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETn ARBTR ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for; UTEBENSERATENE
Completed commercial properties BTEEYE - - 36,000 36,000
Commercial properties under construction HEmEYE - - 719,323 719,323
- - 755,323 755,323
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2019 using
FEAUTE AR
“E-hAE+A=+—-HNAFEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HEEMS AEEN  FUREN
BEHRE EZRAYE EZHAYE \
E—H) EZR (E=ZH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR®TRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for; P EENEEEATERE !
Completed commercial properties BTEEE - - 40,400 40,400
Commercial properties under construction TREEYE - - 614,298 614,298
- - 654,698 654,698
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FROAEF—HME_GBLELAFESE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 ER O MPE-_MTETCASANEL (T
(2019: Nil). —NLEF ) o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. IREWE (@)
(CONTINUED)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key UTAREYEGHAFERNGERTREE
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: B A SRR BE A
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
ENGIR -k
fRERM TAIHRNEZRARE BABENEER
2020 2019
—EITHE —T-AFE
Completed commercial Term and Term yield 3.5% 3.5%
properties reversionary method FHIR R
BT EEYE FHIRIERRE
Reversionary yield 4.0% 4.0%
ERWEE
Market rent 73 76
(RMB/square metre/ month)
Mm%
(NR¥E/ /XK B)
Commercial Residual method Market rent 90-210 87-208
properties under BREE (RMB/square metre/ month)
construction Dzl e
TEmENE AR/ FHK/B)
Reversionary yield 4.0%-5.5% 4.0%-5.0%
ERWEE
Budgeted construction 776 2,626
costs to be incurred
(RMB/square metre/ month)
BELNFEEREHE
AR/ FHK/B)
Developer’s profit 5%-20% 10.0%
EEEHA
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

For completed commercial properties, fair values are generally
derived using the term and reversionary method. This method is
based on the tenancy agreements as at the respective valuation
dates. The rental income derived within the tenancy agreements is
discounted by adopting term yields and the potential reversionary
income is discounted by adopting appropriate reversionary
yields for the period beyond the rental period in the tenancy
agreements. Potential reversionary income and the reversionary
yields are derived from analysis of prevailing market rents and
the valuer’s interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation
were determined with refer to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent per month
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
term yield and the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Fair values of the investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the construction with reference
to its development potential by deducting development costs and
developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of the
proposed development assuming completed as at the date of
valuation.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent per month
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
reversionary yield, budgeted construction costs to be incurred per
month and developer’s profit in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

15. REWE (@)

BRTHENENRATE-—REBEFARER
FEELMFEERBRBGERNEER
EMEH - EEWZARNNEZRARBFE
s R4 IR - MR B e B LU B 18
BRAFKBEENERRERITR - BEE
BRARERWERDBNERTHIHEZH
DU RS EMEERREE ZRIGFHY
RERSY -HEXRMNERBHEEEN2E
BREMEREMAIE LR ERNTREES
MERE °

SAMBHETHNARELA (TR RERKE
MEQFENKRE LA (FE) - FHAWEE
REFBKZXEB/IAE LA (THF) BER
KREWERTENAETE (L) -

ERTREVENLFE-—REBHRELE
EMBEREEIERUSERERERE
MEEETEENTS % KRG RERER

(BRENGEHRD NEXERINRGRERE
P A DU 3% Fee 72 B i 1) e JRL g o

BATHESNARELA (TR BERKE
MELTENKRELA (T ERKRmE-
BAREENEEREHAKRERED @ E
BEYRIE LA (TR BERRKREYEQTE
BIKIE T (EF) ©
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16. LEASES 16. fHE

FEBREREEA

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of lease land and
buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 2
and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several
lease contracts with constant lease payments, which are further
discussed below.

FEEMEELMNEFELEERITANA
Bl - —RNUENRECERBPEZMUBEER
ABSHEHE M- A R605F AR LMEER
HERBEBRENM -BFHEENHERAE
ER2EF - BEME  AEETA HINEE
REHAAEENEEEE-AETEEHEE
REEEHN BEETXE—Dsime

(@)  Right-of-use assets (a) fFEREEE

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FRAEEFRAEEENREEREE

the movements during the year are as follows: ZFr
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
FHE L B¥F “azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AR®ETRT AREBTT
As at 1 January 2019 R_E—hF—HF—H 27,121 1,024 28,145
Additions "E - 950 950
Depreciation charge TERRE (766) (1,108) (1,874)
Exchange realignment FE AR - 22 22
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERB AR (FsE11) (15,609) (226) (15,835)
As at 31 December 2019 and N ZE-NF+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2020 —2TFEF—F—H 10,746 662 11,408
Additions RE - 1,479 1,479
Depreciation charge TERE (315) (994) (1,309)
Exchange realignment E AR R - (60) (60)
As at 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZE2F+-A=+—H 10,431 1,087 11,518

The Group’s land use rights are corresponding to the lands
located in Hangzhou of the PRC and the remaining lease
periods were 33 years as at 31 December 2020.

AEBB LM EREY RUKL T EN
MR R _TF+"A=+—
B &R THHEIAR33F ©

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s land use rights
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB4,017,000
(2019: RMB4,139,000) were pledged to secure short-term
loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank.

R CECBRFF_RB=+—H &&EH
REPEAS ARE4,017,0007T (ZF
—N%F  AR14,139,0007t) W&EF L
RS FIRE > LEE—RR{TAA
EERHIERERRE -
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. 1A & (%)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEREBEAN (@)
(b)  Lease liabilities by HEESRE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FREESE (BETEERTREMSE
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the ) EREEREEFHNT

movements during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-% —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBEF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HB—HZEmEE 646 941
New leases WHEE 1,479 950
Accretion of interest recognised FRERMNEEE
during the year 45 78
Payments NES (1,001) (1,124)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR = (223)
Exchange realignment FE R AR (63) 24
Carrying amount at 31 December R+_B=+—HZKEE 1,106 646
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BRHERER > 803 577
Non-current portion JEBPEREL 303 69
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 HEEGEZIBEIMEERSHIH
to the consolidated financial statements. WRMIEE44 0
(©)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases () FHEENREBERTEINESEOT !
are as follows:
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEsBZHE 45 78
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEZITEMS 1,309 1,874
Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ E252HAFA & K FIGRA S
other leases with remaining lease terms —E2-NEF+ZBE=1+—
ended on or before 31 December 2019 HalzpifERNEMBE
(included in cost of sales) MERARIBESE GTAHEK
) 172 156
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RI8m PR B4R %E 1,526 2,108
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note 44(c) d HEHEMNRSRHBAENRMBERENE
to the financial statements. 44(c)FIFE o
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A DA B R

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its completed investment properties
(note 15) and plants to third parties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for completed investment properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 8 years and those for

plants are for terms of 1 year.

Rental income recognised by the Group during from continuing
operation the year was RMB1,946,000 (2019: RMB1,025,000),
details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

16. A8 (&)

FEBREASEEA

AEEARBELCEHAETHEYHEEASETEST
BREWME HF15) MBEFHE=ZF BT
KREMEZHPZEEANFE—FENE M
BBz A — -

FRAEEERIREFELCEEHNAEAS
WA ANRE1,946,0007T (ZEE—NF ! AR
#1,025,0007c) » A RAFIBE I M B KM =F
50

N TECEE+_R=+—8" ETﬁZ!K%@
RBEHEB R Z AR EEEE R R UWR
FEIREERIENT

2020 2019

—EEE —E—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFTT

Within one year —F RN 1,431 485
After one year but within two years —EM FEREUR 1,857 510
After two years but within three years MEL FB =R 1,933 536
After three years but within four years =FE FEONEMRA 1,928 563
After four years but within five years MEM FBREUR 1,439 292
After five years but within six years REUEFBSREUR 1,457 -
After six years but within seven years NEM EBEEMUR 1,511 -
After seven years but within eight years +tEUFEBENEUR 1,133 -
12,689 2,386
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B OB AR B EE
31 December 2020 —Z-ZTHE+_"_F=+—H
17. GOODWILL 17. B2
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RIZZE—nF—5F—H Z}ﬁK&EEEE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries not W IEH EEFI T M B R
under common control 101,181
Exchange realignment bE AR 4,742
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2019 NZE—hE+ZA=+—HZ
R A e BR T 105,923
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2—NF+ZA=+—H
Cost D% 105,923
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount EREEE 105,923
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 N2 ZE2F—B—HZMAKKRERE 105,923
Exchange realignment bE AR (6,409
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 NZEZEF+ZA=+—HZ
R AN e BRI (& 99,514
At 31 December 2020 NW_E2ZF+ZA=+—H
Cost D% 99,514
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount BREEE 99,514
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 17. B2 (8B)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing:

° RMAA Service CGU;

The recoverable amount of the RMAA Service cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.1% (2019: 18.0%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the RMAA
Service cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period is 2.5%
(2019: 2.5%), which was the same as the long-term average
growth rate of the RMAA Service industry.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit is as follows:

2R ER R

BREFAHBBHNEEDETFTUTRSE
EEBUMUERENR

e RMAARRBIREELEEL ;

RMAAHW%L%@EE%@E@W&@%@EE*&
BERBEIET ZtE8NERAUSHR
IE?tt/&ﬁ’]ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂl%%%ﬁ?#ﬁ’ﬁﬁfﬁw
=B -REREBARBZMIRESR18.1%
“E—NF 118.0%) c BUHE R FIU
FRVMAARRBIREESBENRESREEREE
#A25% (ZT—HE:2.5%) » HERMAARR
BITERBFHEIEREAR-

PEREREEEEUZHEREENT

RMAA services Total
RMAARR# Bt
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E2%FE “E-hE ZEIEE —EFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AEBTT AEBTR

Carrying amount of goodwil BERAEE 99,514

105,923 99,514 105,923

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the RMAA
Service cash-generating unit for 31 December 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rate estimate — Rate is based on common industry
practice.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE_ZTHF+_"F=+—H

18. HtWE\ILEE

Sewage
Technical pipe usage Contract
Software know-how right backlog Brand TOTAL
BKE
nk B BRE ARIAY s st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETr AR®Tn ARETR ARETT ARETR
()
At 1 January 2020, RZZ2Z25-A-H»
net of accumulated amortisation BRREE - 386 2,095 5233 58,347 66,261
Amortisation provided during the year FRFHRIEH - (236) (201) (5,192 - (5,629)
Exchange realignment ERBEE - - - 1) (3,530) (3,571)
At 31 December 2020, RZB-ZE+-A=1—-H"
net of accumulated amortisation BIIR R - 150 2,004 - 54,817 57,061
At 31 December 2020 RIEZ2F+ZA=1—H
Cost PR - 6,326 4,190 9,014 54,817 74,347
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (6,176) (2,096) 0,014) - (17,285)
Net carrying amount FEFE - 150 2,094 - 54,817 57,061
At 1 January 2019, RIE-NF-E—H’
net of accumulated amortisation BIIR R 373 1,502 2,497 - - 4372
Disposal of subsidiaries(note 11) HENBAR (fizE11) (205) (375) - - - (580)
Acauisition of subsicliaries not under common B IEE BRI HI T HMBAR
control (note 36) (MizE36) - - - 9,165 55,735 64,900
Amortisation provided during the year FRERIEH (168) (741) (202) (4,284) - (5,395)
Exchange realignment ERHE - - - 352 2,612 2,964
At 31 December 2019, RIE-hE+ZR=+-R
net of accumulated amortisation BIIR R - 386 2,295 5,233 58,347 66,261
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NEF+ZA=1—H
Cost PR - 6,326 4,190 9,517 58,347 78,380
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (5,940) (1.89) (4,284) - (12,119)
Net carrying amount REFE - 386 2,295 5,233 58,347 66,261

XEFMRIARAT 2020%E 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A DA B R

31 December 2020

“E2CEF+"A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Brand with indefinite useful life acquired through business
combination is allocated to the RMAA Service CGU.

Impairment testing of intangible asset with indefinite
useful life

The value of brand with indefinite useful life is assessed
annually by using the relief from the royalty method
calculated based on a five-year cash flow projection
approved by senior management. The fair value of the
brand was equal to the future royalty saving resulting from
ownership of the asset.

The key assumptions, royalty saving rate, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the annual impairment testing
of brand with indefinite useful life in 2020 are as follows:

18. Hth\EEE (@)

(@)

BREXRCHBEZEREREHLE
T DB FRMAABRFEIR S E 4 BB (i o

BREAFHELEERENR

BRCAFHRE2EESERARR
B REREN G AETTE 58D
ERNKESREEBHENAFRERE
B BEATEENRBEEEEMDS
BIRRASFFREERE -

SECEE RREAEHIIREEH
R R AT IR 2 T BB A
RRENE REEEEREREL
T

2020 2019

—E-EF —F—hF

Brand (%) Brand (%)

Key assumptions TERR i (%) SR (%)
Sales annual growth rate THERRFIERX (5%)-11% 3%-4%
Royalty saving rate SR RERESAE 7.6% 7.6%
Long term growth rate REFIEEX 2.5% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate PRI ATARIRE 19.4% 19.3%

Sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth
rate over the forecast period, which is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development.

The royalty saving rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers
typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific

risks relating to the RMAA Service CGU.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.

188 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

HERFERRD AR TS
FRREXANBEENREERBHT
BERNTER-

Ik ANEFEERBHAOXLS
BLERETLEERESMEREH
BEXMNARMSTEERE-

i
BE

P #% F3 B9 B 3R = 75 bR AR A A A2 PR B2
RMAARR IR & E £ B RN ER

ZS
|§nu o
N

DT EEZRROBERINEBER R
H—%e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

19. INVENTORIES 19. 78
2020 2019
—ECRF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBEF T
Raw materials ik 3,380 2,564
Work in progress S 450 622
Finished goods E e 963 610
4,793 3,796
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. ERERHPWE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEF T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RIEZZ2F—A—HZRAEE 198,524 -
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through FEWEERE A BUWES
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) BEKAE (TEE37) - 186,140
Additions NE 24,501 12,384
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 N ZEIEF+ZHA=1+—H
ZIREE 223,025 198,524
The Group’s properties under development are situated on KEBZEBRBIAYEMRFPEAMEBE L
leasehold lands in Mainland China. o
At 31 December 2020, the Group’s properties under development RIE_EE+_A=+—H ' x&£8KE
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB223,025,000 (2019: WEANARK223,025,0007t (ZE—H 45
RMB198,524,000) were pledged to secure long-term loan facilities AEK#198,624,0007T) NERTMEBFH
granted to the Group by a bank (note 30). The value of properties A LAEFR—HERTHAEERTFZE
under development was assessed at the end of the reporting HETME (M:30) BRIV ENEBERE
period. There was no impairment and the realisable value of the REEHARMEL TG T EHIRBE R
properties under development exceeded their carrying value. AERTYX SR EEBEEKREE-.

XEIFMRIARAT 2020E5% 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. B EWFIERERELE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARMFTT

Trade receivables B3 EWRIE 42,425 38,859
Bills receivable e ZE 38,116 29,582
80,541 68,441

Impairment AE (5,722) (2,347)
Net trade and bills receivable B ERIB R EWE R P 74,819 66,094

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 3 months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEFRERBNEZERUEERT &
MER—RABRENRERIN - EEHBEERS
BR BREFHURARSEERRE -FSEH
RNBRBREFRBEEEBRE MR EE
JE R TE #RA% 5 B BRAS A% BB LSRRt > 0 &
FEEEZRERRELEREDHE B
HMIEBEREERBRERNER B 5B
RERBRE -

R|ERR B RERREREZ BN
BT

2020 2019

—EEHE ZE-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARHEFT

Within 3 months EARA 28,502 30,502
3 to 6 months 3E A ZE6f@ 8 1,272 1,921
6 months to 1 year 6fE B =14 8,656 4,160
1to 2 years 1246 3,497 652
More than 2 years BiBoF 498 1,624
42,425 38,859
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

21.

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

BEZRIRIERERRE (8)

B2 RRIER ERENEESIMT ¢

2020 2019

—E£ZF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREEFTT

At beginning of year == (2,347) (1,171)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EERREEE (:E6) (3,708) (2,218)
Amount written off as uncollectible s 2 AW BN &5 - 34
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAD - 1,048
Exchange difference ERELR 333 (40)
At end of year FR (5,722) (2,347)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
the provision matrices to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months. The Group has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability of these
bills receivable and consider that expected credit risks arising from
them are close to zero.

HMEINMNESREAHRRBREEERET
Ut EmREERE -EEXDENAAR
LEERN BiEtES D) NS EER DY
ERIBE M B BETE - 25t B R RN
ER-EBEHERNBESARTESNERSB
FEE -BARRRRREERRBANG
BRuEER-

R EINIH6ER AR - AEEEZY)
MIZTERBRBENEERE KRR
WERBZERBERBENRRAEEARET S

zo
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. B ERKFIEREKRER (B)

(CONTINUED)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TR AR EE B EEEETEREIR
the Group’s accounts receivable using the provision matrices: BEBHEERREN
As at 31 December 2020 —ETTF+ZH=+—8

Past due

Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
ERE

BH DRSER 128 BE—&F st

GROUP A B4
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEEX 3.01% 12.19% 19.77% 87.72% 21.11%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE ARETT) 12,854 1,272 8,722 3,837 26,685
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEHEE ARETT) 387 155 1,724 3,367 5,633
Past due
bl
Less than 3to 12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
MEAE
BER DRSfER 12/ BE-F fact
GROUP B 248
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEE 0.04% 0.07% 0.40% 90.22% 0.57%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REEE AREFT) 15,647 1 - 92 15,740
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) RREEEE ARETD) 6 - - 83 89
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

21. BHRBWREREWRERE (&)

R ZE-NE+ZRA=+—H

Past due
bl
Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
ERE

Y SeilE)E 1288 BE—F st

GROUP A ==Kzl

Expected credit loss rate FEHREEEEX

Gross carrying amount (RMB’'000) BREA2E (AR 1)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FaHE & k518 (AR T 7T)

1.33% 5.79% 8.90% 91.67%  12.00%
10,953 1,638 4,560 1,764 18,815

146 89 406 1,617 2,258
Past due
EER
Less than 3t0 12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
EEE
BE - DIR3fER 2B BE—F s

GROUPB 748
Expected credit loss rate FEERE EEEXR

Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)  BREI421E (AR 1)
Expected credit losses (RMB’'000) TfEHRIEEE1E (AREEFT)

The Group categorised its customers with reference to their
geographical regions into the following groups:

° Group A: Geographical region in Hong Kong
° Group B: Geographical region in Mainland China

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying value of the trade receivables.

0.04% 0.07% 0.40%  72.32% 0.44%
19,548 384 - 112 20,044
8 - - 81 89

FEEKSEERAEMEBREDERLUT
BIE

o HA:FEBME
° 24 RE A&

RBEEHRARZEXEERRERE SR
FRIARYERE A ©
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, FAFIE - R EHMEWRIE

RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

(@) Prepayments, deposits and other

WU FEUR & 7R
(@) FEfIRRIE - RE MR
15

receivables
2020 2019
ZETEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARFT
Prepayments to suppliers mFER TR RIE 1,515 50
Deposits and other receivables B R EMEWRIE 1,942 2,860
Prepaid expenses B 169 193
Interest receivables FEUWF) B 2,298 710
Value-added tax recoverable AU [ElIEER 12,857 12,552
18,781 16,365

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free.
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate to their fair values.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of

the reporting period is the carrying value of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

31 December 2020

22, FE{IFRIA

AU B R RE
—ETERE+"A=+—H

& K HAith EUTRIE

LUR FE U £ 2h (48

(CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables (b) FEEWERR
2020 2019
ZEIEF —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®EFT
Loan receivables — current (a)-(c) FEWET—BIER (@—() 107,518 145,832
Loan receivables — non-current (d)-(e) FEWE R —FEENER (d)—(e) 9,950 -
117,468 145,832
Impairment BE (927) -
116,541 145,832

(@ The Group entered into a one-year trust loan () XEEBR-EZESFERAt+=HHH-—
arrangement with a commercial bank on 13 May MEERTIIL—ELSLERDH &
2020, pursuant to which a loan of RMB60,000,000 It £ %84 AR 160,000,000t E R
was lent to an independent third party. The balance EERA—RBIULE=ZH ZiEHRAEIR
is unsecured, bears an interest rate of 6% per annum O RENE R BERBR S _—F
and is repayable on 13 May 2021. ER+=HEE-

()  The Group entered into a one-year loan arrangement by XEBRZ-IZEZZEE+ZA=+H3]
on 30 December 2020, pursuant to which a loan of U—FERTH B SEAA E it
RMB27,773,000 was lent to an independent third 27,773,000t N ER B EH— 2B
party. The balance is unsecured, bears an interest rate —H o REHAEIRE  RER %5%%
of 5% per annum and is repayable on 30 December BERER_ZE-_—F+"HB=1+H1E
2021. Bo

(©) The Group entered into several arrangements () XEBRIZEIZF+__AIIYETE
in December 2020, pursuant to which a loan of BRIt 3 A AR 19,745,000
RMB19,745,000 was lent to an independent third NERBEBHR—BBILE = 2
party. The balance is secured, bears an interest REIRE BEAF12%5E R Eﬁf:
rate of 12% per annum and is repayable before 31 - F+"HB=1+—HAEE-
December 2021.

(d)  The Group entered into an arrangement on 24 ) XEBRZIZZZFE+—BZ+HH

November 2020, pursuant to which a loan of
RMB5,500,000 was lent to an independent third party.
The balance is secured, bears an interest rate of 8%
per annum and is repayable on 24 May 2022.

Ji—fﬁ}ﬁﬁt Bt A AR
5,500,000t ERBEBHA—LBILSE
—H o RAHAEIRE BEMNES%T
ERABAR_E-__F#FHEB-+MEHE
;2%0
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, FAHIE e R HMEWRIE

RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables (Continued)

(e) The Group entered into an arrangement on 3
December 2020, pursuant to which a loan of
RMB4,450,000 was lent to an independent third party.
The balance is secured, bears an interest rate of 8%
per annum and is repayable on 3 September 2022.

KUK B ER (&)

(b) FEWERR (B)

() FEBR_ZE-_ZTF+_HA=H:1—
e EE Bk £ A AR 4,450,000
THEREBHR —RBILE=ZF 24
RS MERNES% ERBR T
T _ENB=HEE-

The movements in provision for impairment of loan ENERREREESHNT
receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
ZEIEE “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT
At beginning of year =) - _
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EERREEE (5E6) (951) -
Exchange difference PE R E%E 24 -
At end of year FR (927) -

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using three categories for loan receivables which reflect their
credit risk and how the expected credit loss provision is
determined. Management considered the credit risk on the
loan receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to expected credit
losses within the next 12 months.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s loan receivables:

RERSERRA=ERHNARERETET
BAE D M&WHEA B Ko 40 o) & E T8
HEEBERE- EQW%QW$ﬁW
REWEREERRIL MBZILM WAE
BiEERRRI2EBANEMEEBENS
BEHETRIANEEREE

T 2% 8051 4 S D B 9 2 B Y £ A
#H

2020 2019

—ECEF —ES-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF AR®T T

Expected credit loss rate TEHRE ER1EE 0.81% -
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REiEE ARETT 117,468 -
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEEEEESE ARETT) 951 -
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

23. ENEE

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF “E-NEF
+=B=+—H +-BA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Contract assets arising from: UMTMERBEBELENENEE .
Construction services (a) BEAR () 29,553 16,973
Retention money receivables (b) EWIREE £ (0) 4,330 1,483
33,883 18,456
Impairment A (3,609) (989)
30,274 17,467
(@  Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned (a) REEWmIHIIMIBHERRFFIEER

from the provision of construction services as the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of construction. Upon completion of construction and
acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
unbilled revenue are reclassified to accounts receivable.

Retention money receivables are part of the consideration
that the customers retain which is payable on successful
completion of the contracts in order to provide the
customers with assurance that the Group will complete its
obligation satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to
provide financing to the customers.

The increase in contract assets in 2020 and 2019 was result
of the increase in the unbilled revenue earned from the
provision of construction services.

W mal & sl RWEE BRI
TR IRAEE - RIRTRAERS
BWNE ERAARFAZERGZEHEE
MO EEEURERER o

b) EURFREEAHAZTARBFERDTNFE
FERNZERE ULAEFRERE
BERREeENS ARBERESE
MIEEEARMEME-

TECRERCE-NFEENEEEN
Th R B A2 SRR TS P B 2 R B TR UK
mig e
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 23. BHNEE (B
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets R+ZB=+—HaNEEZERKE A
as at 31 December is as follows: ERFEMT -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Within one year —FR 30,877 17,148
After one year —F% 3,006 1,308
Total contract assets BHNEERT 33,883 18,456
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract EHNEENRESBBEESNT .
assets are as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —EF—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHEFT
At beginning of year =) (989) -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFEE (fi5k6) (2,830) 972)
Exchange difference PER ERE 210 (17)
At end of year FER (3,609) (989)
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APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 23. BHNEE (B
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a RERSHHERBEEBREETRED
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision Mt EFRPEEFRE -FE5NEEFERE
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the EEEZEBERLEREZBWRRIBE #E
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as EoRNAGHNEERBEZERNRIETLRERE
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same —HPER SNEEZEBBEXRDENEM
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based B EEHEUEEEANZEARADI4E
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various ANEZENRBARH#ET ZTEK
customer segments with similar loss patterns by geographical MBENREER EREFERNKRSHAT
region. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, BHAERBEEM  Br0k R R R RLER
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable REANEGERAIFER-
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TRFIEAEBEBEEAEAEBSNEE
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix: SERREHNER
2020 2019
—EZE —E—hE&E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEFTT
Expected credit loss rate TERRfE EEGIEXE 10.65% 5.36%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REEE ARBTT 33,883 18,456
Expected credit losses (RMB’'000) FEHEERE ARBTT 3,609 989
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AU B R E

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

24,

25.

BILLS RECEIVABLE AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

24. BMAFEFARMEEUARNE

e

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREEF T

Bank acceptance bills at fair value MAFEFENRITE R R 16,363 -

Bills receivable that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets are measured at FVOCI. Bills
receivable held by the Group are usually collected at the maturity
date or endorsed before the maturity date.

The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months. Management
expect that there is no significant credit risk associated with bills
receivables since they are held with large size listed banks and the
credit risks arising from them are close to zero.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

RERRENRERERHETREENRE
WRE > ZATEFAHMEERAGFE &
EEFANBWRBEENEA WS
FEAEATIEE

FEWREIN3H6ME R NEIH - EEE TR I
BEEMBRRBEZERNGEERR  RAAK
EUR/ARBEETRITAFTAE ARFELEZ
EFERBEFTRZ-

25. MAFEFABTENEHEE

2020 2019
—EEH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHTFTT
Asset management agreements, BEBEWH BATE
at fair value (note 42) (MFs¥42) 199,056 100,696

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Yongsheng
Dyeing entered into certain asset management agreements with
the corresponding asset managers, pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset management plans
operated by these asset managers and to deposit investments
to the designated accounts maintained by the asset managers.
The asset management plans mainly invest in inter-bank deposits,
bonds and equity investment. The financial assets at 31 December
2020 and 2019 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020

“ETEF+"A=+—H

25. MAFEFAABENEHEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (&)
(CONTINUED)
The details of the investments at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are RIBE_EFR_BE-NF+_A=+—H
set out below: KREMNFBHIINOT :
Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REKRR
BEEEA FEA BRE®E HEEH ATE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
2020
e et
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd.  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 30,000  24-Jun-20 31,120
REMERESEBRAT BEESRNERAT ZE2ERAZFIH
Liangke Investment Management Co., Ltd. China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 30,000  14-Dec-20 32,213
BEREEE (IR BRAT BEESRNERAT TZE+°F+EH
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. 20,000  04-Sep-20 20,223
FEEFRHERAS REESFRHBRAR “ZFERAME
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 15,000  24-Dec-20 15,000
FE RERT FEIRZERIT —EE+ZAZ1+NA
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 50,000  25-Dec-20 50,000
FE BT FEIRZERIT “EE+ZAZ+AH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000  28-Dec-20 20,000
FEIRERT FEIRZERIT “EE+ZAZH\H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000  30-Dec-20 20,000
hE RERT FEIRZERIT “ZE+-AZ1A
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 4000  30-Dec-20 4,000
R REIRT FEIRERIT “ZE+-AZ1A
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 5500  31-Dec-20 5,500
FEIRERT FEIRERIT “BE+-A=+-H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 1,000  31-Dec-20 1,000
FEIRERT FEIRZERIT “EE+-A=+-H
199,056
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. AT EHABENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (45)
(CONTINUED)
Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REXRH
BEEEA FEA REHE HEAH ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT NS T
2019
—Z-NE
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd.  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 25,000  14-Nov-19 25,230
REMERECERRAT BEEsRMERAT —NE+—F+HmH
China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Co., Ltd.  Beijing Chaowai Street Sub-Branch 25,000  13-Nov-19 25,181
HEHIMUEB S EEERAT of China Merchants Bank Co., —NE+—A+=H
Ltd.
BERTRMERAT
I REAIAKE AT
Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd. China Everbright Bank Co., Limited, 50,000  6-Dec-19 50,285
ARERETBRETAT Beijing Branch —AE+ZBA~A
FEISARITRMBRATILR
nf1
100,696
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

26. REKRREEZEY

2020 2019

—E_EHE “E-NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARMFTT

Cash and bank balances BB RIRTTAE R 88,870 55,679
Time deposits EHBEAR 848 93,000
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREEEY 89,718 148,679

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB were RMB3,811,000 (2019:
RMB100,088,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

REF REBUARBAENRSKRIET
Eer A AR ¥3,811,000c (CE—HE: AR
#100,088,00070) - AR AEEEHRRZIRE
HME - A RIFHE R (SMNEEEK
B (B EERGESERE)  ~%EE
EHEEBERBRTRBARKAEME
DUEITINEZETS o

RTREZEBREARTERNZ LUEHF

deposit rates. EKEEEVF] S o
TRADE PAYABLES 27. B EIRRIA
2020 2019
—EEH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Trade payables B ENIE 123,913 53,861

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,

REXR EZEARERBEERZBHANRE

based on the invoice date, is as follows: SFWF
2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARFT
Within 6 months [SEIEEN 117,388 50,525
6 months to 1 year SEEESES 5,804 1,939
1to 2 years 1E24F 212 1,177
More than 2 years BiEoE 509 220
123,913 53,861

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 60-day terms.

BERNMMERTER—HRENR6CORHIR

WG ©
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. Hthf&E{FrRIE R fE 5Tk IE

2020 2019

—E-ERF —E—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBEF T

Contract liabilities BHEE @) 549 5,717

Accrued payroll EstTE 7,643 13,213

Accruals fEsTRIE 2,575 1,883

Interest payable NES) 409 454

Value-added and other taxes payable FETIZERREMRE 7,186 4,959
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE - BERRENE

plant and equipment (NE/RE] 323 285

Others Hith 2,997 1,964

21,682 08,475

All the amounts of interest payable, value-added and other taxes
payable, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

FRERNHE BHEERKEMRE -BE
W2~ g 55 Be 5% 4 B BB (Y RRIE LU HoAth FE S
REABAFABRRTHFHR=EA -

(@)  Detalils of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BEHNBENFERUT

2020 2019
ZEISE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Short-term advances received from =P UREN R e EATE R RS

customers

Processing nmT 31 27
RMAA Service RMAARR 7% 518 5,447
Properties investment MELE - 243
Total contract liabilities BB EREE 549 5717

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
processing service and RMAA Service. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2020 and 2019 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
provision of construction services at the end of the year.

204 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2020

BN e EaEME MR IRSE RRMAAR
WERBIEZH AN RE - —_ 2 - 2F R -F

—hEaNa’RD

ERRERBEFAW

BARREHEZRRBHEHEBGRIER D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

20, FTEEMTIT A

2020 2019

—EEHE —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMEFTT

Return rate swap Wz E d H 1,981 -
1,981 -

On 14 December 2020, the Company entered into an asset
management agreement (note 25) named Liangke Lijun No.6
Private Securities Investment Fund (“Liangke Lijun”), and entered
into a return swap agreement (“Swap Contract”) with Qi Xiao Tao,
another investor of Liangke Lijun, pursuant to which Qi Xiao Tao
would guarantee the Company with a fixed annualised return
rate at 6%-8% of the contributions Liangke Lijun made during
the investment period in return for the sharing of more than
proportionate interests in the accumulated available proceeds of
the “Liangke Lijun”.

This Swap Contract was not designated for hedge purposes and is
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of non-hedging return rate swap amounting to RMB1,981,000
(2019: Nil) were charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year.

AZEZEFE+ZA+WUHE ARBFILE
EEEmZE (Wst2s) AEFFHRRALSE
EHsREES ((E2XFH)))  THEBRFH
BB —%&EEQI Xiao Taos] 1L W & 2 HA 17
= (MEEE4)) %Ik Qi Xiao Taog B A Q
BIRBEEFLWRE (BERKRERMET
BER6%-8%) IR E R EFM IR
A RSB LB RIS RE -

b3 HR B A9 6 3E 2 S 5 T 5T 32 6 4% A SFE 5t
ABZHE ERFEGHREXRREBZ AT
E8E AR H1,081,0007t (ZBE—NF %)
PABRGREMEEKAR
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. st ERITREMER

BORROWINGS
2020 2019
ECEE “E0E
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRI (%) 5IfE AREFRT BIERIE(%) il ARETT
Current bt
Lease liabilties (note 16) REBE (H&6) 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
- 3
475% +ZB=1+—-H 803 475% +-B=1+—-H 577
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR 13-May-21 04-Dec-20
—-f 34
4.57% #RA+=H 15,000 4.57% +-BmA 15,000
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHR 28-Jun-21 22-Jun-20
- LT
451%  7~AZtI\AH 10,000 475%  RAZTZH 10,000
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHRE 4.79% 03-Dec-21 15,000
+ZA=H
Current portion of RERTERNRGES 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
long-term bank loans - secured ~BHR == “ZE
425% +ZH=1+—-H 259 425% +-B=1-H 263
41,062 25,840
Non-current FERE
Lease liabilties (note 16) RESE (fE16) 4.75% 2022 2022
- St 303 4.75% “ETTE 69
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR 4.25% 09-May-23 09-May-23
Z=£1AAHE =
386 4.25% EAAR 686
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHR 6.60% 31-Jul-25 31-Jul-25
ZEFtB=1+- “RE
H 39,600 6.60% tB=1+-H 39,600
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR 6.60% 31-Jul-25 31-Ju-25
ZEFtR=1+- “hE
=} 30,000 6.60% tA=1+-H 30,000
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHRF 6.60% 2024-2025
ZZMEECE
ZiE 58,022
128,311 70,355
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank loans are secured by:

@

(i)

(i)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings, which had an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB21,646,000 (2019: RMB22,597,000);

mortgages over the Group’s land use rights, which had a net
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB4,017,000 (2019: RMB4,139,000);

mortgages over the Group’s properties under development with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB223,025,000 (2019:
RMB198,524,000) which were pledged to secure long-term
loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank;

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB719,323,000 (2019: RMB614,298,000)
which were pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to
the Group by a bank; and

mortgages over the Group’s construction in progress with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB26,055,000 (2019:
RMB21,355,000) which were pledged to secure long-term loan
facilities granted to the Group by a bank.

31 December 2020

AU B R RE
—ETERE+"A=+—H

30. stRIRITREMBER (&)

KREEZIRTERA TS BRHER

M

(i

(i)

RHREBEREHEEBEOARIE
21,646,000 (ZE—HF : AR
22,597,00070) 2 NEEIEF 21218 ;

PR LSRR IREFELN AR 1E4,017,00070
(ZE—N%F : AR®4,139,00070) 745
B L E R %18 ;

BREEN A RIK223,025,0007T (ZZ2—A,
F 1 AR1E198,524,0007T) 2 REE RS
YMEZIRIBETER LE—-RRTHRAE
ERTRASHHME

BREE A R#719,323,0007c (ZZB—N4F :
ANE#614,298,0007t) 2 AEB B EYE Y
RIBEFER LEE-BRTHEAERRT
EHERRE , &

IREFEN AR E26,055,0007T (ZE—A,
£ ANR#21,355,0007T0) 2 &NEBMAEZT
BZRBETEM LGE—RRTESER
BEYEHERRE -
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 31. BFFEBY

2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TFT
Government grants BT EE 7,289 7,677
Less: Current portion B - BNERER (387) (387)
6,902 7,290

Movements in government grants are as follows: HFEBEEMT
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
At the beginning of the year =) 7,677 12,510
Grants received during the year FEANBWEE - 5,032
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMB AT (FFsE11) - (8,464)
Amortised as income B AUWA (388) (1,401)
At the end of the year FR 7,289 7,677

The grants were related to the subsidies received from local
government authorities for the purpose of compensation for
expenditure on certain facilities and were credited to a deferred
income account. The grants were released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.

The Group also received certain financial subsidies from local
government authorities to support local business. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to these
government grants. These government grants were recognised in
profit or loss when received.
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B B R b

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 32. IRERIEEE,&E
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without FILFTSMEERBBEE CRERIRHERE
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same —MRBEERERNNGER) T

tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax assets: FIEMRIBE ENE S -

Provision for

impairment of

Write-down of trade

inventories receivables

to their net and

realisable ~ Government contract
value grants Accruals assets  Taxlosses Total

BRREK

RER

FEMAE EEE
HA2R%E BT EB fEstiE AR fIEGH Mzt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

At1 January 2019 RZE-nE-B—H 273 1,876 2,660 190 - 4,999
Acquisition of assets and liabilties through BRNENBARKEEE

acquisition of subsidiaries REE - - - - 1,373 1373
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FERPERA/ (05

profit or loss during the year WELRIE 483 545 1,560 526 515 3629
Exchange differences EREHE - - - 9 - 9
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMBAR (ffzF11) (756) (1271) (272 (171) - (4,470)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIF-NE+ZA=1+—8

kZ2ZFE-B—H - 1,150 1,948 554 1,888 5,540

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or ERPERA/ ()
loss during the year HIELRIE - (58) (770) 1,160 331 663
Exchange differences EREER - - - (%4) - (%4)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZFE+-B=+-H - 1,092 1,178 1,620 2,219 6,109
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31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

32 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES GRIERIBEE&E (8)

(CONTINUED)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB8,655,000
(2019: RMB12,133,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China of
RMB10,821,000 (2019: RMB7,565,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
losses of RMB10,600,000 (2019: RMB12,146,000) as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making continuously and
it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

FEEREBELENREBEARE

8,655,000t (ZZE—H % : AR®12,133,000
7o) Al ER IR EE BB AR IR IEE

AR ]

AERRTEAMEENREGEARE

10,821,00070 (ZE— 15 : AR #7,565,000
70) MR A RER R EANMEBFN —ERE
A Ep

B E LA 18 AR #10,600,0007T (Z & —A
£ ANRE112,146,0007T) BRELERIBE
ErRAAZSEBEEDREBFERENBERE
MM B AR BERAFKAIEBERER N A
FRLURHIR AR 18 ©

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: FIERIBBENEEHN T !
Temporary
difference
between Fair value
accounting  adjustments
basis and arising
Unrealised  Unrealised  tax basis of from the
interest fairvalue investment acquisition of  Withholding
income  adjustment properties  a subsidiary tax Total
REMEE:
REEEENR k-
FERHE FER MBREZH WEAREE
KA ATEEE  WEREE HATESRE R Mzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR  AEBTRT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR®
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NnE-A—H (10 (297) - - (14,903) (15,210)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AR - - - (1512) - (1,512)
Deferred tax (charged)/ credited to ERRER () /A
profit or loss during the year HIELERIE @) 193 (2,026) 707 (5,624) (6,842)
Withholding tax paid BAENR - - - - 4714 4714
Exchange dffferences EREE - - - (58) - (68)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIE-NEF+ZA=1—H
RZEZEF-A-H (102) (104) (2,026) (869) (15,813) (18,908)
Deferted tax (charged)/ credited to ERRER (MR /A
profit or loss during the year WELRE 102 (182) (393) 857 (2,385) (1,951)
Withholding tax paid BAENR - - - - 4,785 4,785
Exchange differences EREHE - - - 6 - 6
At 31 December 2020 ZSISE+IA=+-H - (236) (2,419) - (13,413) (16,068)
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AR Bs R b T
31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 32. IREMIEEE, &FE (@
(CONTINUED)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ABEENR ETREERBEEERBRER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial EHPHERTRPIEHE UTAREBNE
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of IERIBAEER AL BB IR S EAVPRIE D AT ©

the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019
ZEEF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBEF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RE MR RRESR
consolidated statement of financial position BIRIEAR B & E F RE 1,597 536
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RE MR RRESR
consolidated statement of financial position FRIEIRIE & & 548 (11,556) (13,904)
SHARE CAPITAL 33. g4
Shares i 19
2020 2019
ZEEF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBEF T
Issued and fully paid BEITREE
731,557,090 (2019: 749,655,890) 731,557,0008% (& —h4E :
ordinary shares 749,655,890%) i iE AR 6,054 6,217
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 33. k& (BB
Shares (Continued) i&{n (48)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as KNBRAEEFRBMENT -
follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
inissue capital account Total
BE1T
B E] Bx  RipEER Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTTE  ARETT ARETT ARETE

At 1 January 2019 RIZE-AE—F—H 394,487,500 3,121 130,657 133,778
Share options exercised (3) BiTHEREREER) 2,507,100 22 4,259 4,281
Dividends paid to shareholders of BAARRRLARE

the Company - - (27,951) (27,951)
Issuance upon acquisition of subsidiaries RUREER B AR R ET 80,000,000 684 170,456 171,140
Issuance upon acquisition of assets and REBURENBADWEEE

liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries RaE®RET 272,661,290 2,390 609,451 611,841

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 Tiv NE+ZA=1+—H

Z-ZTF-FA—H 749,655,890 6,217 886,872 893,089
Share options exercised(a) Eﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ%%é(a) 1,701,200 15 2,910 2,925
Dividends paid to shareholders of BAREREZIRE
the Company - - (29,609) (29,609)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (o) E%@&EE‘H}%H&@(@ (19,800,000) (178) (34,791) (34,969)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the TR W R
forfeiture of share options (c) EEERERACQ) - - 1,288 1,288
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZF+ZA=1+—H 731,557,090 6,054 826,670 832,724
(a)  The subscription rights attaching to 1,701,200 (2019: (@) 1,701,2001p (Z=—H & : 2,507,100
2,507,100) share options were excised at the weighted 1) B ERNNREEEER1.2138
average subscription price of HK$1.213 (2019: T (ZE—NFE 1.25187T) MNEFR
HK$1.251) per share (note 34) resulting from the issue of BB EETE (MI5E34) » phIbLA483R
1,701,200 (2019: 2,507,100) ordinary shares for a total FRE GRERAD 49 AR 11,845,0007T
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately (ZE—h%E: AR#2,731,0007T) &
RMB1,845,000 (2019: RMB2,731,000). An amount of 471,701,20008 (Z = — A : 2,507,100
approximately RMB1,080,000 (2019: RMB1,550,000) was %) E B - 2 849 AR 51,080,000 (=
transferred from the share option reserve to share premium Z—h%F . AR®1,550,0007T) ERE
account upon the exercise of the share options. REEEITERRBREREEREERD
RER
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34.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Shares (Continued)

(b)  The Company repurchased 19,800,000 of its ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for a
total consideration of HK$38,864,000, which amounted to
approximately RMB34,969,000. The repurchased shares
were cancelled during the year and total amounts paid for
the purchase of the shares of have been charged to share
capital and share premium of approximately RMB178,000
and RMB34,791,000 respectively.

(c)  The subscription rights attaching to 1,978,000 (2019:
Nil) share options were forfeited (note 34). An amount of
approximately RMB1,288,000 (2019: Nil) was transferred
from the share option reserve to share premium account
upon the forfeiture of share options.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s directors and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 7 November 2013.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme is limited to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 27 November 2013, the day since which the Company’s shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

33.

34.

AR Bs R b T
31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

HX zl: (II‘E)
igin (4&)

(o) AT LA ESS,864,0008 70 (B H

£ AR 1634,969,0007T) N & B A3

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A B BEE EH19,800,0000% &4

o B P (O] BR AP A £E P 5 8 T At BB (21 AR

EHE’J,,Lﬁgﬁegﬁyz!:Esz B

%ﬂuwﬁ,ﬂ)\ﬁm78,00075&A§m§
34,791,0007T °

(c) 1,978,00019 (ZZE—HFE 1 ) BRIER

MIp9 SR BB FE I B4R U (M 5E34) - A%
# ANR#61,288,0007T (ZBE—HLF &)

RERERIVEREREREERE

Rt R -
RBRRRESTEl

AABEE—RERESE (TR5t8) 85
ERHAERZEERANFHERNETERS
BERHEBLER ZAENEERSH
EORREIRTINEFhFERBEMES - %
FER T —=F+—RAtHEX-

REZFERFEERIPORITEBRESR
SHE NETERBBEEASNAQTNE
AINEEEITRONIIO% BHLEEKRS A
ERBZFEEENBREMAY FETH
ROESHE TIBBERBARNK -E
—=F+—RBTtHEEBMORBFRA
RAB L ZHBNARTBETRHE10%

RYEFNIETHAENBEREALBT
SFMITEE SR E WS RERT+ZER
HE MEFEARARD T ERRABILIFRNTT
%%‘E%&%Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁj\ﬂﬁﬁﬂE%H%E‘EE?S$

NEMERFEREZETRNB0.1%HEE (R
BAABRMONELBRNERSTE) 88
5,000,000 7t BERRINKRIEAE LE%
HEE o
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34. B2 (B8)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period of not shorter than 12 months and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
par value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 6 January 2015, 15,000,000 share options were granted to 39
employees with vesting dates falling from 2 April 2016 to 5 January
2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.48 per share. The expiration
date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the grant
date.

On 30 December 2015, 16,300,000 share options were granted
to 45 employees with vesting dates falling from 1 April 2017 to 30
December 2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share. The
expiration date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the
grant date.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34. B2 (B8)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FRZAEETERTHEZBERENT

during the year:

2020 2019
k2 —F-hE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

IREFsS IS
B BRERAE IHEE BREHE
HKD ’000 HKD ‘000

per share per share
=1 T SEET T
At 1 January n—A—H 1.503 18,603 1.503 21,110
Granted during the year FARKYH - -
Exercised during the year FERITHE 1.213 (1,701) 1.251* (2,507)
Forfeited during the year FERR I 1.125 (1,978) - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,186 14,924 1.503 18,603

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share FRNBITEBRERTED B2 MEFEIEK
options exercised during the year was HK$2.03 per share (2019: MBEERAER2.038T (ZTE—HE: 2518
HK$2.51). JT) °©

* The adjusted exercise prices were in line with the dividend issues * KEETEETaESEMEZREE T
approved by the board of directors.
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. IBietEstE (48)

RBREAR HRTEERENITEERT

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020

Number of options

Exercise price*

FHAEN T ¢

Exercise period

FER BB TfEE" 17fEHA
‘000 HKD
per share
15 BT
2,894 1.125 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025
T2 RFONBHEZZE"_AF—HBEHH
2,894 1.125 1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025
T—t+FME—HEZE-HFE—HAEHH
4,652 1.225 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025
—E—+tFNA_HE_E_AF+_HA=+H
4,584 1.225 1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025
—N\FENA—HEZZE-HF+"A=1+H
14,924

2019

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

BREHE TEE 1T1EH
000 HKD
per share
T BRET
3,336 1.480 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025
—E-RXFOBHE_ZE_HF—HAAH
3,336 1.480 1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025
s —t+FMA—HEZZ"HF—HAFHH
5,950 1.5620 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025
TE+tHFEMNAZHEZE AT+ ZA=+H
5,981 1.520 1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025
- \FOE—HBEZZE-_AF+H=+H
18,603
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * ERENTEEIREERKRIKEEE 5

in the case of rights or dividend issues, or other similar changes

in the Company’s share capital.

AT RABE MBS BT LI
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted were RMB8,556,000
for 15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015
(RMBO0.57 each) and RMB10,669,000 for 16,300,000 share
options granted on 30 December 2015 (RMBO0.65 each). No
share option expenses were recognised during the year of 2020.
(2019:Nil)

Approximately 1,701,000 (2019: 2,507,000) share options were
exercised during the year end 31 December 2020 resulting in
the issue of 1,701,000 (2019: 2,507,000) ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of approximately RMB15,000
(2019: RMB22,000), as further detailed in note 33 to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 14,924,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 14,924,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately RMB125,600 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 14,924,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 2.04% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

4. fERREstE (8)

EREHNERENATFER T —AF—
A7NB#EHEM15,000,0001 ERES AR
8,656,000t (B8 AR0.57m) kL Z =
—HFE+ZB=1+HEHM16,300,00015 &8
B A A R1610,669,0007T (B15 AR 1£0.65
T MR ZEZEFERMEERERERE

MNP FERRWEIE— T fii > REECZ
ETEF+_A=+—HLEFEEBTEY
1,701,0001% (ZZ&—H% : 2,507,0001%) f&
FE B 3 171,701,0008 (T —HFE .
2,507,0000%) R RABEBEERRMEENAR
#15,0007T (Z 2 — 145 : AR#22,0007T) °

RBESHR ARAARZABETE
14,924,00017 B RITERERE LB AQF
R R AZRE BHITEERTHENER
ET BB EBINEE4T14,924,0001 8 AT & 18
BE R BBINIR AN K9 AR #5125,6007T (FABREE1T
A o

RLEZEMBRERAE X ASTZ:TE
TH14,924,00015 E KX {THEBEKE > HER
AANBRZHBEITRNE2.04%
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35. RESERVES 35. {#E

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 12 to 13 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with a functional currency other than
RMB.

Other reserve represents (i) the gains/(losses) arising from
transactions with non-controlling interests, (i) the difference
between the fair value of capital contribution received from the
non-controlling interests and the proportionate of the carrying
amount of the net assets of the respective subsidiaries attributable
to owners of the company being deemed disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES NOT

UNDER COMMON CONTROL

On 22 February 2019, the Group acquired a 100% of the equity
interest in Summer Power International Inc. and its subsidiary,
Widely Construction & Engineering Ltd (collectively referred to as
the “Summer Power Group”) from an independent third party at
a total consideration of RMB176,274,200, which was satisfied
by HK$6,000,000(equivalent to RMB5,134,200) in cash and a
consideration of RMB171,140,000, which was determined by
reference to a total of 80,000,000 shares of the company issued
for this acquisition and the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of completion. The Summer Power Group is principally
engaged in providing RMAA Service. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the construction business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
Summer Power Group as at the date of acquisition were as

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

36. B M RIERIEZHB AR

A CE-NAE_B-_+_H &AEEBH—
LBYE=ZFKREENEBERL2I R
HNBABEHMNELEIRERARE (#7118
TENEER) WNE2HRE BREAAR
#176,274,2007c > 246,000,000 7t (M8 &
MAE®5,134,20070) REARKEBARE
171,140,0007c (KL EAXR QB HhZWHEEE
21T HY 4 1£80,000,0008% BR 19 Kz 45 A B R 19
ASERHEIN KM EEE) BN -ENEEE
ERERMERMAAIRTE - W FEAAEET
RRREHN Do

ENEERUBERANIHIEEREER
FEWT

follows:

Fair value

Recognised

on acquisition

W HEBRFE RERR

BN FE

RMB’000

AREEF T

Property, plant and equipment M- BB e 119
Other intangible assets Hithimp & E 64,900
Cash and cash equivalents BERIASEEY 3,996
Amount due from related parties [rE W Bl 32 75 FRIE 1,968
Trade receivables B EWRIE 7,817
Contract assets BHNEE 6,150
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE1T 3R I8 ~ 3% & K EL At FE UK FUIE 798
Trade payables B EAIE (3,913)
Other payables and accruals Hi (I RIB R ESTIIE (360)
Income taxes payable FESIRIE (3,762)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EIRIT R EMERR (1,108)
Deferred tax liabilities FIETRIEEIE (1.512)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATESTEN T H RIS EFEREE 75,093
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEENEE 101,181
Total consideration BARE 176,274
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
NOT UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$300,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in other income and gains, net in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill which arose on the acquisition included a control
premium. The consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of synergies, revenue
growth, further market development of the Summer Power Group.
These benefits are not separable and therefore it does not meet
the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under IAS 38
Intangible Assets. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

36. H&E%ﬂﬁfﬁé%lﬂ?%%ﬁézwg’&ﬂ

REE U Z W IBEFIHE £ 5 M 4300,0007%
ToRERXSMAEZHIL S A G HEBEE
BYEL MU A R W 2 75 BB o

WREFRELEBEQEENREE -RE
TAERE NN ZAEERERHRMER
S WABERENEBZRERTHERE
BZER e RFNEIARDH > FALEIL AR
BEIRG R E38THLEE T ARMERS
REVEEZRE - RRNECHEI ZBHE
BIEINRFT ISR AE -

MWBE-—ENBEAENRERAEDRUOT

RMB’000

AREBF T

Cash paid BRE (5,134)

Cash and bank balances acquired BUWENIRE KIBITAR 3,996
Net out flow of cash and cash equivalents EAREEHABRESRES

included in cash flows from investing activites IR RIRE S EYR HF48 (1,138)

Since the acquisition, the Summer Power Group contributed
RMB107,570,000 to the Group’s revenue and net profit of
RMB23,067,000 to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of 2019, the
revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the profit of
the Group for the year would have been RMB318,023,000 and
RMB135,792,000, respectively.
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37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 37. EWEMBARWBREERER
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES
On 4 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity A ZE—NEF—ANB AEEEBESEER
interests in First Intelligence International Limited and its NE (HERBRREREREEH) WS
subsidiaries, Chang Sheng Investment Holding Co. Limited, TEERERABDRAEMBABMEREZR
Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Company Limited, Hangzhou BRAB N EEYE (M) BRAE - HTM
Yonghao Investment Management Company Limited and KEREEEARABDREHEERRAHR
Philosojoy Investment Limited (collectively referred to as the (T TEE)) 228K RERZE
“First Intelligence Group”) from Astute Horizon Limited, ultimately AANERM811,841,0007c I UIBRE AR
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Li, for a total 200,000,0007c &z AR #611,841,00070 18
consideration of RMB811,841,000, which was satisfied by > MEBREBNLNKR2ERZWHEEEMmE
RMB200,000,000 in cash and RMB611,841,000, which was T &3£272,661,2900 & A B B 1D K PR &5 1T
determined by reference to a total of 272,661,290 share of the HEAXRRBIRMZzBHmEREE -NWREH
Company issued for this acquisition and the closing price of the B AETERFEREETERYT M ERE
Company’s shares at the issue date. At the date of acquisition, the B BRI EES WESEEEAKREL
First Intelligence Group mainly held the certain properties under HMEREFMIEARERERYEREERR
development and investment properties with no employees. The B2 —En oAt BB TEE BB BWE
acquisition was made solely to acquire its land and buildings as WEBRBIAREAWBEE-
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the business in properties
investment. Accordingly, the acquisition of the First Intelligence
Group has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets through
acquisition of subsidiaries.
The assets and liabilities of the First Intelligence Group as at the BETEERWERIENEEREBUT !
date of acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
consideration
allocated
Al
REERE
RMB’000
AREBFT
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEEEY 52
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FETIIE ~ i K Bt FE R RUIE 8,883
Properties under development ERPYE 186,140
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 18,980
Investment properties KREYE 597,120
Deferred tax assets REIRIBE E 1,378
Other payables and accruals HihE R IB R ET A (707)
Total net assets acquired BN FEEREE 811,841
Total consideration wmRE 811,841
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37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 37. EWWBENEARIWBEERAE
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of MU ERNBRABDNIREREDWNAT
subsidiaries is as follows:

RMB’000
AREFT
Cash paid BRE (180,000)
Cash acquired with the subsidiaries WS B AR ZRE 52
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FARERHAEREREZ
included in cash flows from investing activities RERIBEEEYREIFEE (179,948)
Note: The first instalment of RMB20,000,000 was paid in November MisE - B AR AR 520,000,000t B ZE—N\
2018. FH—HAxde
38. COMMITMENTS 38. E i
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the MREBBERAR > AEENERRENT ©
reporting period:
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI ERERE .
Land and buildings TR BT 1,641 2,552
Properties under development BRI 8,553 13,304
Investment properties KREYE 34,997 54,437
45,191 70,293
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES
(@) Name and relationship

Name of related party
FRES B

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

39. B R 5 R4S R

(a) HEREAR

Relationship with the Group
A& E B RA 1R

Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture Development Company
Limited
ESmEERREEREERAT

HUVIS Corporation and its subsidiaries
A EHHUVISK HIE A E

Hangzhou Shining 3D Tech Co., Limited
MM LR =ZAER KRN BRAT

Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd
K (BB BEERASE

Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
KEERIZERARAS

Hangzhou Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd.
MK E S # RN BRAT

Chang Po Chun

RED

Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil Differential fabric Co., Ltd
MK BB —ZRMCEESYEIRAS

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

P 42 AR AR R AZE 1

Joint venture partner and its subsidiaries

BEREBHKRENEAT

Joint venture partner

BELEBH

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
R e B 1

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
FRPZERR BG4

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
PR 2R RS B 1

Director of a subsidiary
—fERB AR ZES

Controlled by a close member of the Controlling Shareholder

FIERR AR SR — R T AR
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. FAE R R 5 RiEis (&)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Related party transactions (b) BAELFRXS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed FRICZEMFRREMEDPIIEENRKX S
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the R AEeRN  REBBAREREETUT
following material transactions with related parties: BARS -
2020 2019
—ECEREF —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E AR®TT ARETTT
1) Purchases of goods 1) XEER ()
- Fuyang Jingshang —ERREERRE
Agriculture HEBRAR
Development
Company Limited 54 73
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KBS S AR
High Ploymer Fiber BRAE
Co., Ltd 1 -
- HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVISK
its subsidiaries HE AR - 73,130
55 73,203
2)  Agency service fees 2) Mm—R%EAESUERIE (i
received from a related RBE
party
— Yongsheng Financial —KERERER
Holdings Co., Ltd. BIRAE] 456 676
456 676
3) Managementfee paidtoa 3) [E—&RIESZM (i
related party BERE
- Yongsheng (HK) —KEE () EE
International Co., Ltd BRAE 372 393
372 393
4)  Interest income 4 FEUWA (iv)
- Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KB B M
High Polymer Fiber KD BIRAE]
Co., Ltd. 887 189
887 189
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

39. FEA R 57 KGR (&)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Related party transactions (Continued) (b) FAERRZ (B
2020 2019
—EEF —E—hE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTT AREEFTT
5)  Brand royalty 5 mERHTERE )
— HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVISK
its subsidiaries HBA B - 46
- 46
6) Labour costs 6) IR (vi)
— HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVISK
its subsidiaries HBA B - 1,182
- 1,182
7)  Sales commissions 7)) B—%EESWED (vii)
received from a related HEME
party
- HUVIS Corporation and — R EHHUVISK
its subsidiaries HE AR - 2,700
- 2,700
8) Sales commissions paidto 8) Bt—&EIESH (vii)
a related party HEMS
— HUVIS Corporation and — R EHEHUVISK,
its subsidiaries HIF B A - 15
- 15
9)  Sales of products 9 EmHE (viii)
— HUVIS Corporation and — R EHEHUVISK,
its subsidiaries HE AR - 193
- 193
10) Loan to/receipt from a 10) BRFTEEREL (ix)
director, Chang Po Chun BEFEREEZIWE
— Loan Lent —BEHER 6,150
— Receipt of money Lent —EN BB HRIE 6,150
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AU B R E
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

39. FAEA R 5 RiGER (48)

(b) FAEFRH (&)

2020 2019
g —ENE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b= ARETT AREBFT
11) Rental income and other 11) FASUWAREME B )
charges
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — NSRS e — =R
Haeil Differential
25 U e
faboric Co., Ltd (LHERNAR
NS 1,434 -
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — W KBS S M A BB
High Ploymer Fiber =
Co., Ltd. BIRAF 213 -
1,647 -
12) Processing service 12) MIAR
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — WK B e — = RIME
Haeil Differential o A Lt _
faboric Co., Ltd AR BIRAR 456 -
456 -
Notes: P 5T

0] The purchases of goods were made according to the
published prices and conditions similar to those offered to
the major customers of the suppliers.

(ii) The agency service fees received from related parties
were charged at prices similar to those offered to other

customers of the Group.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

()

(ix)

(i)

The management fee was paid for the management
and administrative services provided by Yongsheng (HK)
International Co. Ltd, a company which was controlled
by the Controlling Shareholder of the Group. The
management fee was charged pursuant to the terms
in the agreement signed between the Company and
Yongsheng (HK) International Co. Ltd.

The Group entered into a contract with Hangzhou
Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. to lend
RMB40,000,000 at an annual interest rate of 6% and is
repayable on 31 May 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Hangzhou Yongsheng High Polymer
Fiber Co., Ltd. has settled all principal and interest
incurred.

The brand royalty was charged pursuant to the terms in
the agreement signed between the Company and HUVIS
Corporation and its subsidiaries.

The labour costs were paid for the Korean who worked
for Nantong Fiber.

The sales commissions were charged by Nantong Fiber
and HUVIS Corporation.

The sales to the related party were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

The Group has written off all of the bad debts from Chang
Po Chun of HK$3,237,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Rental income and other charges mainly represented the
arrangements about that the Group charged its related
parties for rental transactions, water and electricity
expenses and other overhead costs according to the
actual costs incurred.

The price of processing service was made according to
the published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

39. FAEA R 5 RiGER (48)

(b) FAEERS (&)

MisE © ()

(i) EEBEBDHZNKE (FB) BERERAF
(AEEFRZERRRERZAR) itz
BERTERE - BEEETREE AT K

®&B) F IR

B ABRABHT 2 Hs
By o

(iv) $$lﬁmmﬁmm@%kﬁﬁmﬁﬁJ
—1p & H LB A R #40,000,0007T » %
TETAZEE%I KE6% AN _E_ZFHAH
=+ —HEBE-REE_ZT_TF+_A
Z+—HLIEEE MMKBBEERNDER
NEEHEEEASREEENS -

V) mESHFERENRBEAATEKIET
HUVIS T B 8 A B 2257 BI 7 s& 15 = R

V) BTRADRZNEEEERREERES -

(Vi) SHEMEBREEAE R FHHUVISH
Hyo
(i) MEESFEHENRRETFAEENTIER

FBARBERIFEET

X RBEE_TZ-TE+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEECMIBEREZ A RNPIA RR
3,237,00078 7T ©

N HEzRAREMERIZELAEHRRRE

BREENEARHBAES REREERS
B KBEMHMBEZEERNZ -

&) MIRFHNERDEBRFERTIEZEEZERD
NFERS PRI R R o

KBHMEIAERAT 2020F#H
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. FAE R R 5 RiEis (&)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) HRAEAHIKREELLER
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2019 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2020 the year 2020 the year 2019
RZIZ—hE
+-A=+-H
RIEZTH FRARE R-EFZEE FREE RIT—hE
Due from related parties FEWREATIE +ZBA=+—-H KEBESE —HB—H KEBESE —B—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT AREBFT ARETT ARBTT ARETTT
~ Hangzhou Shining — MM AR R RS
3D Tech Co., Limited BRRAE - - - - 2,800
- Yongsheng (HK) International ~ — 7k 2% (&%) BIFR B IRAE]
Co., Ltd 61 61 45 45 -
- Yongsheng Financial Holdings ~ — 7k B & B4R A PR /A (i)
Co., Ltd (i) 25 114 114 390 390
- Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil ~ —#u kB iE—Z B
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd HEBMERAT 673 673 - - -
— Hangzhou Yongsheng High — N KBRS R
Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. () BRAT) - 40,200 40,200 40,200 -
- Chang Po Chun (iii) —RE Vi) - 2,900 2,900 6,150 -

759 43,259 3,190
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APPSR E
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties (c)
(Continued)

Notes:

0] The amounts due from Hangzhou Yongsheng High
Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd at the end of 2019 are the
outstanding loans and interest at the end of the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Hangzhou
Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. has settled all
the principal and interest incurred.

(ii) The amount due from Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd is outstanding agency service fee.

(iii) The Group has written off all of the bad debts from Chang
Po Chun of HK$3,237,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The financial assets includes in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Compensation of key management (d)
personnel of the Group

BHR 5 RASEF (B)

BIRE A R EEBEER (B

BE -

S TE—RFEE BTN KB
MR ﬁBE’/}TE’J#XIE?%El*EE
BEERRFIE -RNBEZEZ ﬁﬁ
+ZRA=+—HLEFE > FINKE
& Eﬁz{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁamﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁ
FKH S o

(i) FERkEBEERERARQBNMRE
AAREEAERBE -

iy MREE_ZE2-_ZEF+-A=+—H
HEFEE AEEEMEEREL AR
B P 12 8R3,237,0007 7T ©

ST A LIS o~ & B E A BT BRI S 4
REERBARBZ BUBRIERR 1
TECRERIF-AFTZRA=+—
B BREBERTIESMTEM-

FEBZTEEEANS ZHM

2020 2019

—ECEF —EF—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARHFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 2 EE R BYEF) 2,442 1,977

Performance related bonus EXAERETEAL 1,722 4,015

Pension scheme contributions BRI 231 200
Total compensation paid to key WIE%@AEENZ

management personnel FrNARR 4,395 6,192
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31 December 2020

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

41.

“E2CEF+"A=+—H

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s buildings, land
use rights, properties under development, investment properties
and construction in progress were pledged to commercial
banks relating to the long-term and short-term loans granted to
the Group. Details are included in notes 14,15,16,20 and 30,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020

Financial assets

40.

BEEHH

RIE_EE+_A=+—H xEBET
BFETHERAE BRI E -REWER
ARIEEHAERERNERRGHER
IR FEERT - FBANENR S HITHBR

KHIEF14-15-1620%30°

4. BENETHEMIA

REREMRR XESHM T ANKEENT :

THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through profit  comprehensive
amortised cost or loss income Total
BATFERA
REEM A BAFERA HttZ2EBA
FiiRNEMEE BEENEMEE HERMEE fazt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARBTFT
Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABGZHNEREE
profit or loss - 199,056 - 199,056
Trade and bills receivables BRRENTIEREREE 74,819 - - 74,819
Loan receivables ElER 116,541 - - 116,541
Bills receivable at fair value through AT EF AEMZEBA
other comprehensive income MEnZE - - 16,363 16,363
Financial assets included in SABRMHE BER
prepayments, deposits and HtEWABZ ERHEE
other receivables 4,240 - - 4,240
Amounts due from related parties  FEURRAE 5 28 759 - - 759
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 89,718 - - 89,718
At 31 December 2020 AT RE+"B=+—H 286,077 199,056 16,363 501,496
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY A, HERESNERMTA (8
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities TRER
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised through profit
cost or loss Total
TR H P A5 AR BATESA
MEMEaRE BEENEHaR Het
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT ARET
Trade payables B ENHIB 123,913 - 124,453
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA - 1,981 1,981
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A ELhE FIB R

payables and accruals EstRIEr smaE 6,304 - 6,304
Interest-bearing bank and s EIRIT R EHMER

other borrowings FesHEEafR)

(excluding lease liabilities) 168,267 - 168,267
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,106 - 1,106
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZF

+ZA=+—H 299,590 1,981 301,571
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 41. BB EMT A (@)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
2019 “E—hF

THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets

Financial at fair value
assets at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
TR EE A A BATERTA
FIERMERMEE BEnNemEE 1Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through @A F{E 5t ABHH
profit or loss HMEE - 100,696 100,696
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FE Wk I8 K FE U EE 66,094 - 66,094
Loan receivables FEWE R 145,832 - 145,832
Financial assets included in FFABNRIE - ZERK
prepayments, deposits and HiEWHRIBEN E/E
other receivables B 3,570 - 3,570
Amounts due from related parties [E U e 32 5 =R 43,259 - 43,259
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 148,679 - 148,679
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—NIF
+—-BA=+—H 407,434 100,696 508,130
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

4. BEHNETHERIA (8

THEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

FEH AL AT AR

SR =R

RMB’000

AREBFTT

Trade payables B EATRIE 53,861
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMBE I RIERESTRIBENEREE

payables and accruals 4,586

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERTREMER FEEHREa®)

(excluding lease liabilities) 95,549

Lease liabilities HEASR 646

At 31 December 2019 R ZE-hEF+ZA=+—H 154,642

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB14,510,000 (2019: RMB16,431,000)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amount
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. As at 31
December 2020, no trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills
during the year have been recourse by the suppliers.

THEENEE

WS EAI BT CERE R EE

NZEZZE+ZBA=+—H AEEHEH
ETHERSEZEETEARAMPIRTER
NETRERRERE (TE5E2EK)) EEES
AER¥14,510,000T (ZE—HhFE: AEK
16,431,0007T) > UG BRNZEHEFNE
SEMSRIE ((ZEE) - EER5 z&%@a
REBABOABROR BIEEBZ
HEZEMENRR WILEES WE
ETENEHEREEREHCEENESE
HRE - RZEEE AEETEREERE
HEZENEAEF 8EREMEME=
FHE EZRREFEEEZE -RZ_-Z
F+ZBE=+—R ERHEFHERRE
HEERFAMEENEZEARIE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 41. BB EMT A (@)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”)
to some of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB12,949,000 (2019: RMB13,487,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the
full carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills
is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
did not recognise any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the years.
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in trade payables, other payables and
accruals, the current portion of loan receivables, the current portion
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due from
related parties, derivative financial instruments, bills receivable
at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss approximates to their
carrying amount as largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The management consider that the fair value of the non-current
interest-free financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
approximates to their carrying amount as the impact of discounting
is not significant. The management also consider that the fair value
of the non-current interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value approximates to their carrying amount.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the CFO (the “Chief Financial Officer”) and the
board of directors. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the CFO.

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss require the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows from future proceeds when the investments
mature and the fair values have been estimated to be the principle
plus estimated investment income. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

2. TERMTANATFERATFERER

BEEENE REARTEEY EZBBNR
BREWZE EZBARE st ARMR
B -BERAMBRRENEREE STAE
ZEA I HAth B RIB KR BT RIBN &=
MEE -BWERRBH D sHRERTREM
BERCRBIE D ERRES B TESRMT
B BAFTEsSF AHM2EWRANEREE
URBATEFABENEHEEN LR TE
BREZREERE TEREZZETLA
REIHRHEAE -

EERD ARFREBUEREKR WIFE
FEFABZFRHIABEHREEKRER
CAFERAREZIREEHEE EEETR
S MATEFEZFABGFEEHEER
B2 ATEERSEZREERSE-

S M

ak N

\

MY BEEMSENAEEVBHREEET
TR TENATEFENBRAER BH
REEENMHEE (MHRE) RKEFE
ER-NERELM UBEBORERMIE
BENEHTETERANGENZIEZHAR
oz MERMBRER RE -

BAFEFABENEREENATEER
EENREINAREMEERATEREEZM
Bt R B AR BRRAAEMIBAN TR
KRBT REFLESt - EED R st AGHHE
BRAROMG QA FERSABDTNERQ
TEHEZHHBESE UARKRSHFRRGE
BIEE-

KEIFMRIARAT 2020EE 235



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R b

31 December 2020 —“ZE -ZE+_H=+—H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42, TEMTRANAFERATEER

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (48)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is the significant unobservable input to the valuation of TXABRAFEFABENEHEEGHET

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss together with a HNEXRAOBRZGAHE BN ZZEZE

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020: F+ZBE=1+—HHNEEHRED :
Significant
unobservable input Input Sensitivity of fair value to the input
BEARFOTHRHAHE B A B NTEEHEARBRNBRE

Financial assets at fair value Estimated return rate 7.10% 2% increase (decrease) in estimated

through profit or loss return rate would result in increase

(decrease) in fair value by RMB320,000
(2019: RMB204,000)

BN E ABR (EREIESES {EETEERE EF (R 2% B2 A F
DREE B G AR #320,0007 (&

—NE : AR#204,0007T)
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPSR E
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42. ERTANATERATEER

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL €))

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

DT ERR

TERALERESHMTENRATEFERBR:

BATEFBENEE !

R-ZE-_FEF+_-_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHERER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
GRS AREN  FUBREN
DRHRE EZHAHE EEBAHE
E—%) (BEZH) (BE=R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR ARBTR ARBTR ARETER
Debt investments at fair value through other WAEESAEMEEIA
comprehensive income WERLE - 16,363 - 16,363
Financial assets at fair value through ~ #&AF{E 5t ABHHY
profit or loss EMEE 32,213 135,723 31,120 199,056
32,213 152,086 31,120 215,419
As at 31 December 2019 RZT—-NFE+ZA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AFEHEER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TGRS AERRN  TUBREN
BSRE EEWANE EZBAHE
E—®R B E=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTn ARETR
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFTAEGE
profit or loss: HNEREE .
Asset management agreement BEEEEHE - - 100,696 100,696
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42.

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

42 SRIANATERATERR
IIE
NEEELR (48)
BATESENESE
R-ZE-_FEF+_-_HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHEER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIS AHEN  FIHEN

DRHE EZBARE EZHARE

(E—4) EZR) (BE=%) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETER

Derivative financial instruments TESMIE

- 1,981 - 1,981

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 6% (2019: 7%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the operating units making the sale,
whilst approximately nil (2019: 4%) of costs were denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
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AEENTIEERMTIAGERESRIENE
MoZEEMIANTIZENSEELEE
REFMBET AEEAEZEAMERE
EMNaf NREEMBERELENE B
TRIR R HoAth B WK IB LU B 5 R A - IR e B
fth A& FRIE

AEEFENERR FREAR EHRERK
nHETRB AEENSREEEEEZ
FEBRNEEBR - EFETRNALFNTER
BIRZE R BER > WH T S o

51 s B

FEEEERSERER LERARALE
BUNHEINEEELUINIERETHESE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

43. R EAMEEBRREE (&)

ShEs mBE (48)

TRETRRSHRAEEMEERITTE
E’J’I‘%iﬁ?d&%fﬁﬂﬁﬁumﬂﬂ HEBEEK
BENATEEME BARBEXNGE
FIREE BN RIGRRIIE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARBEE PRIZ AT EEF)
EH 7 (FER) o, G
RMB’000
ARET T
2020 —EIEH
If US$ weakens against RMB HETRAREEE 10% (559)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREHE (10%) 559
2019 —EF-NnE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETRAREERE 10% (635)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREAE (10%) 635

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank and other borrowings (note 30). Management
monitors the interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates
to loan receivables and bank balances carried at prevailing market
rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as these
loan receivables and bank balances are almost short-term in
nature.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings.

2R L B

AEETEHARTERITREMBE (M
) WRERMEXREAR EEEERNEXER
WHEAHEREEBE PEAF KRR -

FEBTEHARZRITHSA XS E
W E R R SR AT A BR RO IR M R R B o 2T
HRZERRERKIBITEFAB T RE
HtE wARRREAERME B -

FEENREAMNERABREIEZEDPRNEER
ANRBEEEEN BAREARETEIAMN
DIESEIE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank and other
borrowings, which is prepared assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

43.

TR AMEEBRREE (&)

ShEs mBE (48)

UTHREDNTLREFBRTREMMEE
BYF K B B T A€~ AR B UL 0 AT B (R B B R
TR ZREEERTHEETE2ERDRKE

o

B

fil

TRETEEMEBERFTINENBERT
FEEGRAENBEBIHNNXEENTE
HH R BEFREEBRIERIL -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
EEL IR aEEF
@, G w@m, GR)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREBFTT
2020 ZEIEHF
RMB AR 50 (660)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (5)
RMB AR (50) 660
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 5
2019 —FE—NE
RVB AR 50 (357)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 @)
RMB AR (50) 357
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of senior management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, bills receivable, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with loan receivables since the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty
and geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
trade receivables are widely dispersed in different regions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables, loan receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in note 21, 22 and note 23,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

43. = FhJE B

A DB R

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

REEBRREEK (8

BN

FEETBHRSNLEREEIENE=R
Lﬁs&% FERNBREMAERARUEE

RHENERAKBEEREZIER LI
ﬁ%?:%;%%?h"éu& TR o BN 3R LA R
mﬁﬁuﬁ’]lﬂ@ﬂéﬁ%%_ﬁﬁﬁ R AEET

BEARCEEREEERINZETRERHRER
Hio

rEFHEMEMEE (BERERRESE
M-RBRER BATESFABEGNEZRE
7~ PR SRR ~ MBI R R UL R E 75 R
B NERRERRNEFHEN RXEARE
ENZETANKREE

HRAEENSREPRBEASEHEH A
B9 BJ Uk [B] & 2R DU BE (R ot EE W (B B 2 2R 5T IR
RHBRERE E&$i—%i‘§aﬂﬁ#ﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬂ&
BEREENEREERE-

HRAERRESNLEREETENE=
FEARG HEFSENERR - EFER
REBRER/ HFEARMEETHONER
HRAEEREZBEHRENT P BED BN E
#o AMAEETESEREREHRRE-

EMAEERBEZRRENE - BRERKS
MEENERARNE-—DELHEEI RN
B BIRRWET21 ~ 22 K% 235 FE o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

31 December 2020

43. R EAMEEBRREE (&)

BR K 3 B i O 5 5 5K P Bz P R

TR ENAEREERRITHNEEER
EREREERRHMO (HEXTEZENBER
HER RIFGANE TR ENMRAHE S
AR ESHEMENNSERNR R+ ZA
—t+—HZERFERRDE -2 THE
PEMEENBKREE

—EZEF+“HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A TaHA
ZE5H 2PEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
b7l iz 73 $H3 (73 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR#ETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Trade and bills receivables* BRRITIEREREE" - - - 74,819 74,819
Contract assets” BHEE - - - 30,274 30,274
Loan receivable e ER 116,541 - - - 116,541
Blils receivable at fair value through other R AFEF AEMEE
comprehensive income BWAREREE 16,363 - - - 16,363
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t ATETEIE ~ EfthEUT
other receivables and other assets HERHEMEEZ
SREE
- Normal** —EE" 4,240 - - - 4,240
Amounts due from related parties FEWREE A FIE 759 - - - 759
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEED
— Not yet past due CE il 89,718 - - - 89,718
227,621 - - 105,093 332,714
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. TRIAMGEEBEREEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
31 December 2019 Z-NAFE+ZHBE=4+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1288 B
EEEE 2HBHREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE i) $E3 B0 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT  ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Trade and bills receivables* B o IER RN R - - - 66,004 66,094
Contract assets* BREE - - - 17,467 17,467
Loan receivable FEER 145,832 - - - 145,832
Financial assets included in prepayments, &F AFE{TRIE  E A FELR
other receivables and other assets TEREMEEY
SHEE
- Normal** —EE™ 3,570 - - - 3,570
Amounts due from related parties FEWEIER #IA 43,259 - - - 43,259
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEED
— Not yet past due — e KA 148,679 - - - 148,679
341,340 - - 83,561 424,901
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group * EREAEBR G REREEEENE SRk
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information WEIER S EE BB EE S

based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21 and 23 to
the financial statements, respectively.

BER DB M BREMNE21KR23K

% o
* The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered o Mt ATBIHIEs HithEWZHE R EAM
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no BENSHEETL AR BHRESE X
?nformatioln indicalting thatl the flinlahcial asset§ had a signifiolant FeREERTSRIUREEREE
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, = Bl (2 25 7T == 3 38 2 [ 4
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be SRt ’:J_’\{a "%’%Wﬁ% E md e
“doubtful’. SR EMEBEENEEERAIKER 0
g o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at each
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

43. R EAMEEBRREE (&)

MENE = ELR

FEEUEBERBDESREATAERES
RRER L TARREEM T ARERM
BEE (WEZRWIE) VEIAA - It 788 &
BEENRERE

AEENEREBEERRTERMEEEZD
FEMRE R ZERT T E-

REREEH AEFRSORFTRNIES
DHEREENIHEHEROT

is as follows:

31 December 2020

—EEF+“HA=+—H

On
demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
one year years years Total
BEKXRS
—&R —EERE BRLE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETT
Trade payables BRENTA 123,913 - - 123,913
Financial liabilities included in other HARMENRIER
payables and accruals EAmENERERE 6,263 M = 6,304
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 25817 R EME R
(excluding lease liabilties) FezHEEad) 50,290 156,936 - 207,226
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 1,981 - - 1,981
Lease liabilities HEaR 945 363 - 1,308
183,392 157,340 - 340,732
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 December 2019

APPSR E

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZFF+_HF=+—H

43. R EAMEEBRREE (&)

MENE = ELR

“E-AE+ZRA=+—H

On
demand or
with in 1t05 Over 5
one year years years Total
BER
—ER —EZERF BB E st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Trade payables BREMNTE 53,861 - - 53,861
Financial liabilities included in other SAEMENFIER
payables and accruals s RENEREE 4,536 - - 4,586
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 25847 R E M &7
(excluding lease liabilties) FresiEEam 30,686 20,130 72,279 123,095
Lease liabilities HEaR 726 103 - 829
89,859 20,233 72,279 182,371
Capital management BARER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

The Group regards total shareholders’ equity as it's capital and
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt to
total shareholders’ equity. Total debt includes interesting bank
borrowings. Total shareholders’ equity comprises all components
of equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

FEREAEENTEZBERARFAERR
BEENENAFRRFRENEET D KRR
HNEALLR UIXFHEFEERERRF
mEAIEe

AEBRELSERINESECREBEENR
BN HAREEEEARBUEHBAE B
BRAREAEHE AEBOEARKY T
RENKRE BRERBEAG BTG
AEEZEETEIMIIRBMNERER -
BEE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HKEZZ—A
F+IA=+—HLEEE EEEANERZ-
By EFEEEEto

FERRRREEBEREEANERAER
BELER (REBAIERG R R E DB
B EREA - EHBRBREFSRGTER
RERGDEECESABDERS ABGERD
FrESD AEBENBRABELGR/LER
HRESEKE
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED 44. SHESRBRWE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions (a)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB1,479,000 (2019: RMB950,000),and RMB1,479,000
(2019: RMB950,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

FEFRERS

RBEE_SE_ZF+_F=+—HIEE
B AEEREFTHETHDIESH
FRARESERTEESENIFREAEA
R 1,479,000 T (ZE—NFE : ARK
950,0007t) B2 AR #1,479,0007¢ (Z &
— % AR¥950,0007T) °

MEETHEENGRES

2020 b <3 3
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HEaRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBEFT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZEF—HF—H 95,549 646
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREEEF) 72,762 (956)
New leases g E - 1,479
Foreign exchange movement b R E (44) (63)
Interest expense FMERRZ - 45

Interest paid classified as DEAREHERE

operating cash flows ZBEEAFE = (45)
At 31 December 2020 RZE2EZZ2F+_-_A=+—H 168,267 1,106
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED 44. EHIRE GFE=RMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) BEIZHEENGEEE (B
financing activities (Continued)
2019 —E—hNF
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HESR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHFT
At 31 December 2018 RZ_Z—-N\E+-B=+—H 37,700 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 RN PR I TR S 2R F 165K 2
EZ - 941
At 1 January 2019 RIZ2—hFE—HA—H 37,700 941
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRE2EH) 106,693 (1,046)
New leases Mg E - 950
Foreign exchange movement B 52 4 48 24
Interest expense FERZ - 78
Interest paid classified as operating DEARERSREL
cash flows BAFHE - (78)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under U BB IEH RIS TR B AR
common control 1,108 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEWB AR GPsE11) (50,000) (223)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—h&+ZB=+—H 95,549 646
Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEEENRERHLEE
2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARMEFT
Within operating activities R EEEH 217 78
Within financing activities AREEBT 956 1,046
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 1,173 1,124
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45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

During the year, certain comparative figures in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been reclassified to conform with
the current year ‘s presentation.

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@  On 26 January 2021, Inya Group and the ultimate equity
holders of Zhejiang Lingrong Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited (Zhejiang Lingrong), namely
Mr. Shen Haiyang and Mr. Shao Yuheng (the Vendors),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which Inya Group has conditionally agreed to acquire and
the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell approximately
33.5% of the registered capital of Zhejiang Lingrong for an
aggregate consideration of RMB10,050,000.

(b)  On 11 March 2021, Yongsheng Dyeing redeemed
the private securities investment fund amounting to
RMB30,000,000 from Liangke Investment Management
Co., Ltd. which Yongsheng Dyeing entered on 14 December
2020. After the redemption, Yongsheng Dyeing has had no
outstanding balances with Liangke Investment Management
Co., Ltd.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  47. A BNMBR AR
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRB REPRTHERARNERUWT :
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
ZEZE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JFERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABNKE 1,065,255 1,092,080
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS BRI E EAERE 1,065,255 1,092,080
CURRENT ASSETS TMENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FE{TFIE &K
HipEss 169 193
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 2,014 19,678
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MENE ELEZE 2,183 19,871
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Other payables, advances from HhpERIE - EE B
customers and accruals K FEstERIE 616 1,152
Due to subsidiaries R AT RIE 211,055 211,650
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES MENEELEEE 211,671 212,802
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES e B AR (209,488) (192,931)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #2EERAEEE 855,767 899,149
NET ASSETS FEE 855,767 899,149
EQUITY Em
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO KA B R EL R
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Share capital [N 6,054 6,217
Share premium 17 mE 826,670 886,872
Other reserves HhEE 23,043 6,060
TOTAL EQUITY REERABRE 855,767 899,149
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

47. FRAFRIMBHIRR T (8)

Note: 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABEBEOHEWNT -
Foreign Equity-
currency settled
Share Share Accumulated  translation  arrangement
capital premium losses* reserve* reserve*  Total equity
SMERE R
K& RirEE — EHER e RHEE R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT ARETR ARETR AREFT ARBTr ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE-B—H 3,121 130,657 (29,025) 14,949 13,391 133,093
Profit for the year FREF - - 5,867 - - 5,867
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZEKRA
Exchange differences on HENBRRNERER
translation of financial statements - - - 2,429 - 2,429
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - 5,867 2,429 - 8,296
Acauisition of assets and liabilties through EUERBARKEEE
acquisition of subsidiaries R&& 2,390 609,451 - - - 611,841
Acquisition of subsidiaries not under BRI THRBAR
common control 685 170,455 - - - 171,140
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ MAATREX TRE - (27,951) - - - (27,951)
Exercise of share options TfErEmRE 21 4,260 - - (1,551) 2730
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIE-NF+-B=1—H
RZEZFE-F—- 6,217 886,872 (23,158) 17,378 11,840 899,149
Profit for the year FRER - - 19,720 - - 19,720
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZERE:
Exchange differences on HEMERRNERER
translation of financial statements - - - (368) - (368)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENALE - - 19,720 (368) - 19,352
Shares repurchased EERRG (178) (34,791) - - - (34,969)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ MAATREX TRE - (29,609) - - - (29,609)
Exercise of share options TfEramRE 15 2910 - - (1,081) 1,844
Transfer of share option reserve IR B R B
upon the forfeiture of share options EEERERE - 1,288 - = (1,288) o
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFE+ZB=+-H 6,054 826,670 (3,438) 17,010 9,471 855,767

These reserve accounts comprise the other reserves of
RMB23,043,000 (2019: RMB6,060,000) in the statement of
financial position of the Company.

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2021.
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TR PR

RESULTS e

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+ZA=+—HLEFE

Adjusted
R
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZZIEE Z-NE Z-N\F Tt fF ZXF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARET ARETFT ARETFT
(Represent)
(mE5))
Revenue from continuing operations {5 /&4 & £ I% 361,936 306,539 206,420 647,811 580,651
Gross profit from continuing FRSELBER
operations 112,373 102,454 89,987 180,159 167,205
Operating profit R 90,359 69,615 73,071 121,563 111,632
Finance costs B (1,785) (1,005) (297) (766) (1,350)
Profit before tax PRI A EF 88,574 68,610 72,774 120,797 110,282
Income tax expense FriSMmS (17,431) (17,597) (15,252) (22,347) 21,711)
Profit from continuing operations  IFEEE £ 7 71,143 51,013 57,522 98,450 88,571
Gain/(loss) for a discontinued BRIMTEERE
operation Wit/ (518) - 84,035 29,157 - -
Profit for the year FEREF 71,143 135,048 29,157 98,450 88,571
Attributable to: DUFRE R ©
Shareholders of the Company ERTERER 72,685 113,895 80,751 92,144 79,128
Non-controlling interests E[ei g (1,542) 21,153 5,928 6,306 9,443
Earnings per share BREHN
Basic (RMB cents per share) BEX (BRARES) 9.9 16.4 20.4 23.0 19.8
Diluted (RMB cents per share) B4 (ERARES) 9.8 16.2 19.9 2.7 19.7
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AR B
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
b33 —2NE —2N\& “T—tF avis
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,017,370 920,649 268,953 266,514 188,299
Current assets hHEE 764,628 740,712 532,173 534,436 484,533
Total assets BEE 1,781,998 1,661,361 801,126 800,950 672,832
Current liabilities nEaR 559,631 (132,772) (179,716) (217,143) (158,387)
Non-current liabilities E|FEI)=NE 146,769 (91,549) (21,496) (18,950) (17,232)
Total liabilities RS 706,400 (224,321) (201,212) (236,093) (175,619)
EQUITY i
Equity attrioutable to AABREEGER
shareholders of the Company 1,428,284 1,437,040 556,198 518,806 448,068
Non-controlling interests RS 1,948 - 43,716 46,051 49,145
Total equity i 1,430,232 1,437,040 599,914 564,857 497,213
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